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Corporate Information
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Mr. Wu Po Sum (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jun

Mr. Yuan Xujun
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Mr. Lim Ming Yan
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)
Ms. Chen Ying

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Shek Lun
Mr. Xin Luo Lin
Dr. Sun Yuyang
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Audit Committee

Mr. Cheung Shek Lun (Chairman)
Mr. Xin Luo Lin
Dr. Sun Yuyang
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Mr. Xin Luo Lin (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Po Sum
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Mr. Wang Jun (appointed on 31 March 2021)
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Corporate Profile

Ay

Central China Real Estate Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “CCRE" or the “"Company”, together with its subsidiaries
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, stock code: 832.HK) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15 November 2007 as an
exempt company with limited liability, the shares of which were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 June 2008. The Company has
been granted the “First Class Honor of Real Estate Developer” in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC" or “China”).

The Company has been committed to the real estate main
business and the development of branded properties as its
principal activity since its establishment. Over 29 years, we
have continued to guide residents to new exposures in lifestyle
through our articulately crafted architectural masterpieces
in honour of our core value of “Taking Root in Central China
and Contributing to Society”. The Company is of the view that
enterprises relate to society in the same way as trees relate
to the earth. When we establish our presence in a city, we
cooperate with our local peer developers to contribute to the
local community by improving the standards of construction,
increasing tax collections for local governments and creating job
opportunities. Our relentless efforts in driving the urbanization
process and promoting the economic and social growth in Henan
Province have won the accolades of government authorities,
professionals, peers, investors, customers and our employees.

The Company positions itself as a facilitator of urbanisation
and all-round social progress for the region of Central China.
Having taken root in Henan Province for 29 years, we are
resolute as ever in our vision and mission of “building quality
lives for the people of Central China”. With the development
of housing complexes such as “Forest Peninsula”, “"U-Town”,
“Code One City”, “Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden”, “Jianye
Eighteen Cities” and “Chinoiserie Palace”, we have improved the
standard of residential housing in various cities of the Henan
Province, making great contributions to the advancement of
the urbanization process in Henan. Meanwhile, the Company
endeavours to construct a “tailormade” mega service regime by
integrating resources such as property, education, hotel, football,
commerce and green house, with a view to activating the “New
Blue Ocean Strategy” and transforming the Company from an
urban complex developer to a new lifestyle services provider
for urban residents. The Company has always been committing
to its philosophy of “providing customers with zero-defect
products and first-rate services”. In addition, we adopt scientific
decision-making, management standardisation and operation
professionalisation in our business management to ensure the
standard and quality of our products and services.
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Corporate Profile (continuea)
22 ) AT

In its persistent professional pursuit of premium residential
housing development over the past 29 years, the Company
has fostered a “CCRE model” based on provincial and regional
development, created a brand name well trusted for social
responsibility, groomed a high calibre management team, giving
substance to the corporate philosophy of “Perseverance for
Excellence” and embarked on a development track of “ongoing
profitability and stable growth”. In 2020, the Company has
achieved a full coverage of 122 cities at or above the county
level (18 prefecture-level cities and 104 county-level cities).
Since 2021, the Company has launched the Great Central China
strategy, in which its business covers the Great Central China
area within a radius of 500 kilometers, with Zhengzhou as the
center.

As of 30 June 2021, the Company had delivered development
projects with an accumulated gross floor area (“GFA") of
approximately 46.85 million sg.m. and owned 180 projects under
development with a total GFA of 32.26 million square metres
(“sq.m.”). The Company also owned land reserves with GFA of
approximately 56.21 million sg.m., including attributable GFA of
approximately 40.82 million sg.m..

In line with its corporate culture underpinned by “honesty,
responsibility, integrity and focus”, a state of business featuring a
high level of integration between “economic and social benefits,
material and spiritual pursuits, corporate and staff interests,
strategic objectives and execution process” is coming into shape.

On 23 March 2021, Guandian Index Academy published the “2021
Top 100 Chinese Real Estate Companies”. The Company ranked
41st in "2021 Top 100 Chinese Real Estate Companies”, 1st in
“2021 Top Chinese Real Estate Companies in Terms of Overall
Strength in Henan” and 17th in “2021 Top 30 Chinese Real Estate
Companies in Terms of Brand Value”.

The Company adheres to its corporate philosophy of
“Perseverance for Excellence” and its core value of “Taking Root
in Central China and Contributing to Society”. The Company
remains committed to making contributions to the development
of the real estate industry and the private economic sector, as
well as the revitalization of the nation and the prosperity of the
country.
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Chairman’s Statement

B

Dear Shareholders,

I have the pleasure to present, on behalf of the board of directors
of the Company, to you the consolidated results and the business
review of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

In the first half of 2021, the global COVID-19 epidemic was still
evolving and the foreign environment became more complex
and severe. However, China continued to consolidate and
strengthen the achievements in the prevention and control of
the epidemic situation and economic and social development.
The domestic economy kept steadily recovering, with the main
macroeconomic indicators within a reasonable range. Thus, the
overall market was expected to have a positive trend. China has
done a solid job of “Six Stability” and fully implemented the task
of “Six Guarantees” to ensure a good start of the 14th Five-Year
Plan. In the first half of the year, the gross domestic product
(GDP) was RMB53,216.7 billion, with a year-on-year increase of
12.7% at comparable prices. In terms of quarters, it increased by
18.3% year-on-year in the first quarter, with a two-year average
growth of 5.0%; it increased by 7.9% in the second quarter, with
a two-year average growth of 5.5%, which fully demonstrated
that the fundamentals of the continuing improvement of
China’s economy have not changed. The pace of China's
reform and opening up remains firm, and the foundation for the
development of China’s capital market remains solid.

In the first half of 2021, Henan Province has further accelerated
its progress in economic recovery with consolidated foundation,
optimised structure and strengthened momentum. In the first
half of the year, Henan Province made efforts in both the supply
and demand sides in order to achieve a steady recovery with
prosperous trend, narrow the gap of growth in terms of main
development indicators between Henan Province and the
Chinese average, with a gradually accelerating average growth
rate in last two years. In the first half of the year, the province's
regional GDP was RMB2,892.796 billion, with a year-on-year
increase of 10.2%, and a two-year average growth of 4.8%.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

F 5 WS @

In term of the property market, despite strict market regulations,
outstanding performance in property market was still achieved.
Under the overall policy of “housing is for accommodation,
not for speculation, and differentiated policies need to be
adopted in the light of local conditions”, the central government
comprehensively and accurately controlled the national real
estate market to ensure stable land prices, stable housing prices
and stable expectations from a global perspective, for which the
overall operation of the national property market runs smoothly.
In the first half of 2021, the total investment in the property
development in China reached RMB7,217.9 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 15.0%, the area of property sold in
China amounted to 886.35 million sg.m., representing a year-
on-year increase of 27.7%, the property sales amounted to
RMB9,293.1 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of
38.9%.

Based on the prediction and analysis of the industry environment
and economic development trend, the Company utilised its 29-
year accumulative branding effects and continued to lead the
Henan property industry by the solid and steady business growth
in the first half of 2021, achieving a sales amount of RMB31,100
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.5%, and a sales
GFA of 4,051,524 sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of
9.9%. The Company ranked No.1 in the property market of Henan
Province both in terms of sales amount and sales GFA. In March,
Guandian Index Academy published the “2021 Top 100 Chinese
Real Estate Companies”. With the steady development trend in
2020, the Company was on the three lists with great strength,
ranked 41st in “2021 Top 100 Chinese Real Estate Companies”,
and 1st in “2021 Top Chinese Real Estate Companies in Terms of
Overall Strength in Henan” and 17th in “2021 Top 30 Chinese Real
Estate Companies in Terms of Brand Value”.

The Company adheres to the “focusing on regions” strategy and
continues to consolidate its market share advantage in Henan
Province. Based on the coordination and analysis on different
cities in the region, the Company has extensively expanded
project resources through multi-channel expansion. During the
reporting period, the Company newly acquired land reserves with
a total GFA of approximately 6.63 million sg.m. and there were
180 projects under construction.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
F S @

The Company is committed to diversified development to
disperse operational risks and create a unique competitive
advantage in service resources. Guided by the continuous
upgrading and the increasing diversity of customers’ life
needs, in 2015, the Company officially started the strategic
transformation and the upgrading path from a “property
developer” to a “new lifestyle service provider”. After nearly six
years, it has completed the market deployment, and created
a service system with the Jianye technology sector as the link
and the four sectors of “Hotel, Commerce, Cultural Tourism,
and Agriculture” as the support. On 5 June, Zhengzhou lJianye
Unique Theater Hotel, the tenth high-end hotel invested and
constructed by the Company, opened for operation. On 6 June,
Unigue Henan Land of Dramas, China’s largest drama cluster,
opened for operation, and immediately went viral on social
media. Within 10 days of its opening, the project appeared on
CCTV for seven times, and national mainstream media such
as People’s Daily and Xinhua News Agency have successively
released several special and multilingual news releases covering
this project. Unique Henan Land of Dramas has quickly become
the first choice for Henan people to travel and a must-stop
place for tourists from other places. It has become a new bright
spot in the cultural and tourism industry across the country,
helping Henan's cultural tourism industry enlarge the influence,
make progress, and help to build Henan into a culturally strong
province. The Jianye — Huayi Brothers Movie Town project had an
outstanding operation of receiving 1.16 million visiting in the first
half of the year. CCRE's strategy of developing and transforming
into a “new lifestyle service provider” has not only paid off with
the implementation and explorations of such projects, but also
provided positive synergetic effects for the Company’s core
property business in land resource acquisition and sales.

The Company launched the “Great Central China Strategy”
to expand development opportunities. Starting in 2021, the
Company will expand its business to cover the Greater Central
China area within a radius of 500 kilometers, with Zhengzhou as
the centre. In the first half of the year, the Company’s Greater
Central China Strategy made substantial progress. On 30 June,
the Company’s project in Tianjin Binhai New Area officially
landed.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEEHE @

Thanks to the simultaneous implementation of various strategies,
the Company has formed a strong brand influence, excellent
reputation and credit rating, for which our core competitiveness
in the region has become increasingly prominent. Recently,
Henan has suffered from both the flood and the epidemic. The
Company has not only made every endeavour to protect the lives
and property safety of the employees and customers, but also
actively taken social responsibility, with the Company donating
RMB5 million promptly and employees donating RMB1.625
million. The Company was highly commended by our customers
and people from all sectors of the society and it resulted in a
further improvement in our brand influence and reputation.
Meanwhile, the Company quickly prepared itself to make all-
out efforts to meet the double challenges of the flood and the
epidemic, exploring new opportunities in the crisis, and opening
a new game in the changing situation.

In the future, the Company will always adhere to values driven
idea, strategic orientation, customer-oriented philosophy, long-
term corporate value, great corporate criteria, the right political
direction and the "bottom-line thinking”, and give full play to
brand advantages, customer advantages, service advantages and
unigue business model advantages. We rely on the economic
development opportunities within the Central China in the new
era, and promote the implementation of the Greater Central
China strategy in a down-to-earth manner to achieve a new leap
in enterprise development.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to our employees for their diligent work and
contributions. In such an era of changing and evolution, the trust
and recognition of our customers, employees and shareholders
always remain the driving force for us to go forward. We shall
keep trying to maximize shareholders’ value by acting as the
facilitator of urbanization and social progress in the cities of
Central China and enhancing our contributions to the healthy
and sustainable development of China’s property industry.

Chairman

Wu Po Sum
18 August 2021
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Financial Highlights
HA 5 ik 22

SUMMARY OF INCOME STATEMENT

W 2k 4 Bk 22

For the period ended 30 June

HZ6HA30H LLHARS
2021 2020 Changes
20214 20204 =)
Revenue (RMB’000) W (AR Fm) 20,356,906 13,018,858 56.4%
Gross profit (RMB'000) EH (ANRHFT) 3,637,804 3,088,774 17.8%
Gross profit margin ESVIUES 17.9% 23.7% -5.8%
Gross profit from core businesses ZIEEEF
(RMB’000) (AR¥TFT) 3,046,300 2,609,493 16.7%
Gross profit margin from ZIOEFEEFZE
core businesses 15.7% 21.1% -5.4*
Profit (RMB'000) wA (NR T 1) 1,025,213 786,157 30.4%
Profit margin aa A 2R 5.0% 6.0% -1.0%
Profit attributable to equity HaFAE AELEH
shareholders (RMB'000) (ANE T 1) 729,124 726,982 0.3%
Basic earnings per share ERERRF
(RMB cents) (ANR#BD) 25.63 26.43 -3.0%
Diluted earnings per share SRE#EERT)
(RMB cents) (AR¥ED) 25.54 25.93 -1.5%
Interim dividends per share BRTHEE
(HK$ cents) CEAL) 14.75 11.00 34.1%
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Financial Highlights (continued)

55 4 B )

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL A5 IR DL # 1 2
POSITION
As at As at
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
7220214 1220204 Changes
6830H 12831H g
Total cash (including cash and W (BERER

cash equivalents and REEEYWUR

restricted bank deposits) ZIREIIRITER

(RMB'000) (ANR#TF ) 16,480,225 29,326,877 -43.8%
Total assets (RMB'000) HwEE (ANRETT 161,328,069 163,900,777 -1.6%
Total liabilities (RMB'000) wam (ARETTD 148,576,407 149,318,742 -0.5%
Total equity (including MarEs (BIEIFEREDR)

non-controlling interests) (AE T 1)

(RMB'000) 12,751,662 14,582,035 -12.6%
Total borrowings (RMB'000) wEE (ANRE®FT) 28,293,221 31,303,722 -9.6%
Net borrowings (RMB’'000) FEE (AR®TT) 11,812,996 1,976,845 497.6%
Current ratio™ TRENEEERM 109.5% 110.8% -1.3%
Net debt ratio® FRELEe 92.6% 13.6% 79.0*
Net asset value per share BREEFE

(RMB) (ANR¥T) 4.30 4.96 -13.3%
Equity attributable to equity HHRFEAEMER

shareholders (RMB) (ANR¥T) 3.27 3.87 -15.5%
Notes: * change in percentage points sk o o+ BoLhEE)

(1 calculated based on the Group's total current assets ) BEENERBEERNUERN
divided by the Group's total current liabilities wRsaEstgEEY
2) calculated as set out on pages 19 to 20 2 S EIBREFZRE19E208
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall performance

The Group is pleased to announce a growth in contracted
sales of heavy assets amounting to RMB31,053 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2021, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 3.5%. The cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposits of the Group in total amounted to
approximately RMB16,480 million as at 30 June 2021.

The Group has persisted in a prudent principle in financial
management, and maintained a reasonable level of borrowings.
As at 30 June 2021, net borrowings in total amounted to
approximately RMB11,813 million with net debt ratio of
approximately 92.6%. Among them, the interest-bearing liabilities
was approximately RMB28,293 million as at 30 June 2021,
representing a decrease of 9.6% from the end of 2020; the
interest-bearing liabilities due within one year was approximately
30.1% as at 30 June 2021, which was significantly lower than
48.7% as at the end of 2020; the average financing cost in the
first half of 2021 was approximately 7.6%, essentially flat with the
same period of last year.

The Group continued to implement a prudent approach to
acquire land and accelerated the project construction progress
S0 as to shorten the development cycle. During the six months
ended 30 June 2021, the Group delivered 43 property projects,
representing an increase of 13 projects over the same period of
2020. Besides, the Group owned 180 projects under development
during the six months ended 30 June 2021, representing an
increase of 8 projects over the same period of 2020. As a result,
there was a rise in revenue from the property development
business that was recognised upon delivery and according to
the completion schedule. The profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company for the six months ended 30 June
2021 was approximately RMB729 million, representing a slight
year-on-year increase.

JA 5 Il s

BBl

NEBMAREM > HE2021F6H30H LE7/X
BEEEEARHESERBER EAR
#310.53B 7t BB RAA3.5% KEME
R2021F6B30HNRE - REEBY AT
REIETERNBLENAE AR EK164.8018

g °©

AEBMEBRBEMBRID TRIFSENGE
BIKF o jA2021E68308 » FESEENA
ARM118.13B T FEBLEENA2.6%°
Heh>2021F6H30B B EBEREBABA
R 16282 9318 7T » 82020 K FE T79.6%;
20216 B3 0H—FRIANEEBEML
EE49730.1% > KR H 20205 K 8948.7%;
2021 E ¥ EFHRMERANET.6% BE
FRAEERRFEFE -

AEBEFEFRDIERE I BE R NRIE
ERZEERE UBEHREEH -BE
2021568308 1E 7318 B 74~ & B F #h 2 52 {4
15 B #4318 - 52020 B H 14 01318 > s
EEHE202156H308 L ANEANEREIE
B % 1801& > E220204F [7) HA 1% N8 M@ » AL 32
THEIDEARETEERINEERA £
Fo B E2021F 68308 LA EB QAT H#E
mEBA ARG ENNBARE729ET B
EEER SR MIE R o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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As at 30 June 2021, the property sales of the Group not
recognised was approximately RMB67,627 million with a
corresponding gross profit of approximately RMB10,414 million.
The amount is expected to be recognised as revenue and gross
profit in the next two to three years. In addition, the property
sales of the joint ventures and associates not recognised were
approximately RMB14,565 million with a corresponding gross
profit of approximately RMB2,519 million.

In addition to property sales, the Group is committed to
developing hotel, cultural tourism and green houses, so as to
diversify its businesses, expand its revenue base and disperse its
operational risks. The management believes that the injection of
part of the resources into these new businesses would improve
the Group's industry value-chain and the integration of its
businesses into interactive business segments such as property,
hotel, cultural tourism and green houses, which will enable it to
offer “tailor-made” services to its customers.

Revenue: The Group’'s revenue increased by 56.4% to
approximately RMB20,357 million for the six months ended 30
June 2021 from approximately RMB13,019 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, primarily due to an increase in the
GFA recognised and the average selling price for the current
period as compared with the same period of last year.

o Income from sales of properties: Income from property
sales increased by 57.0% to approximately RMB19,418
million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from
approximately RMB12,365 million for the six months ended
30 June 2020, which is due to an increase in the GFA
recognised by 49.4% to 2,663,313 sqg.m. for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 from 1,782,725 sg.m. for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, while the average selling price
(excluding underground parking spaces) increased by 9.8%
to RMB7,013 per sg.m. for the six months ended 30 June
2021 from RMB6,389 per sqg.m. for the six months ended 30
June 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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o Rental income: Income from property leasing increased
by 59.6% to approximately RMB92 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 from approximately RMB57
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020, which was
because the tenants of shopping malls and commercial
buildings of the Group have recovered from the impact of
the pandemic and the rental income has returned to the
normal level prior to the rental relief provided by the Group
last year.

o Revenue from hotel operation: Revenue from hotel
operation increased by 79.0% to approximately RMB166
million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from
approximately RMB92 million for the six months ended
30 June 2020, which was primarily due to the rising hotel
occupancy rates and dining demand, driven by the full
resumption of the tourism in Henan Province from the
pandemic last year.

o Revenue from provision of project management
service: Revenue from provision of project management
service was derived from operation and management
services provided by the Group for light-asset projects. The
revenue amounted to approximately RMB566 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2021, which was contributed by
Central China Management Company Limited (“CCMGT")
during the five months before its spin-off on 31 May 2021,
representing an increase of 22.6% from approximately
RMB462 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020.
The increase was mainly attributable to a rapid increase in
the GFA under management. CCMGT was independently
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 31 May 2021 (Stock Code: 9982.HK).
Except for one project, the Group has no longer provided
project management services for light-asset projects and
recognised revenue from provision of project management
services after the spin-off date.

Cost of sales: The Group's cost of sales increased by 68.4%
to approximately RMB16,719 million for the six months ended
30 June 2021 from approximately RMB9,930 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2020. The increase in cost of sales was
due to the increase in GFA recognised as mentioned above.

e FHETWA:YEBEEWRABREE2020
F6H308 EXEA N ARKE0S7RTT
EFA59.6%E2021F FHAM AR #50.92
B TE2HREAERHEREERKR
ENEFAEREETE HEWAMRE
N EFEERRRESAAES KT
FrEL »

e REBEERENWA I BELSERA
BE E2020FE6830 EANEALIAR
#0.92f8 7T EFH79.0%E2021E R ER LA
AR 166> BB AR
= NEFERENBSETE2EEIEE,
BHBEEATERBERNERLEFo

e IEHHEERHBEWKA G BEEEERHKWK
ARBAEBRAKLEEBEERENSE
BEEERB -BE2021FE6830H 1k
NERZBRARFTREESRAT
(TrhREZE ) H2021FE5831H 9
AN AEABMAR AR5 66ET
BE ZE2020F6 8308 LENEA LA A
R4 622 TTAEEE EF122.6% > = EH
RETEBBIRRIEMAAR REZ
(B8R E (BREMHEI - 9982.HK) i?
2021F5A3IBEEAMERZMAER
RNBEERBIL LT AEBR SRR
Br—EEBN FEEEREEIEF
BIERBRWEVIEE BERFBUA ©

HERAE  AEBNHEERABEZE2020
F6H308 1E/AE B AIARE99.30 T L7+
68.4%E2021FE RN AR EE167.19E T 0
HEMA EANRRA LM e 4S8 m A g
AR ER o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Gross profit: The Group’s gross profit increased by 17.8%
to approximately RMB3,638 million for the six months ended
30 June 2021 from approximately RMB3,089 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2020, while our gross profit margin
decreased by 5.8 percentage points from 23.7% for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 to 17.9% for the six months ended
30 June 2021. It was primarily because that 1) the Group adopted
de-stocking strategies in some cities to stimulate sales of various
projects during the current period, which narrowed the range
of overall sales mark-up; 2) property projects sold at discount
during the outbreak of the pandemic last year were delivered
and recognised during the current period, which resulted in a
decrease of the gross profit margin of overall sales of properties
from 21.1% for the six months ended 30 June 2020 to 15.7% for
the current period.

Other revenue: Other revenue decreased by 23.1% to
approximately RMB131 million for the six months ended 30 June
2021 from approximately RMB170 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2020. This was primarily due to a decrease in
interest income.

Other net income: Other net income decreased by 63.6% to
RMB190 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from
approximately RMB522 million for the six months ended 30 June
2020. This was primarily due to a decrease of approximately
RMB858 million in the gain from deemed disposals and
disposals of joint ventures, which was offset by an increase of
approximately RMB359 million in the gain from deemed disposals
and disposals of subsidiaries and an increase of approximately
RMB80 million in net exchange gains/(losses).

Selling and marketing expenses: Our selling and marketing
expenses decreased by 14.8% to approximately RMB773 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from approximately
RMB907 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. In
the first half of the year, the Company did not incur part of
the advertising expenses for football sponsorships, resulting
in a decrease of approximately RMB223 million in advertising
expenses for the sports. Meanwhile, staff costs, including sales
commissions, increased by approximately RMB83 million due to
the increase in contract sales activities and operating income
this year. The rate for the selling and marketing expenses to its
revenue decreased by 3.2 percentage points to approximately
3.8% for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from approximately
7.0% for the same period in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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General and administrative expenses: Our general and
administrative expenses decreased by 4.1% to approximately
RMB789 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from
approximately RMB823 million for the same period in 2020. This
was primarily due to a decrease of approximately RMB54 million
in staff costs, offset by an increase of approximately RMB27
million in legal and professional services fees. The rate for the
general and administrative expenses to its revenue decreased by
2.4 percentage points to approximately 3.9% for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 from approximately 6.3% for the same
period in 2020.

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables and
contract assets: Impairment losses on trade, other receivables
and contract assets decreased by 63.2% to approximately
RMB35 million for the six months ended 30 June 2021 from
approximately RMB95 million for the same period in 2020. This
was mainly because the balance of other receivables are mostly
deemed with no significant increase of credit risks as at the
end of the period and the provision of expected credit loss was
declined accordingly as compared with the same period of last
year.

Finance costs: Our finance costs increased by 25.7% to
approximately RMB464 million for the six months ended 30 June
2021 from approximately RMB370 million for the same period in
2020. This was mainly because 1) as a result the fluctuation of
RMB against USD during the current period, losses on the fair
value change of derivative financial instruments, such as forward
foreign exchange contracts, foreign exchange options and
foreign exchange swap contracts, amounted to approximately
RMB119 million (the same period in 2020: gain of approximately
RMB96 million); offset by 2) a decrease of approximately RMB120
million in interest expense on borrowings.

Share of profits less losses of associates: Our share of
profits of associates for the six months ended 30 June 2021
amounted to approximately RMB1 million, representing an
increase of RMB4 million from losses of approximately RMB3
million for the same period in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

o PR i 5L 57 ca)

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures: Our share
of profits of joint ventures for the six months ended 30 June
2021 amounted to approximately RMB69 million, representing an
increase of RMB110 million from losses of approximately RMB41
million for the same period in 2020.

Net valuation gains/(losses) on investment property:
A net valuation gain of approximately RMB97 million on our
investment properties for the six months ended 30 June 2021
was recorded by the Group. This was mainly due to the gradual
elimination of the impact of the epidemic in the same period of
2020, the improvement of the operation of the assessed property
in the first half of 2021, and the investment property recorded
overall revenue after revaluation.

Income tax: Income tax mainly comprises corporate income
tax and land appreciation tax. The Group’s income tax increased
by 54.8% to approximately RMB1,039 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 from approximately RMB671 million for
the same period in 2020. This was mainly due to an increase
in income tax as a result of an increase in sales income of
properties recognised during the current period.

Profit for the period: As a result of the foregoing, our profit
amounted to approximately RMB1,025 million for the six months
ended 30 June 2021, representing an increase of 30.4% from
approximately RMB786 million for the the same period in 2020.

Financial resources and utilisation: As at 30 June 2021, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
RMB10,872 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB22,619 million). Subsequent to the reporting period, the
Company announced to distribute an interim dividend of
approximately RMB364 million in total to the shareholders of
the Company in relation to profit attributable to the six months
ended 30 June 2021 (30 June 2020: approximately RMB279
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Structure of Borrowings and Deposits

The Group continued to adopt a prudent principle on financial
management and centralise our funding and financial
management. Therefore, we maintained a reasonable level of
cash and borrowings. During the period, we have successfully
issued three senior notes with a total principal amount of US$460
million. As at 30 June 2021, the repayment schedule of the
Group's bank and other borrowings was as follows:

fis 55 B A7 K &k
AEBEEERFEEREBVRI £EHESH
MHEEE AESUEFSEREMMEEK
TR RMPELSRINETIELAEEGH
4.6BETEBILERE -R2021F68308 > &
EERTREMEENERFHUOT :

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1220214 20205
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
Repayment Schedule BETEH AR¥T T ARBTFIT
Bank loans RITE™R
Within one year —FR 2,879,337 3,612,904
More than one year, but not —E FBXRBBAME
exceeding two years 1,700,870 751,655
More than two years, but not MEM FBRBBAE
exceeding five years 1,630,980 889,375
More than five years Bl hE 225,000 247,095
6,436,187 5,501,029
Other loans HihfEmR
Within one year —FR 1,557,534 1,443,900
More than one year, but not —FE EBXRBBME
exceeding two years 420,000 1,163,000
1,977,534 2,606,900
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

As at As at
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1120214 20204
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Repayment Schedule EMER ARBTT ARBTT
Corporate bonds REMES
Within one year —FR 1,500,000 2,999,970
1,500,000 2,999,970
Senior notes BRER
Within one year —FR 2,588,896 7,201,463
More than one year, but not —FEM EBXRBBME
exceeding two years 5,123,588 1,942,754
More than two years, but not MEMN FERBBAE
exceeding five years 10,667,016 11,051,606
18,379,500 20,195,823
Total borrowings fEE4E%E 28,293,221 31,303,722
Deduct: &
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY (10,872,215) (22,618,964)
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITFER (5,608,010) (6,707,913)
Net borrowings 2EE 11,812,996 1,976,845
Total equity iR 12,751,662 14,582,035
Net debt ratio (%) FEELEE%) 92.6% 13.6%

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & % f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PLIE B e B By )

Pledge of assets: As at 30 June 2021, we had pledged
restricted bank deposits, completed properties, properties
under development, properties for future development, plant
and equipment, and loan deposit with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB11,256 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB11,260 million) to secure general
bank credit facilities and other loans granted to us. We also
pledged properties for sale with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately RMB5,583 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB5,775 million) to secure loans granted to joint
ventures.

Contingent liabilities: As at 30 June 2021, we provided
guarantees of approximately RMB51,799 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB48,222 million) to banks in respect
of the mortgage loans provided by the banks to customers
who purchased the developed properties of the Group, its
joint ventures and its associates. We also provided guarantees
of approximately RMB6,824 million as at 30 June 2021 (31
December 2020: approximately RMB8,332 million) in respect of
bank loans and other loans of joint ventures and associates.

Capital commitment: As at 30 June 2021, we had contractual
commitments undertaken by subsidiaries, the performance
of which was underway or ready, in respect of property
development amounting to approximately RMB36,823 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB37,088 million), and we had
authorised, but not yet contracted for, a further approximately
RMB57,657 million (31 December 2020:. approximately
RMB49,439 million) in other expenditures in respect of property
development and capital investments.

BERWF : R2021FE6830H » HFHEIEHF
IREARELNAREE112.56f2 7T (20205128
31H : Y ARHE112.60127T) IR RHIRTT
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MER—RRTEEREREMERNIE
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HEVEFAGELEXERMNIEFTF

HABME : FHFIMN2021F6830H 7 IRITHE
BEAER AECEREREQTNEE
BYMENETFIRENZBEN > QRTRM
HANRM517.99M 7t (20205128310 1 4
AR 14822212 7T) BIHER - I IR FL20214F
6B30EM&E hEREEQBNRITER
K E A ERIR BN AR #68.24{8 7T (20205
12831H 9 AR #83.321E7T) MU R

B A KIE 1202168300 » I Y£R8
BEBIARE HXAEBRWB AR ZAIE
REFENEERBT £REN2 ARE368.23
E7T (20205128318 : 89 AR #370.881&
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NEMBINERALENA ARMES76.57
E7T (2020128318 | 9 AR 1494.39E
JT) °
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Foreign exchange risk: Our businesses are principally
conducted in RMB. The majority of our assets are denominated
in RMB. As at 30 June 2021, our major non-RMB assets and
liabilities are (i) bank deposits denominated in H.K. dollar;
and (ii) the senior notes denominated in U.S. dollar. We are
subject to foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated
in currencies other than RMB. Considering the main income
stream of the Group denominated in RMB, we have changed
the currency to repay the principal and interest of the US$200
million Senior Notes issued in 2016 into RMB through a foreign
exchange swap contract, and locked the exchange rate of the
net investment denominated in RMB and with an equivalent
amount of US$750 million through foreign exchange forward
contracts.

Interest rate risk: The interest rates for a portion of our loans
were floating. Upward fluctuation in interest rates will increase
the interest cost of new and existing loans. We currently do not
use derivative instruments to hedge their interest rate risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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I

Market Review

1.

The Macro-economic Environment

In the first half of 2021, the overall recovery of the
global epidemic situation and the positive monetary
stimulus policies led to surging global inflation,
exacerbating imported inflation in China. Facing the
complicated and volatile environment from domestic
and overseas, all local departments earnestly
implemented the decisions and arrangements of the
central leadership and the State Council under the
strong leadership of the CPC Central Committee led
by Comrade Xi Jinping, and continued to consolidate
and strengthen the achievements in the prevention
and control of epidemic situation and economic
and social development. By precisely implementing
macroeconomic policies, Chinese economy kept
steadily recovering, with strong production demand
rebounding, new growth drivers growing swiftly, and
steady improvements of quality and efficiency. The
overall market was expected to have a positive trend,
with the main macroeconomic indicators within a
reasonable range. The economic development was
steadily advancing with positive growth prospects.
In the first half of 2021, China achieved a GDP of
RMB53,216.7 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 12.7%, at comparable prices.

Since the beginning of 2021, under the guidance
of Xi Jinping thought on socialism with Chinese
characteristics for a new era and under the leadership
of the Henan Provincial Committee and Henan
Provincial Government, the whole province did
solid job of epidemic prevention and control as well
as economic and social development. In the first
half of 2021, Henan has made effort in maintaining
both supply and demand in order to achieve steady
recovery with prosperous trend, narrowing the gap
of growth in terms of main development indicators
between Henan Province and the Chinese average,
with accelerating average growth rate in last two
years, while some indicators recorded a higher
growth in June 2021. As a result, Henan's GDP in first
half of 2021 reached RMB2,892.8 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 10.2%.
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The Property Market

In the first half of 2021, the national property market
continued the trend of last year end. The property
sales maintained steady growth and the property
development and investment grew swiftly, while
the market sentiment in major cities remained high.
Both the central government and local governments
intensively issued regulatory policies to stabilise
the market expectations, while the regulations from
the central government focus more on the supply
side, such as enhancing the financial governance,
shifting the authority of land premium collection to
tax authority. On the other hand, local governments
stepped up to establish the land and housing linkage
mechanism, where major cities implemented a
centralised land-sale programme. With tightening
regulations on the second hand property market and
tightening controls on granting property mortgage
loans, mortgage interest rate rose and the effect of
regulations has manifested in certain cities.

In the first half of 2021, the GFA of properties sold
in China amounted to 890 million sg.m, the property
sales in China amounted to RMB9.3 trillion and
the investment in property development in China
amounted to RMB7.2 trillion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 27.7%, 38.9% and 15.0% respectively.
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In the first half of 2021, Henan Province proactively
coordinated the arrangement for both epidemic
prevention and control, and achieved economic and
social development. It adhered to the positioning of
“housing is for accommodation, not for speculation”,
and ensured the policies to be implemented by each
city, so as to assure its own the responsibilities of
cities. In the first three months of 2021, the scale of
property transactions in Henan Province increased
slightly, followed by the implementation of the
centralised land-sale programme by Zhengzhou and
Luoyang, which aimed to control the land supply,
and together with the centralised control measures
of property mortgage loans to tighten the grant of
mortgage loans by banks. Thus, the property market
in Henan Province became rational. In the first half
of 2021, the GFA of property sold in Henan Province
amounted to 62.24 million sq.m, the property sales
in Henan Province amounted to RMB421.5 billion and
the investment in property development in Henan
Province amounted to RMB373.0 billion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 14.3%, 19.2% and 11.5%
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Market Outlook

1.

The Macro-economic Landscape

In the first half of 2021, the national economy
witnessed a steady recovery with the solid growth.
However, the rapidly changing global pandemic
situation may result in high external uncertainties and
an unbalanced recovery of the domestic economy,
for which more efforts are required to stabilise
the recovery and growth. In the second half of the
year, the macro policies are expected to maintain
continuity. Monetary policy will be adjusted and
controlled in a flexible way, and fiscal policy will be
implemented in a targeted and effective way. China
will continue to deepen supply-side structural reforms
with a focus on unlocking the potential of domestic
demand, and the construction of major projects in
the “14th Five-Year Plan” will be promoted. China will
improve the implementation of the system for regular
transfer of direct fiscal funds to ease the difficulties
of enterprises and support their development
vigorously. China will coordinate all work to ensure
that the economy will operate within an appropriate
range and solid progress will be made in high quality
development.

In the first half of the year, Henan Province has
accelerated its progress in economic recovery with
consolidated foundation, optimised structure and
strengthened momentum, laying a sound foundation
for achieving the annual economic development
goals. However, there was still room for the balanced
economic recovery throughout the Henan Province.
In the second half of the year, the Henan Province
will enhance the sense of urgency, crisis and
responsibility. It will, based on current circumstances,
not only provide better services to enterprises and
more support for their development, but also solve
their prominent problems and bottlenecks and fully
unlock the idle and existing resources potential. At
the meantime, the planning and construction of major
projects will be promoted actively and more drivers
will be created for the development in the future. The
balanced economic recovery throughout the Henan
Province as well as the foundation for economic
recovery will be strengthened and consolidated,
which improve the quality and speed of the economic
growth in Henan province.
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Property Market Outlook

In the second half of 2021, it is expected that the
regulation and control policies of the property
market will remain to be tightening, with continuous
focusing on managing supply and demand policy and
probably intensifying financial supervision, including
rise in mortgage interest rates, and further control of
second-hand property market. Regulatory measures
may be further strengthened in certain cities with
high market sentiment. With the adjustment of land
auction rules for major cities where centralised
land-sale programme are implemented, the land
market may cool down, which may further stabilise
market expectations. Furthermore, with the further
effectiveness of regulatory policies, property
purchasers are expected to become more reasonable,
and the growth of national commercial property
sales will continue to slow down. However, it is still
expected to hit a new high throughout the year based
on achievements made in the first half of the year.

In the second half of 2021, Henan Province will
continue to adhere to the positioning of “housing is
for accommodation, not for speculation” and insist
on implementing city-based policies, to realise the
main responsibility of local governments, to govern
the development of the property leasing market, to
improve the housing guarantee system, to maintain
the continuity and stability of the financial policies
in property market, to strengthen the supervision
of the fund inflow to the property market, and to
promote the steady and healthy development of
the property market. With the new urbanisation
development in Luoyang, Zhengzhou and Luoyang will
become the main center and sub-center respectively
among the city clusters of Central China under the
“Double Cores” development model. The first batch
of centralised land supply projects in Zhengzhou and
Luoyang are expected to enter the market at the end
of 2021 and the overall property market is expected
to increase in volume and stabilise in price. With
industry concentration and regional differentiation,
the hot cities with good fundamentals are the focus of
investment for property developers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

The Company actively drove property sales and achieved
steady growth in sales performance. As of 30 June 2021, the
contracted sales amount of heavy assets of the Company was
approximately RMB31.053 billion, and the contracted GFA of
heavy assets was approximately 4.0515 million sg.m., a year-
on-year increase of 3.5% and 9.9% respectively. In terms of the
contracted sales amount, the market share of the Company as at
30 June 2021 in Henan Province was 7.3%.

J7 Wb e 5 5 46 DL
RABIBIBIEERHEHE  HEXERS
BR-HE2021F68B30H AR BREE
EGRHEESBENAREI053ET &&
EARHEmBELNL05.158F 5K BED
AR R35%MI.9% - RERERETE AR
BEE2021FE6B30EE A MmEMBHAE X
#7.3%°

Contracted sales Contracted
amount GFA
BHHESSE BHHEER
(RMB million) ('000 sg.m.)
ANREBEET) (FFAHK

1H2021 1H2020 Change 1H2021 1H2020 Change

2021%F 20204 2021%F 20204
City s EFFE  E¥F gE L¥F L¥F Ba)
Zhengzhou P 5,784 9,053 -36% 475 538 -12%
Kaifeng :E=) 875 429 104% 120 86 40%
Luoyang %5 3,643 2,493 46% 356 298 19%
Pingdingshan FIEW 384 1,140 -66% 46 190 -76%
Anyang %5 2,384 1,721 39% 432 260 66%
Hebi BEE 769 632 22% 124 91 36%
Xinxiang 4B 1,442 1,687 -15% 263 261 1%
Jiaozuo =E 1,375 758 81% 197 128 54%
Puyang i 1,434 1,039 38% 250 164 52%
Xuchang =] 1,147 1,170 -2% 168 186 -10%
Luohe B 1,195 491 143% 165 77 114%
Sanmenxia = Pl 307 581 —47% 59 102 ~42%
Shanggiu mE 2,805 2,314 21% 373 349 7%
Zhoukou AN 2,162 1,261 71% 319 199 60%
Zhumadian BEE 2,166 1,691 28% 315 291 8%
Nanyang =l 700 1,366 —49% 101 170 -41%
Xinyang =5 1,598 1,018 57% 222 155 43%
Jiyuan R 442 1,018 -57% 45 134 -66%
Hainan I 441 154 186% 22 8 175%
Total =Xl 31,053 30,016 3% 4,052 3,687 10%
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NEWLY COMMENCED PROPERTY PROJECTS

During the reporting period, the Company commenced the
construction of 28 projects in total with newly commenced GFA
of 3,322,000 sg.m., representing a decrease of 27% compared
with that of the corresponding period of last year. The Company
adhered to determining the sales-based production to ensure
the match among supply, sales and inventory. It managed project
commencements based on the geographical distribution of
customers and estimated sales, which enabled the Group to
further enhance the competitiveness and market performance
of its products, and maintain a safe and reasonable inventory
structure.

7% 4t bR 0 H A D

REHRRN ARFHB2EEEHTER
WA TEAI2.2BF K BREAFRPT
[£27% XABRFUBEEE  BREHE
Ui RIBEZER DML BEHEBERETH
TEE AINE—SPRATERERRS
IMBHREF X REAFRFZE2EENE
FiERg

Newly
Principal commenced
use of GFA for the 1H
City Project name property (sgq.m.)
txE
MIE®E
] HEAE TEYEERY (FEFHR)
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou J18 Commercial 233,082
I ERPNI18 [EES
Kaifeng Lankao CCRE Mall Commercial 9,928
ES) & B R EES
Luoyang Luoyang Dachengxiaoyuan Residential 72,781
&b 7% B R I T=E
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace Residential 67,908
=1 7% b5 T SR T
Anyang Anyang Chinoiserie Palace North Garden Residential 170,001
2[5 Z iR T IEE F=
Anyang Linzhou Jianye City Residential 178,176
2[5 RN R ZE I F=
Anyang Anyang Jianye City Residential 85,616
25 Z G 2E T=E
Anyang Hua County Honour Mansion Residential 78,313
25 BREN FE
Hebi Hebi Longmen No.7 Courtyard Residential 150,006
BeEE BSBEREFIZR SR b T=E
Hebi Hebi Flower Creek Town Residential 137,118
B EE BSBEAE R /N A T
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Jianye Mansion Residential 136,618
=X (= EIEEERN F=
Puyang Puyang Longcheng Residential 142,125
RS PSRRI F=
Puyang Puyang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 18,481
4 R A F=E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Newly
Principal commenced
use of GFA for the 1H
City Project name property (sg.m.)
ExE
MIE®E
] HE4AE TEYEEY (FEFHRK)
Luohe Luohe Longhushuxiang Mansion Residential 260,995
B BB NER R e
Luohe Luohe Art Mansion Residential 146,082
2o BRI SR T
Luohe Luohe Dream City Residential 134,846
2 YRR IR AR I =
Sanmenxia Yima Chinoiserie Palace Residential 123,544
=PI REHEMA T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Chinoiserie Palace Residential 147,377
[zl R T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Yuelong Mansion Residential 282,574
5] S iR e AT e
Shanggiu Minguan Long Mansion Residential 148,434
mE RN e
Zhoukou Zhoukou Hill Water Lake City Residential 30,839
A JB X WL 7RG Ik T
Zhoukou Huaiyang Binhe Courtyard Residential 1,258
A RGBT B F =
Zhoukou Taikang Jianye City North Courtyard Residential 1,315
= KEEZERICMR F=
Zhoukou Xiangcheng Jianye City Residential 74,674
A TE I 2R 0 F=
Zhumadian Shangcai Jianye Mansion Residential 111,003
HEIE k- 3= 05 T=E
Zhumadian Zhumadian Chinoiserie Palace Residential 198,390
HEIE HEEEAS FE
Nanyang Nanyang Art Mansion Residential 49,645
Bl ElCEES T
Xinyang Luoshan Jianye Mansion Residential 130,480
B B = 130,480
Total 3,321,609
=5
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PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

As of 30 June 2021, the Company had 180 projects under
development with a total GFA of approximately 32,259,000
sg.m., including 24, 153 and 3 projects under development in
Zhengzhou, other cities in Henan Province and Hainan Province
respectively.

P b e S H

B E2021F6830H A ABEEIEH180
B LR BN 2418 RIS H
153EREHEE ERERRAEROA
322598 F A K-

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EERER
WH HE 4 TEMEEY (FFK)
Zhengzhou Dengfeng Songyue Mansion Residential 194,554
EL N T YO F=
Zhengzhou Gongyi CCRE Mall Residential 37,775
BB N ERBEWKM FE
Zhengzhou Gongyi Spring Time Residential 256,442
EL N BEREXRE F=
Zhengzhou Gongyi Chinoiserie Palace Residential 160,870
BB N BHRUEMNA T=
Zhengzhou Financial Island Commercial 838,863
EL N TS (SES
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Jianye Tihome International City Residential 1,204,319
BB N B 322 2 2 7 B PR 3 FE
Zhengzhou Xinmi Spring Time Residential 74,639
EL N mEEXRE F=
Zhengzhou Xinmi Code One City Residential 81,159
BB N = SRR T=
Zhengzhou Xinzheng Blue Ocean Zhengfeng Residential 176,441
EL N IR BEL A F=
Zhengzhou Xinzheng Tianhui City Residential 152,455
BB N 3 280 O B 3 T=
Zhengzhou Xingyang Central Garden Residential 178,264
EB N il NS T=E
Zhengzhou Zhengxi U-Town Residential 305,863
BB N B 775 Bk B T Ak FE
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou J18 Commercial 594,289
ZR N ERINI18 EES
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Chengyuan Residential 446,928
BB N EB N 18 [E T=
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Spring Time Residential 52,185
ZR N ENEXRE F=
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Riverside House Residential 252,495
BB N BB PN AT B ¥ B T=
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHRK)
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Huayuankou resettlement area Residential 293,154
(Huihua New City)
ZBN BMNTEEOZE& (BIEHR) FE
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Blossom Garden Residential 456,158
EION EMNTEEE F=
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential 231,202
ZBN BB PN B 4F A BT FE
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Intelligent Square Commercial 230,205
EION BRI 1 192 [ 35 [SES
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Intelligent Palace Residential 15,238
ZBN BB i 1% /= FE
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Royal Mansion Residential 221,557
EION ER N B 1R AT F=
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Art Mansion Residential 352,303
ZBN EBMFTER FE
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Wonderland Residential 134,829
EION EEINE IR F=
Kaifeng Kaifeng Jianye Country Garden Majestic Mansion Residential 177,333
EES) Rt EEEEERE F=
Kaifeng Lankao CCRE Mall Residential 99,109
ESES) BEEER &Nl F=
Kaifeng Lankao Red World Commercial 135,312
EE) & ALK EES
Kaifeng Tongxu Jianye City Residential 113,712
ESES) BETEEW F=
Kaifeng Tongxu Code One City Residential 246,897
EES) TS TR FR F=
Luoyang Luanchuan Luanzhou Palace Residential 92,980
1 84115 N T F=
Luoyang Luoyang Binhelong House Residential 237,424
& & b3 B RIS FE
Luoyang Luoyang Dachengxiaoyuan Residential 221,286
1 7% B R\ F=
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace Residential 694,117
& 7% % T SR T FE
Luoyang Luoyang Code Two City Residential 392,174
1 7% b5 BUSIR I3 3R F=
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHK)
Luoyang Luoyang Fengdu Residential 154,414
&5 & B I E T=E
Luoyang Luoyang Technology City Residential 157,018
&b & B R 3 =
Luoyang Luoyang Longcheng Dongwang Residential 129,342
&5 BRI R F=
Luoyang Luoyang Zzhongzhou Mansion Residential 124,279
& BB INAT T=E
Luoyang Luoyang Honour Mansion Residential 190,036
&5 &P E T F=
Luoyang Yanshi Forest Peninsula Residential 38,127
&b EENHFMFE =
Luoyang Yichuan Dragon Mansion Residential 238,594
&5 HI1BER F=
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Spring Time Residential 340,407
TIELW TIELEXRE T=E
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Guangming Mansion Residential 138,374
TFIELW FIELWYERAR F=
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Eighteen Cities Residential 178,422
TIEW FIEW+ N\ T
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Honour Mansion Residential 105,813
TFIELW TIELER F=
Pingdingshan Ruzhou Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 77,964
TIELW VN A T=E
Pingdingshan Wugang CCRE Mall Residential 29,496
TIEW =SR] F=
Pingdingshan Wugang Jianye Country Garden Jade County Residential 80,973
TIELW EiEEETEIERES T=E
Pingdingshan Wugang Forest Peninsula Residential 191,533
TFIELW EMBMEE F=
Anyang Anyang Phoenix City North Bank Residential 257,353
Z b5 %25 BRI 6 = T=E
Anyang Anyang Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 190,419
2[5 Z G EE F=
Anyang Anyang Jianye City Residential 304,073
Z[5 2[5 =
Anyang Anyang Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential 77,830
2[5 2[5 E # KB F=
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B B 5 B o B

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHRK)
Anyang Anyang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 5,124
2[5 22 [t A0 F=
Anyang Anyang Chinoiserie Palace North Garden Residential 281,479
25 Zbm I E T=E
Anyang Anyang Sky Mansion Residential 71,078
2[5 ZERE F=
Anyang Anyang Tonghe Palace Residential 208,728
25 25BN T=E
Anyang Anyang Code One City Residential 261,542
2[5 Z 5= SR F=
Anyang Linzhou Jianye City Residential 178,176
25 RN 22 22 3 T=E
Anyang Hua County Honour Mansion Residential 78,313
2[5 BREN F=
Anyang Tangyin Central Garden Residential 143,968
25 il YN T=E
Hebi Hebi Chinoiserie Palace Residential 224,546
feEE S EEE AN AT T=E
Hebi Hebi Code One City Residential 92,187
BeEE ESBE S SR FR T
Hebi Hebi Zhenyuehui Residential 105,832
i EE REBEERIRIE F=
Hebi Hebi Longmen No.7 Courtyard Residential 150,006
BeEE BSBEREFIZR SR b =
Hebi Hebi Flower Creek Town Residential 137,118
i EE REBEIEE/N\E F=
Hebi Qi County Jianye City Residential 139,140
BeEE R =
Xinxiang Beverly Manor Residential 265,060
4 ELER]HE F=
Xinxiang Fenggiu Central Garden Residential 89,278
H 4 HEREE T=E
Xinxiang Hui County Spring Time Residential 21,455
4 EHEXRE F=
Xinxiang Hui County Gongcheng Dongwang Residential 209,951
Gk HeE R LI R 2 =
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHK)
Xinxiang Hui County Code One City Residential 187,800
H 4R 1 5% = SR I FR T=E
Xinxiang Weihui Spring Time Residential 206,449
H 40 BEEXRE T
Xinxiang Xinxiang Blossom Garden Residential 108,774
40 HBIEEE F=
Xinxiang Xinxiang U-Town Residential 127,100
48 40 55k R R I T=E
Xinxiang Xinxiang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 630,563
40 40 18 A0 AT F=
Xinxiang Changyuan Forest Peninsula Courtyard Residential 191,922
48 RIEBHMFE L T=E
Jiaozuo Bo'ai Spring Time Residential 237,450
E1E BEEXE F=
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Spring Time Residential 73,299
=X (S BEEEXRE T=E
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Chinoiserie Palace Residential 128,215
E1E EET AT F=
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Jianye Mansion Residential 136,618
=X (S EIREERN T=E
Jiaozuo Mengzhou Jianye Mansion Residential 110,791
E1E o IR ZE T F=
Jiaozuo Wen County Spring Time Residential 18,868
=X mARERE T=E
Jiaozuo Wuzhi Majestic Mansion Residential 177,787
E1E Ep R E F=
Jiaozuo Wuzhi Star Mall Residential 137,061
=X EBy 2 X T=E
Puyang Puyang Jianye New City Residential 107,598
RS RS IR ZEFTI F=
Puyang Puyang Longcheng Residential 365,455
i FERZ BRI T=E
Puyang Puyang Puyuan Residential 149,180
RS EBEE F=
Puyang Puyang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 237,571
el RS A AT T
Puyang Puyang Tonghe Palace Residential 83,414
RS RS A A T F=
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B B 5 B o B

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHRK)
Puyang Puyang Code One City Residential 57,989
RS RS S SRR F=
Puyang Puyang Zhenyuehui Residential 214,000
i PR ER IR B T=E
Puyang Taigian Jianrun House Residential 77,881
RS BAIEEN F=
Xuchang Xiangcheng CCRE Mall Residential 280,245
= E SRSl T=E
Xuchang Xuchang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 57,706
= 5T & A AT T=E
Xuchang Xuchang Pleasure Garden Residential 265,417
= FFE N a%E T=E
Xuchang Xuchang Zhenyuehui Residential 156,147
= FFERINE T=E
Xuchang Yanling Eco-City Residential 156,385
= BO B 4 RE T I T=E
Xuchang Yuzhou Spring Time Residential 97,986
e BMNEKXRE T=E
Xuchang Yuzhou Dachengxiaoyuan Residential 84,140
Eid=] BN A/ T
Xuchang Changge Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden New City  Residential 142,834
= EEBEE# T=E
Xuchang Changge Forest Eco-City Residential 33,178
= RERZ LR T=E
Luohe Linying Forest Peninsula Residential 147,622
| BEERMEE T=E
Luohe Luohe Danjiang House Residential 80,081
2o S b DA T
Luohe Luohe Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 144,533
ot B EE T=E
Luohe Luohe Blossom Garden Residential 172,443
2o BRI TEE B T
Luohe Luohe Xicheng Forest Peninsula Residential 219,427
| ESEIEE R LY = T=E
Luohe Luohe Longhushuxiang Mansion Residential 260,995
2o BB ERIN T
Luohe Luohe Art Mansion Residential 146,082
ot BRI R T=E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PLIE B e B By )

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHK)
Luohe Luohe Dream City Residential 134,846
ot R IR A8 I T=E
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia Jianye City Residential 7,118
=PIl =PIl ZEN T=E
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia New District Forest Peninsula Residential 14,420
=PI =P ERMFE T=E
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia Honour Mansion Residential 70,564
=PIl =FIRZE T T=E
Sanmenxia Yima Chinoiserie Palace Residential 213,509
=PI REHEMA T=E
Shanggiu Minguan Happy Place Residential 136,585
e RiE=EE T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Chengyuan Residential 181,904
ma mEEE T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Central Garden Residential 95,892
[iZfa BmEAEE T
Shangagiu Shanggiu Blossom Garden Residential 64,578
[zl mEIEEE T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Eighteen Cities Residential 153,332
e 4\ 3% T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Sky Mansion Residential 978
ma BEXE T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Future City Residential 115,515
e 7 T R BRI T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Art Mansion Residential 233,229
ma EEME T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Headquarter Port Residential 108,052
[iZfa AR E A T
Shanggiu Sui County Shangheyuan Residential 108,649
ma i3 i T=E
Shanggiu Xiayi Jianye City Residential 183,254
e BEEEEN T=E
Shangagiu Yucheng Hill Water Lake City Residential 338,693
ma = 3k L 7KGHR 350 T=E
Shanggiu Zhecheng Lianmeng Dongwang Residential 83,747
e TR B BR SR 2 T=E
Shanggiu Shanggiu Chinoiserie Palace Residential 147,377
[zl R T=E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sq.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHRK)
Shanggiu Minguan Long Mansion Residential 148,434
s R HETRIT F=
Shanggiu Shanggiu Yuelong Mansion Residential 282,574
[E)as S iR e AT T=E
Zhoukou Fugou Jianye New City Residential 159,826
B KIBEZENW =
Zhoukou Huaiyang CCRE Mall Residential 100,554
= VEE S B I K 3t F=
Zhoukou Luyi Jianye City Residential 98,143
B FEE e
Zhoukou Luyi Mingdao City Residential 17,524
A fEE 2 R IE 1% T=E
Zhoukou Shangshui Yangcheng Courtyard Residential 15,311
AN P 7K 5 3 £ B T=E
Zhoukou Taikang Eco-City Residential 59,465
A0 KEEEHW T=E
Zhoukou Taikang Happy Place Residential 130,194
B KEERE T
Zhoukou Xihua Central Garden Residential 15,206
= FAELEE F=
Zhoukou Xihua Jicheng Courtyard Residential 30,103
A0 FaEEE I FBT T=E
Zhoukou Xiangcheng Jianye City Residential 30,298
B T 2R 0 =
Zhoukou Huaiyang Binhe Courtyard Residential 299,027
AN FERZ BRI B F T=E
Zhoukou Zhoukou Jianye City Residential 382,367
B B O F=
Zhoukou Zhoukou Hill Water Lake City Residential 307,303
A B O L 7KGEA I T=E
Zhoukou Zhoukou Chinoiserie Palace Residential 229,124
= /B Ot A A F=
Zhoukou Zhoukou Shiyue Mansion Residential 35,319
A0 B O IR AT F=E
Zhumadian Pingyu Central Garden Residential 122,145
RIS THARE T=E
Zhumadian Runan Jianye City Residential 137,305
B SIS R Y, F=
Zhumadian Suiping Jianye City Residential 144,893
HEIE B F=E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PLIE B e B By )

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
EEER
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHK)
Zhumadian Suiping Forest Peninsula Residential 40,386
B IS BEZMEE T=E
Zhumadian Xiping Spring Time Residential 106,560
RIS AFrEXE T
Zhumadian Xincai CCRE Mall Residential 59,987
B IS EAE- =P Nz T=E
Zhumadian Xincai Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 144,237
RIS MEEER T
Zhumadian Zhengyang lianye City Residential 51,724
HEIE ERR 2 T=E
Zhumadian Zhumadian Binhelong Palace Residential 139,231
BEIE 5 55 15 B R BE T T=E
Zhumadian Zhumadian Spring Time Residential 697,844
HEIE HEEERE T=E
Zhumadian Zhumadian Eighteen Cities Residential 133,822
BEIE BHRIE+T/AW T=E
Zhumadian Zhumadian Chinoiserie Palace Residential 463,539
BEEIE 5 BRI T=E
Zhumadian Zhumadian The West Lake Villa Residential 34,312
RIS HEEEANTE T
Zhumadian Zhumadian Honour Mansion Residential 151,330
BEEIE HEIEER F=
Zhumadian Shangcai Jianye Mansion Residential 111,003
BSIE LR EER T=E
Nanyang Fangcheng Jianye Country Garden-Dragon Bay Residential 89,919
Bl FiEEEER-HEEE T=E
Nanyang Nanyang Central Garden Residential 47,722
Bl El NS T
Nanyang Nanyang Longyue City Residential 656,741
Bl L T=E
Nanyang Nanyang Art Mansion Residential 189,098
Bl ElCEES T
Nanyang Xixia Central Garden Residential 71,217
Bl i) NSS! T=E
Xinyang Gushi Future City Residential 142,146
&% [E] 48 R SR Ik T=E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BB E S5t am B M )

GFA
Principal under
use of development
City Project name property (sg.m.)
TEEE
] HE 4B TEMEER (FEFHRK)
Xinyang Huaibin County Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 115,371
= EEEE T=E
Xinyang Huangchuan Huangguo Palace Residential 173,542
= =) | E B T=E
Xinyang Shangcheng Jianye City Residential 73,783
= 7o Ik 2R 0 F=
Xinyang Xi County Jianye New City Residential 111,825
5 BREZENW =
Xinyang Xinyang Mansion Residential 365,110
&% EFEHT F=
Xinyang Xinyang Jianye City Residential 193,630
5 ElFEEN =
Xinyang Luoshan Jianye Mansion Residential 130,480
= B F=
Jiyuan Jiyuan Spring Time Residential 98,014
R EREXRE T=E
Jiyuan Jiyuan Blossom Garden Residential 283,753
R ERIEEE F=
Jiyuan Jiyuan Jianye City Residential 457,856
R IR ZE T
Jiyuan Jiyuan Code One City Majestic Mansion Residential 64,094
R BEIRE SRR E T=E
Hainan Chengmai Zhonghe Jiayuan Residential 19,966
sl HBEPMNRE T=E
Hainan Danzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential 95,371
B8E N B # K P F=
Hainan Dongfang Jiayuan Residential 376,636
B RAEE =
Total 32,258,591
=5
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PLIE B e B By )

PROPERTY PROJECTS DELIVERED
As of 30 June 2021, the Company had 43 projects delivered in
total, with a GFA of approximately 3,688,000 sg.m..

i e 22 A S H

B E2021F6830H AR B HALIEIEE

AT BEERAIB368.8B T 5K

Principal GFA
use of delivered
City Project name property (sg.m.)
RAER
] HERE TEYRERY (EARK)
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Blossom Garden Residential 39,678
ZB BINTERE =
Zhengzhou Zhengxi U-Town Residential 137,006
ZBIN ER PG H R I FE
Zhengzhou Gongyi Spring Time Phrase Il Residential 57,309
ZB BERBRRE=H =
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Wulong Century New City Residential 319,049
ZBIN EB 9N F BRI FE
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou CCRE Tihome International City Residential 136,000
ZB BB 9N 32 2 2 7R- BU PR Ik =
Kaifeng Kaifeng Blossom Garden Residential 49,238
EES) HESRARES =
Kaifeng Qi County Blossom Garden Residential 42,330
:E=) EHIEREE =
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace Residential 191,686
el BT R FE
Luoyang Luoyang Technology City Residential 127,596
&b BRI =
Luoyang Luoyang Longcheng Dongwang Residential 77,644
el BEREMRE FE
Pingdingshan Wugang Forest Peninsula Residential 33,394
FIEW FHAMFS =
Pingdingshan Ruzhou CCRE Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 22,671
FIELW WM EEER FE
Anyang Anyang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 191,885
2 Z BT =
Anyang Anyang lianye City Residential 85,555
25 e =
Anyang Anyang Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 69,511
2 2R =
Anyang Hua County Code One City Residential 251,803
20 BERS R FE
Anyang Tangyin Forest Peninsula Residential 82,444
2[5 HERMEE =
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

Principal GFA
use of delivered
City Project name property (sg.m.)
RftER
] HEAE TEYRERY (EARRK)
Xinxiang Xinxiang Spring Time Residential 83,167
EiIg il MAEXRE F=E
Xinxiang Hui County Spring Time Residential 44,158
M EHRERE FE
Xinxiang Beverly Manor Residential 194,422
EiIg il ELERFH R £
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Central Garden Residential 6,327
EIE Y UNEE *=E
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Spring Time Residential 49,787
e EEEXE F=E
Jiaozuo Wen County Spring Time Residential 42,701
E1E BHREXE FE
Jiaozuo Bo'ai Spring Time Residential 34,223
e BEEXE F=E
Puyang Puyang Tonghe Palace Residential 21,852
i EE B FE
Puyang Puyang Jianye New City Residential 163,455
#h R R £
Puyang Puyang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 200,945
i BRI FE
Xuchang Xuchang Chinoiserie Palace Residential 45,379
#E E=puils F=E
Xuchang Yuzhou Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 92,120
e BMNEE FE
Xuchang Changge Forest Peninsula Residential 21,573
#E EEAM+S £
Xuchang Changge Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden New City Residential 70,255
e REEREM® FE
Luohe Luohe Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 113,605
=l BEEE £
Shangaqiu Shangagiu Sky Mansion Residential 41,187
[ RS FE
Zhoukou Taikang Jianye City North Courtyard Residential 28,395
5| REEZEWIL £
Zhoukou Huaiyang Jianye City Residential 28,262
Ao EBEEW FE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B P 5T a0 Bt o)

Principal GFA
use of delivered
City Project name property (sq.m.)
RftER
] HEAE TEYRERY (EAHR)
Zhoukou Zhoukou Shiyue Mansion Residential 153,833
B & Ot iR fT F=E
Zhoukou Xiangcheng Jianye City Residential 74,674
Ao TE 0 FE
Zhoukou Zhoukou Forest Peninsula Residential 49,386
B BORMEE F=E
Zhoukou Shangshui Yangcheng Courtyard Residential 29,084
Ao RN FE
Zhumadian Zhengyang Jianye City Residential 51,316
SIS ERREZEW F=E
Nanyang Xixia Central Garden Residential 52,047
=15 il NEE FE
Nanyang Nanyang Central Garden Residential 51,664
B Bl NEE F=E
Nanyang Fangcheng Jianye Country Garden-Dragon Bay Residential 29,548
=15 FiREREEEE-—HEE FE
Total 3,688,164

B3t
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

&P 5 e B oy B )

Hotel profile

Henan Jianye Zhizun Hotel Investment Co., Ltd. GA
MREXEZEHEEEERAT), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Central China Real Estate Group (China)
Company Limited, is mainly responsible for brand
management, design management, engineering
management, opening preparation and operation
management for all hotel projects of the Group.
Currently, the Group has established strategic
cooperation with various international well-known
groups of hotel management, such as Marriott,
InterContinental and Accor, under which five high-end
hotel projects are in operation. Five high-end hotel
projects, namely Le Méridien Zhengzhou, Pullman
Kaifeng Jianye, Holiday Inn Nanyang, Four Points
by Sheraton Luohe and Aloft Zhengzhou Shangjie
commenced operations successively from 2011 to
2015. In addition, our own brand hotels, namely
Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring Hotel, Zhengzhou
Jianye Sky Mansion, Unique Theatre Hotel, Xuchang
Shenhou Town e Jianye Starry Hills and Xinyang
Jigongshan e Jianye Starry Hills opened successively
from 2018 to 2021. Also, another four hotels in our
own brand, namely, Pingdingshan Jianye Triumph
Hotel, Zhumadian Jianye Triumph Hotel, Yunxiu Hotel
and Lingi Hotel are all under construction. Our total
investment in hotels at present has reached RMB4.85
billion, and the number of hotels invested in Henan
reaches 14.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B PLIE B e B By )

Le Méridien Zhengzhou

Le Méridien Zhengzhou opened on 30 November
2013. It is the first international brand hotel focusing
on art, design and culture in central China. Adjacent
to Zhengdong New District and Zhengzhou East
Railway Station, the largest railway station in Asia, and
located at the intersection site of Zhengzhou Metro
Line 3 and Line 4, it only takes 10 minutes’ and 28
minutes’ drive to Zhengzhou International Convention
and Exhibition Centre and Xinzheng International
Airport, respectively.

Located at No. 1188, Zhongzhou Avenue, Zhengzhou
City, the hotel composes a complete integrated
business district with the surrounding shopping malls,
restaurants and commercial office buildings. Modern
art elements and local features are integrated into
the design of the restaurant, guest rooms and lobby
in the hotel. The unique design and brand concept
distinguish the distinctive Le Méridien Zhengzhou.

The hotel has a total of 337 deluxe rooms and
suites, equipped with world-class facilities and a
mix of classic design and fashion elements. The
characteristic restaurant and bar will further enrich
stay experience and provide occupants with splendid
Chinese and international cuisines. The fitness center
combining fitness, spa, swimming pool, yoga and
jogging track, the sizeable pillarless banquet covering
an area of 800 sg.m., and 8 multi-function halls in the
hotel, are all ideal places for occupants to relax and
hold events.

Address: No. 1188, Zzhongzhou Avenue (northwest
corner of the junction of Zhengbian Road and

Zhongzhou Avenue), Zhengzhou City

Tel: 0371-55998888

Interim Report 2021 H1JH#i+% | Central China Real Estate Limited & 3 b i i 7 7 B2y w) 45

B8 £ X E B )E

BN R ZBER2013F 118
EMAF RRRHIEBREE
27 ~ R 5t R X AC A B IR an b8 B
J& - Bl 358 BB 5 AT @ A0 Za N B K K
B Ih- BB N BR UG o 1L 5 BR M Hh $33
SERASE ARSI EAB LG BREE10) §8
BRIP4 Z BN R E R RO 0 28
70 8 B T4 2 H BB B BR 1 5 o

BE A TR ERIN T N R E 1188
5o BEBNBYh O BERNB
BRFEBHEERT TENGES
BHEEOHEEER -EFENMAER
HEHHRFBATRAZM T
REAMEX  HIRHREFN G
B S 2R HEARTERBME
EUFAIE-

BEHKABIVHEEETENE
o Ectt R —mesil MRS
HERStAREH TR FEERM
BEBRE - SEAERR B
MREBEDPEKRERER BEE
5~ kot I 12k
BR—EERES 0 800F KA
EEAEGE EZINER 2
IR R R~ EHEEBRVIERIGPR -

Ak BEIN T RO KB 11885% (BB
SERERINKBRXAILA)

5% 1 0371-55998888



46

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Aloft Zhengzhou Shangjie

Aloft Zhengzhou Shangjie opened on 6 August 2011.
Located on the opposite of the District Government of
Shangjie District, Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the
hotel is conveniently situated, within only 50 minutes’
and one hour’s drive from Zhengzhou Railway Station
and Zhengzhou Xinzheng International Airport,
respectively.

The 16-floor hotel has 172 stylish, fresh and fun
Aloft Cheerful Rooms (% &% ), including 8 deluxe
Cheerful Suites (¥¢&EEE)and 2 accessible Cheerful
Rooms. Besides, inspired by the 9-foot ceiling, velvety
dreaming beds, Wi-Fi Internet service, 42-inch LCD
TVs, oversized shower space with rain showers,
and fragrant specialty coffee, the 3,698 sg.m. cool
conference room and the sizeable banquet space,
countless whimsies would spark here and there.

Address: No. 101, Zzhongxin Road, Shangjie District,
Zhengzhou (opposite to the District Government of
Shangjie District)

Tel: 0371-68136666

Holiday Inn Nanyang

Holiday Inn Nanyang opened on 8 August 2012. It
is located in Nanyang, the ancient capital of China,
which is famous for its natural fresh air and jade
culture. Holiday Inn Nanyang is the first internationally
renowned five-star hotel in Nanyang. Covering an
area of 66,700 sg.m., the hotel has a favorable
geographical location with pleasant garden landscape
and a rippling lake.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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The 353 guestrooms and suites are tailor-made for
occupants, luxury and comfort experience. The 1,000
sg.m. sizeable banquet hall offers banquet services
to both local and international companies, with
wireless internet accessing to all areas of the hotel,
including the fitness center and the swimming pool.
Whether on vacation, planning a wedding or holding a
meeting, Holiday Inn Nanyang is the perfect choice for
occupants.

Address: No. 2000, Xinchen Road East, Wancheng
District, Nanyang City

Tel: 0377-60218888

Four Points by Sheraton Luohe

Four Points by Sheraton Luohe opened on 29
November 2012. It is located by the west branch
of Songshan Road, Yancheng District, Luohe City,
adjacent to Luohe International Convention and
Exhibition Centre. It takes about 10 minutes’ drive to
the downtown and Luohe Railway Station, and only 90
minutes’ drive to Zhengzhou Xinzheng International
Airport.

The hotel has 244 warmly designed rooms, with the
only international buffet restaurant in the city, namely
The Eatery (E& %), a Chinese restaurant integrated
with traditional and new Cantonese cuisine, namely
Juweixuan (FXEREF), an indoor heated swimming pool,
sauna equipment, a fitness centre, chess rooms and
a pillarless banquet hall, which can bring occupants
infinite surprises of accommodation, catering and
leisure.

Address: No. 6, west branch of Songshan Road,
Yancheng District, Luohe City

Tel: 0395-2566999
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Pullman Kaifeng Jianye

Pullman Kaifeng Jianye opened on 1 November 2015.
Embraced by the rippling surface of a lake, Pullman
Kaifeng Jianye is located on the northwest side of
the ancient city walls in downtown Kaifeng, within 10
minutes’ drive from Kaifeng Railway Station and 50
minutes’ drive from Xinzheng International Airport.
The hotel covers a total GFA of 43,536 sg.m. and a
site area of approximately 58,300 sg.m., with the
vegetation within the city wall area remaining intact.

Pullman Kaifeng Jianye offers 186 guest rooms
and is a five-star resort hotel comprising business
conference, food & beverage, accommodation,
leisure and entertainment. The hotel is equipped
with conference centre, banquet centre, all-day
dining restaurant, Chinese restaurant, featured bar,
lobby bar, executive lounge, gym, swimming pool,
SPA, yoga room, indoor golf and other facilities to
provide occupants with “convenience and sense
of superiority”. The building is a post-modern
architecture in Northern Song Dynasty style, adopting
wood-like exterior finishing material to cast beautiful
reflections in the blue waters.

Address: No. 16, Longting North Road, Longting
District, Kaifeng City

Tel: 0371-23589999
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Zhengzhou Jianye Sky Mansion

Zhengzhou Jianye Sky Mansion opened on 1 October
2018. It is located at the northwest corner of the
intersection of Dongfeng East Road and Kangning
Street. It gathers three city centers within 3
kilometers, namely the CBD Central Business District,
the new provincial government and Zhengzhou East
High Speed Railway Station. The hotel covers a total
GFA of 34,251.8 sg.m.

The project is featured as a high-end service
apartment of CCRE with a total of 302 sets of
rooms, ranging from bachelor apartments to four-
bedroom apartments. The apartment is equipped
with allday dining restaurant, Japanese lIzakaya,
gym center, children’s play room and other facilities
providing occupants with safe, convenient, warm and
comfortable living space.

Address: Block 9, 58 Kangning Street, Zhengzhou City
Tel: 0371-65686888

Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring Hotel

Yanling Jianye The Mist Hot Spring Hotel opened on
1 February 2018. It is located at Chenhuadian Town,
Yanling County, Xuchang, Henan Province, covering an
area of 50,264 sqg.m.

The hotel is a joint masterpiece of Amata Luphaiboon
and Twitee Vajrabhaya Teparkum who are both
internationally renowned architects. The hotel offers
51 guest rooms and is equipped with all-day dining
restaurant, Chinese restaurant, outdoor hot spring
and pool, indoor swimming pool and pool, SPA, gym
center, lobby bar, tea room, banquet hall and other
facilities.

Address: North side of Huadu Avenue, Chenhuadian
Town, Yanling County, Xuchang City, Henan Province

Tel: 0374-7968888

Interim Report 2021 H1JH#i+% | Central China Real Estate Limited & 3 b i i 7 7 B2y w) 49

BB AL E A F
EMNEEXBEEBEABEF201845F
10418 FE 2 o JB & AL 52 5R /R 3R B
HMEEHZIXOFILEA IRESH
BEABRECBDRABEHE Fa
BT ~ = 880 B0 0N BR ik = K Ik T A%
O B G RS EAE34,251.8 F 5
Mo

ZEEBBEERITENS KR
BARAE HAERFMR02E - FH
REGABINNEABAF R
BEHE2HEBR HXAREE &
S REBRLEEFRB R
REPRMEZE2 -EREVRE 5
BREEZEM -

b @ BRI T R B A 585R 95k 1%
55 - 0371-65686888

B 7B R B
BB I R 3 7E 7 MR SR B U5 742018
S A ER - ol
5 BB 94 PR EE 5 91 15 34050,264

BIEHBERAN R EEFZSED
Amata Luphaiboon~Twitee
Vajrabhaya TeparkumiE#R#T i o
BEEEEESIE EEEHE
B-PERE-EIINEBRRBEME
Pk Bz S8 A ~ SPA~N i B FR s~

=

REBEE - RE -EEBERM -

#hat ;AR A 5T B T BB BRME IS
SRIEE A B IR

B4 1 0374-7968888



50

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

Xuchang Shenhou Town e Jianye Starry Hills

Shenhou Town, “Capital of Jun Porcelain in China”,
is one of the first batch of characteristic towns in
China, and Jun Porcelain produced during the reign
of Emperor Huizong of the Northern Song Dynasty
was designated as “Treasures of the Royal Court”.
Xuchang Shenhou Town e Jianye Starry Hills is our first
Starry Hills brand theme characteristic hotel, which
opened on 1 October 2019.

Relying on the Jun porcelain culture and historical
heritage of Shenhou Town, Xuchang Shenhou Town
e Jianye Starry Hills is committed to creating an
immersive stay experience of Jun porcelain art.
While integrating into the local area, residents have
the opportunity to personally touch the developing
sequence of Jun porcelain by learning and making
porcelain. In addition to 30 comfortable guest rooms,
the hotel is equipped with restaurants, book bars, tea
rooms and living rooms, providing customers with a
comfortable space to empty their minds and have a
dialogue with history.

Address: Beside Dongda Primary School, Jianshe
Road, Shenhou Town, Yuzhou City, Henan Province

Tel: 0374-8616999/0374-8618999

Xinyang Jigongshan e Jianye Starry Hills

Jigongshan Mountain, Xinyang, one of the four
summer resorts in China, is located on the northsouth
boundary of China, and is known as “Greenness
Dividing Chu (Hubei Province) and Yu (Henan
Province)”. It is grand and magnificent while beautiful,
making it an excellent choice for sightseeing and

vacation.
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Xinyang Jigongshan e Jianye Starry Hills opened
on 1 July 2020. It is located at the mountainside of
Jigongshan Mountain of Xinyang, adjacent to the
“villa-clusters of multi countries” built from the late
Qing Dynasty to the early Republic of China. The hotel
has a panoramic view of the beautiful mountains,
and provides a space for guests to have a rest and
imagination while viewing different architectural
styles and exploring history, thus interpreting the
brand idea of “living next to the stars and doing what
you want”.

The 89 guest rooms, together with restaurants,
conference rooms, shared spaces and mahjong
rooms, can meet various holiday needs of individuals,
teams, parents and children, and provide experience
of the comfortable life of viewing mountains, knowing
mountains and enjoying mountains.

Address: Beside Zhongzheng Plaza, Jigongshan Scenic
Area, Shihe District, Xinyang City, Henan Province

Tel: 0376-8658888

Unique Theatre Hotel

Zhengzhou lJianye Unique Theatre Hotel opened on
5 June 2021. The hotel has a total of 400 cozy and
tasteful guest rooms, including comfortable rooms,
exquisite rooms, family rooms and suites, 2 full-time
restaurants, 1 Chinese restaurant, gyms, Treasure Park
and foot health centre.
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The hotel is located at Zzhongmu County, Zhengzhou,
adjacent to Henan Drama Magic City. It takes only
10 minutes’ drive from Jianye Huayi Brothers Movie
Town and International Cultural and Creative Industry
Park in Zhengzhou, and about 40 minutes’ drive from
Zhengzhou East High Speed Railway Station and
Xinzheng International Airport. It is the first theme
hotel in Jianye cultural tourism section. Henan Drama
Magic City is the first panoramic and fully immersive
drama theme park in China, which was co-developed
by CCRE and director Wang Chaoge. Therefore, the
customers will experience of “living in the drama” and
the opportunity to get a closer look at the splendid
Central China in Unique Theatre Hotel.

Address: Unique Theatre Hotel in the northeast corner
of intersection of Wenxin Road and Ping'an Avenue,
Zhongmu County, Zhengzhou, Henan Province

Tel: 0371-86568888

Pingdingshan Jianye Triumph Hotel and Zzhumadian
Jianye Triumph Hotel (Under Construction)
Pingdingshan Jianye Triumph Hotel and Zhumadian
Jianye Triumph Hotel are Jianye's own brand hotels,
both of which are standard hotels built by Henan
Jianye Zhizun Hotel Investment Co., Ltd. Pingdingshan
Hotel is also the representative of our standard hotel
construction of Jianye. There are 161 guest rooms in
each of Pingdingshan and Zhumadian hotels, which
are equipped with banquet halls, all-day restaurants,
conference rooms, gyms and other service facilities
to meet the needs of business travelers. Pingdingshan
and zZhumadian hotels have started construction in
the second half of 2019 and are expected to open at
the end of 2022.
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Lingi Hotel (Under Construction)

Zhengzhou Jianye Lingi Hotel is located beside
Zhengzhou Navigation Stadium, adjacent to the
super high-rise Jianye headquarters office building
and Jianye Exhibition Hall under construction. The
hotel is designed by Amata Luphaiboon, a well-
known architect and designer of Six Senses Samui on
Samui Island. The hotel draws inspiration from nature,
integrates the concepts of trees and forest shade into
architectural design, and advocates that residents
living in it enjoy relaxation through the senses like
perching in the forest, feel the process of life growth
and rest, and experience the inner nature.

The main body of the hotel is an ultra-modern low-
density building with 5 floors above the ground, with
177 guest rooms, equipped with full-time restaurants,
lobby bars, outdoor bars, conference rooms, gyms,
swimming pools, etc. The hotel is committed to
interpreting the aesthetic impression and living
experience of Henan with the world-class design and
pure courtesy of Central China. The hotel is expected
to open in 2023.

Yunxiu Hotel (Under Construction)

Zhengzhou Jianye Yunxiu Hotel is located in
Zhengzhou International Cultural and Creative
Industry Park. Designed by Oki Sato, founder of Nendo,
it is the world premiere hotel work of Nendo.

Nendo draws inspiration from Henan's characteristic
geographical and cultural elements, such as caves
and Longmen Grottoes. With the help of stacks,
shadows, hollows and layers of caves, Nendo
develops architectural textures in various areas of
the hotel, which makes the hotel full of sense of
sculpture, sense of light and shadow and three-
dimension effect. When guests live in it, they seem to
be accompanied by wind, light and fog, so they can
feel the rich gifts of nature and start a rare journey of
art design.

The hotel has 231 guest rooms, which are equipped
with Xiu cafe, Qingfeng Chinese Restaurant, Xiuju
Japanese Restaurant, Ciao Bella Italian Restaurant, Sky
Terrace Hotel, Yunshang Swimming Fitness Center and
other sound facilities. It is a luxury art design hotel
integrating business conference, food & beverage,
accommodation, leisure and entertainment. The hotel
is expected to open in 2024.
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Cultural Tourism

Cultural tourism sector of the Company is engaged
in development and operation of property projects
for cultural tourism principally located in historic
cities in Henan Province, such as zZhengzhou,
Kaifeng and Luoyang. With rich history, culture and
natural resources, it tells the “Jianye story of cultural
tourism” in different styles, forms and substance
through theme park, tourist district and real scenery
performance. As at 30 June 2021, the Company had
the following projects for cultural tourism, namely
Jianye Huayi Brothers Movie Town, Unique Henan
Land of Dramas (RAE A= ¢ BiAIZIM), Zhengping
Fang in Luoyang, Qishengjiao in Kaifeng, and
Yingtaogou Football Town project of Jianye Central
China Cultural Town.

With the good performance of the cultural tourism
sector in recent years, the Company has attracted
enormous attention in China’s cultural tourism
industry, its industry influence being greatly
enhanced. In the first half of 2021, Henan Central
China Culture Tourism Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, won the “Most
Potentious Tourism Property Developer Award” and
other honors in China Entertainment Technology and
the 12th theme park and scenic spot summit. The film
town project was awarded the “Best Tourism Industry
Innovation Award” and other honors at the 10th China
Tourism Investment ITIA Award Ceremony. The project
of Unigue Henan Land of Dramas won the honors of
“Annual Innovative Contribution Works” at the special
event of Tsinghua University’s 110th anniversary and
the first Cultural New Space e China Cultural Industry
Summit Forum.
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Jianye Huayi Brothers Movie Town project is located
in International Cultural and Creative Industry
Park in Zhengzhou with a total land use scale of
approximately 600 Chinese-mu. In the form of
film sets and with an essence of historical culture
and memory of the city, the project provides an
experiential site for experiencing film culture
incorporating tour of film sets, exhibition of film
culture, film interactive games, folk and intangible
cultural heritage experience, a series of large-scale
performance, unigue cuisine and themed inns.

The first two blocks of the project covering an area
of 163.2 Chinese-mu was grandly premiered on 21
September 2019 and put into operation, with strong
market response. The project has become the most
famous site for taking photos in Central China.
Successively mentioned in special reports of national
media like People’s Daily, Xinhua News Agency, China
Central Television, Xuexi Qiangguo (xuexi.cn), the
project has received favorable comments from all
walks of life. In 2020, it was rated as an AAAA National
Tourist Attraction.

In the first half of 2021, the film town project
gained a good market reputation and succeeded in
both economic benefits and brand effects, with a
significant increase in tourist visits and revenue. As of
30 June 2021, the tourist visits reached 1,160,000 and
the operating revenue amounted to approximately
RMB124 million.
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Unique Henan Land of Dramas is a large-scale acting
and performance project co-developed with Wang
Chaoge (E#30), a famous director of real scenery
performance. With 21 theatres, the project boasts the
largest theater cluster in China. The project is located
in International Cultural and Creative Industrial Park
in Zhengzhou with a total site area of approximately
622 Chinese-mu and is also one of the Type-A Key
Construction Projects in Henan Province. Inspired
by the long-standing and rich history and culture
of Henan with innovated forms of performance,
the project aims to reveal the rich Central China
culture and the glorious Chinese culture through
the combination of several dramas with outdoor
scenes as well as functional spaces by making use
of its unique architectural space, helping people
understand the history and culture in multi-sensory
approach. The project is of great significance for
highlighting the characteristics, reshaping the style,
manifesting the spirit and contributing to cultural
confidence of Henan. In its 21 theaters of the project,
more than 30 plays have been presented by nearly
1,000 performers. The theaters in the park have a
total capacity of 10,000 people, including three main
theaters, which have a capacity of nearly 5,000
people. The total duration of a single show of all
plays is nearly 700 minutes and the total number of
performances in a single day during the peak season
is nearly 200, with a total duration of nearly 5,000
minutes.

After four years of construction, Unigue Henan
Land of Dramas held a grand opening ceremony on
5 June 2021, the day of Chinese lunar Grain in Ear.
This attracted attention nationwide. More than 2,000
entrepreneurs, cultural celebrities, partners of CCRE
and media guests from all over the country witnessed
the premiere.

After the project was officially opened for operation
on 6 June, it went viral in the market quickly with a
good reputation, attracted steadily increasing tourists,
and achieved a more stable average price per
customer transaction. As of 30 June 2021, the tourist
visits reached 75,000 and the operating revenue
amounted to RMB20.22 million.
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Zhengping Fang in Luoyang is a large-scale cultural
and tourism complex project located in Ancient
Capital of 13 Dynasties, Luoyang City, Henan Province.
It's currently developed under good progress.

Located at Longting District, Kaifeng City (used to
be an Ancient Capital of Eight Dynasties), Henan
Province, Kaifeng Qishengjiao project is a culture,
tourism and leisure street which imitates the style
of Song Dynasty, featuring shopping, unique cuisine,
guest houses, entertainment, leisure, and cultural
experience. With rich tourism resources nearby,
the project enjoys obvious advantages. Adjacent
to the 2-km-long Yuhe River constructed with
our investment, the project has highlighted the
characteristics of a northern waterside city and has
successfully connected tourism resources. Since its
opening in 2014, Qishengjiao has attracted attention
from all walks of life, becoming a new spot popular
with tourists. The project is facing adjustment and
exploration to keep with the increasingly mature
tourist market. The project is currently speeding up to
upgrade. In October 2020, the project completed the
rejuvenation and upgrading. Through the collection
of 17 designer concept stores, the original Baogong
culture IR, the container Internet-famous site, the rail
steam train, the ice and snow world theme park and
other highlights, as well as the new building light
show, graffiti show and other light cultural travel
performing arts products, it realised the combination
of youth, trend and classicality, and created a new
image of the commercial street combining “art +
trend + culture + architecture + space + creativity +
aesthetics”.

Yingtaogou Football Town of Jianye Central China
Cultural Town is a sports tourism holiday town
with football and cultural experience as the core,
sports industry innovation as the driving force,
training, events and sports games as the carrier, and
integrating sports, leisure, culture and tourism. The
project is located in Yingtaogou Tourism Scenic Spot,
a national AAAA level scenic spot in Ergi District of
Zhengzhou City, with a planned construction land of
about 2,500 Chinese-mu.
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On 28 September 2018, a grand opening ceremony
was held for the project, announcing the official
opening of the project guide block. Open projects
include ecological football stadium, football park,
outdoor theme basketball court, intelligent sports
park for all ages-Nordic Paradise, riding park with
outdoor crosscountry cycling experience, Jianye Food
Court with opera culture and folk catering culture
experience, etc. At present, the town is constantly
building and planning more sports, culture, leisure,
health and other life projects.

Green House

CCRE's green houses are main body of the
establishment and operation of CCRE's modern
agricultural projects. As at the end of the reporting
period, the Company had four green houses
completed and in operation, namely Yanling Jianye
Green House, Hebi Jianye Green House, Yichuan
Jianye Green House and Zhoukou Jianye Green House;
One green house available for visit was basically
completed, namely Wuzhi Jianye Green House.

Yanling Jianye Green House

Yanling Jianye Green House is located in Yanling
County, Xuchang City, less than 100 km from
Zhengzhou City, with a site area of over 5,000
Chinese-mu. The project is equipped with 3,000
Chinese-mu of eco-tree seedlings, intelligent gutter-
connected greenhouse, multi-functional exhibition
hall, technology research center and culture room
for cut flowers, endeavouring to build a modern
agricultural countryside complex zone concerning six
highlights of “efficient agriculture, agritourism, cultural
creativity agriculture, demonstration and experience
agriculture, science popularisation agriculture, and
healthcare and well-being improvement agriculture”.
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In the first half of 2021, Yanling Jianye Green House
completed three new projects: Base Kart, Colorful
Dream Children’s Paradise and Four-seasons Tea
House. In the first half of the year, it received more
than 550,000 visitors, including provincial and
municipal officials, local and foreign experts and
scholars in relevant fields, Jianye property owners and
members of “Jianye Junlin Club”.

In recent years, Yanling Jianye Green House
successively won the honorary titles of national
4A tourist attraction, the “Provincial Key Leading
Enterprise of Agricultural Industrialisation for 2019-
2021". In the first half of 2021, Yanling Jianye Green
House won the honorary title of “three diamond smart
scenic spot in Henan Province”. It was also rated
as “advanced party organisation” by Yanling County
Party committee and the Party committee of the
Group.

The above mentioned achievements and honors
represent the affirmation of the government and
all sectors of society for the role of the Company
in effective promotion of local industrial upgrading,
farmers’ prosperity and rural revitalisation.
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Hebi Jianye Green House

Hebi Jianye Green House is located at the urban-rural
integration demonstration zone in Hebi City with a
total site area of approximately 4,450 Chinese-mu.
It is a countryside complex zone covering modern
agriculture, leisure and tourism, and rural community.
At present, Hebi Jianye Green House is equipped
with six functional areas, namely, welcome area, folk
culture experience area, efficient agriculture tourist
area, farming culture experience area, waterside
ecological sightseeing area, and farming, forestry and
breed demonstration area, of which, 60,000 sg.m. of
13 intelligent gutter-connected greenhouses, 20,000
sg.m. of Qishui Biyu Lake, colourful flower field and
wedding lawn, 150 Chinese-mu of eastern flower
area, as well as 4,000 Chinese-mu of ecological
conservancy belt and picking garden have been open
to the public. Hebi Jianye Foodcourt has also been put
into use. The project also cooperated with Chenzhai
Flower Group, a China “Top 3 Enterprises” in the floral
industry and introduced professional service team
of Chenzhai Flower Group, with a view to building a
flower trading center in North Henan Province.

In the first half of 2021, Hebi Jianye Green House
received a total of 910,000 people, including
government leaders, leaders of the Group, Jianye
property owners, social organisations and students. In
the first half of the year, Hebi Jianye Green House was
rated as the “"advanced unit of project construction”
in the district, “outstanding contributor to financial
resources construction” by the Work Committee of
Hebi urban-rural integration demonstration zone,
and the high-quality scenic spot route of China’s
beautiful rural leisure tourism in 2021 by the Ministry
of Agriculture and Rural Affairs.
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Yichuan Jianye Green House

Yichuan Jianye Green House is located at North of
Zhangyao Village, Jiangzuo Town, Yichuan County,
Luoyang City, with approximately 6,725 Chinese-mu
and total investment amount of approximately RMB2
billion. The overall positioning strategy of the project
is a countryside complex concerning six highlights
of “modern agriculture, ecological leisure, cultural
creativity, experience center, science popularisation
and healthcare”, with maintaining sustainable
development for protecting ecological environment
as its basis and with development strategy focusing
on “agricultural + cultural tourism + healthy”, and
with local characteristics of “demonstration zone
of modern agricultural complex + ecological culture
protection + picturesque village + Jianye foodcourt”.

By the end of the reporting period, the construction
of phase I of the modern agricultural demonstration
zone had been completed, which was equipped with
a number of high-specification agricultural facilities
such as 11,000 sg.m. of high-standard intelligent
greenhouses, plant factories, cave dwellings for
fungus growing, 16.3km-long park roads, 200
Chinese-mu dropper fields, 70,000 sg.m. overflow
dam for irrigation and water storage, etc.. In addition,
a number of leisure and entertainment facilities
had been completed and put into use, including
Yaji Lakeside Restaurant, Cave Dwelling Experience
Residence, Forest Valley Natural Restaurant &
Bar, Meng Chong Paradise, Children’s Playground,
Fruit and Vegetable Picking Experience Garden,
Forest Leisure Area, Xingkongli-Caravans Camp,
Guanshanxu-Weijing Restaurant, Pastoral Hot Pot
Restaurant as well as Research and Learning Space.
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In the first half of 2021, the project received more
than 30 inspections from leaders at all levels,
organised 114 team activities for over 5,000 people,
held more than 10 operation activities such as Valley
Breeze Kite Festival, all-things-lovely fun wild market
and fun wild-forest camping plan, and received more
than 100,000 tourists in total. In the first half of the
year, Yichuan Jianye Green House was successively
awarded the honorary titles of “Key Construction
Project of Henan Province in 2021", “Research and
Education Base of Primary and Secondary Schools in
Luoyang”, “Demonstration Enterprise of Civilised and
Honest Operation in Luoyang in 2020, “Model Unit
of Land Greening in Henan Province” and “Municipal
Characteristic Forest Town in Luoyang”.

Zhoukou Jianye Green House

Zhoukou Jianye Green House is located on the
banks of the old canal in the urban-rural integration
demonstration zone in Xuwan Village, Xuwan
Township, Zhoukou City with a site area of more
than 6,000 Chinese-mu and a planned total
investment of RMB3 billion. The project covers
modern ecoagriculture, old canal reconstruction
and urban wetland restoration, leisure experience,
cultural tourism, health and elderly care, etc. and
integrates high-end flower, fruit and vegetable
production, fine seedling and flower cultivation, six
hundred years of shipping ferry culture excavation,
special food experience in central China, urban
wetland and riverside landscape belt along the old
canal, folk wedding celebration photography base,
etc. with a view to forming an urban countryside
complex with an international leading and domestic
first-class modern agricultural industry chain
integrating “research and development, production,
demonstration and experience”. Relying on the
construction of the timehonored old canal, the House
aims at resuming the prosperity of the old canal
as the artery of water transport in the Ming and
Qing Dynasties, so that tourists can experience the
profound history and culture of the ancient Zhoukou
there, reminding their memories of the canal, filling
the market gaps in tourism, vacation and recreation
in Zhoukou and meeting the recreational tourism
demands of residents during weekends and nighttime.
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Projects completed and put into operation as at
the end of the reporting period: 1) the office and
accommodation area of approximately 6,000 sg.m.;
2) the intelligent gutter—connected greenhouse of
36,000 sg.m.; 3) the core landscape demonstration
area of 200,000 sg.m.; 4) the Tongle Valley Parent-—
Child Paradise of 20,000 sg.m.; 5) the experience
agriculture demonstration park of 60 Chinese-mu;
6) lianye foodcourt of 5,000 sg.m.; 7) modern and
technical agriculture exhibition hall of 5,000 sg.m.; 8)
comprehensive service center of 7,500 sg.m.; 9) Kart
Club of 5,000 square meters; 10) Equestrian Club of
20,000 sg.m.; and 11) planting area of seedlings, fruit
trees and lawns has achieved over 3,000 Chinese-mu.

In the first half of 2021, Zhoukou Jianye Green House
received more than 550,000 tourists, including nearly
1,000 provincial and municipal leaders, experts and
scholars in relevant fields at home and abroad, nearly
20,000 tourism teams, and established long-term
and stable cooperative relations with various sports
associations, wedding associations, expansion training
institutions, research and education institutions. In
March 2021, Zhoukou Jianye Green House was rated
as the “Special Social Practice Education Base for
Primary and Secondary Schools in Zhoukou City”.
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Wuzhi Jianye Green House

Wuzhi Jianye Green House is located in Jiayingguan
Township, Wuzhi County, covering an area of 2,568.6
Chinese-mu and a total planned investment of
about RMBO0.2 billion. The proposed construction
includes the Yellow River ancient road cultural
exhibition area, the ancient and modern commercial
and cultural complex (square-shaped city), pastoral
style hotel, comprehensive demonstration area of
modern agriculture, and lJianye foodcourt, etc. As of
30 June 2021, the decoration on the exterior walls
of the ancient and modern commercial and cultural
complex (square-shaped city) had been completed,
and decoration of square-shaped city's west
exhibition hall and south exhibition hall had been
completed; the sewage treatment plant (capacity of
500 cubic meters/day) had been built, supporting
facilities, including towerless water supply facility,
box type transformer and natural gas, had been put
into use; the landscape project (Phase 1) 125,000
sg.m. and the main part and interior decoration of
intelligent greenhouse had been fully completed;
purchase of greenhouse facilities and equipment,
fire fighting, security, air conditioner and boiler had
been completed; and three greenhouses had been in
operation. Foodcourt decoration had been completed
and business license and food hygiene licence had
been obtained, but it has not been put into operation
in 2021.
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Xiangcheng Jianye Green House

Xiangcheng Jianye Green House is located in the
south of Ruhe River, which is at the south side of
downtown Xiangcheng County, Xuchang City. Adjacent
to S329 provincial road in the north, facing Shoushan
in the south, and reaching west of Yaozhuang in the
east and Shoushan Ring Road in the west, Xiangcheng
Jianye Green House covers an area of approximately
2,050 Chinese-mu and has a total planned investment
of about RMB400 million, of which RMB110 million
is scheduled to be invested before operation. Based
on the natural environment, the project utilises
the resources of agriculture, forest, field, house,
mountain, spring, river, flower, and grass, combined
with multiple cultural elements, such as Xiangcheng
red stone culture, religious culture, business culture in
central China, tobacco culture, academy culture, Quyi,
and red culture, in an attempt to build a countryside
complex of “rural scenery with antique appeal”,
which, with flower trading as its core business,
integrates functions covering ecological tourism,
original countryside culture experience, high-end
healthy resorts, theme leisure and entertainment,
agricultural science and technology, education, and
research, creative agricultural experience, circular
agriculture demonstration, and industry integration
and output. As of 30 June 2021, the project is still
at the initial stage of planning and design and
construction has not been commenced yet.
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Light Asset

The Company originally established a subsidiary,
CCMGT, in charge of managing of light-asset business.
Pursuant to the strategic planning of the Group, the
Company successfully spin off CCMGT and CCMGT
was listed separately on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 31 May 2021. CCMGT is principally
engaging in business of commercial project
management, which aims to be a comprehensive
project management service provider and resolutes
as ever in its core value of “Taking Root in Central
China and Contributing to Society” and its mission of
“providing quality living standards for the people in
the Great Central China”.

With our well-designed architectural works and
intimate services, we introduce the public to
experience a new way of life. Leveraging on the
recognition of “Jianye” brand in the target market, its
strong management capability, mature product and
service system, comprehensive resource arrangement
and integration capabilities, we conduct brand output,
management output and resource output. CCMGT
devotes itself to consolidating regional resources, and
developing a project management service platform
to establish a complementary advantages, win-win
cooperation, open and dynamic enterprise ecosystem
and enhance its comprehensive competitiveness
and ability of creating value. It deems it as its duty
to facilitate urbanisation construction in the Great
Central China region and improve living environment
in the region to help the Group go out of Henan, go
to the Great Central China and serve it. Under the
guidance of the strategy of the Great Central China,
while maintaining its absolute leading position in
the market of Henan province, CCMGT will continue
to enhance its core competitiveness, be bold in
expanding and actively expand its business scale.
It will also continue to expand its business outside
Henan province, improve its market share in the
China project management market and facilitate
it to become a leading player in China project
management market from an advanced project
management company.
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On 18 March 2021, Henan Zhongyuan Central
China City Development Company Limited (a major
subsidiary of CCMGT) was awarded the “2021 China
Real Estate Management Outstanding Enterprise”
at the “2021 China Top 100 Real Estate Company
Research Conference”.

From 1 January to 30 May 2021 (before its spin-off
for listing), CCMGT had 41 newly contracted projects
with the gross floor area "GFA" of 4.59 million sg.m.,
among which six were outside Henan province
with the contracted GFA of 520,000 sg.m.. The
contracted sales was RMB10,977 million. CCMGT s
responsible for the establishing and optimising of the
standardised management standards and agreements
on an ongoing basis. By implementing the “refined
management of the entire process” of projects, it can
complement each other’s advantages, share risks and
results with its partners.

Under the guidance of the Great Central China
strategy, CCMGT insisted on consolidating the Henan
market, continued developing the Great Central China
market and moving towards the national market, thus
promoting the Group's strategy for both light and
heavy asset business to a new level. The Company
has operated in Henan, Shaanxi, Shanxi, Anhui, Hebei,
Xinjiang and Hainan provinces and autonomous
region. As of 30 May 2021 (prior to the spin-off for
listing), CCMGT had 243 projects under management
with a total GFA of 29.56 million sg.m.. Among them,
there were 19 projects in the provinces out of Henan,
with a total GFA of 1.85 million sqg.m..
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CCMGT will continue to expand its business in
the provinces out of Henan, innovate the working
mechanism of national market development, and
promote the steady development of light asset
business. At the same time, it will continue to make
innovation in products, operations and services, keep
improving management system, build a stronger
talent team, to greatly improve its comprehensive
competitiveness and ability of creating values,
continuously improve the profitability of light asset
business and continue to provide better quality
services to partners. Through its lean management,
it will continue to provide the property owners in
the Great Central China region with the first class
products and services.
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III. LAND RESERVES o R A
During the reporting period, the Group acquired land REHAR AEEBBBRAMERE
with a site area of approximately 2.367 million sqg.m. EEER T #9236.78 F 75K, Hig
through tendering, auction and listing as well as equity HREREEBNCGIIBTL K- BHE
cooperation. It had newly added land reserves with a 2021568308 » "R B HER T (#H
GFA of approximately 6.633 million sg.m.. As of 30 June BEEBNS21BF A K HP#ER
2021, the Company had land reserves with a GFA of BEEBELNL082BF HKe

approximately 56.21 million sg.m., including attributable
GFA of approximately 40.82 million sg.m..

1. Land Tendering, Auction and Listing 1.

On 13 January 2021, the Group acquired the land use
right of a land parcel (No. JGT2020-43) located at the
east of Jiaodong Road and south of Heping Street of
Shanyang District, Jiaozuo City in online tendering
(listing) for sale process held by Natural Resources
Online Trading System of Jiaozuo City for transfer
of state-owned construction land use rights. The
purchase price for the acquisition was RMB389.12
million. No. JGT2020-43 land parcel has a site area of
53,991 sg.m. with a mandatory detailed planned plot
ratio of 2.2.
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On 15 January 2021, the Group acquired the land use
right of a land parcel (No. JGT2020-44) located at the
east of Jiaodong Road and south of Heping Street of
Shanyang District, Jiaozuo City in online tendering
(listing) for sale process held by Natural Resources
Online Trading System of Jiaozuo City (EfE/ &
RERE LZF &%) for transfer of state-owned
construction land use rights. The purchase price for
the acquisition was RMB333.45 million. No. JGT2020-
44 land parcel has a site area of 51,490 sg.m. with a
mandatory detailed planned plot ratio of 2.0.

On 22 January 2021, the Group acquired the land
use right of three land parcels (Zhengzhengchu
No. [2020]78, Zhengzhengchu No. [2020]79 and
Zhengzhengchu No. [2020]80) located at the north
of Yinghua Avenue and west of Lvyin Avenue of Ergi
District, Zhengzhou City in online tendering (listing) for
sale process held by Zhengzhou Natural Resources
and Planning Bureau (BMH B RERMBFEF)
for transfer of state-owned construction land use
rights. The purchase price for the acquisition was
RMB902.25 million. Zhengzhengchu No. [2020]78,
Zhengzhengchu No. [2020]79 and Zhengzhengchu No.
[2020]80 land parcels have a site area of 39,668 sq.m.,
38,919 sg.m. and 26,858 sg.m. respectively with a
mandatory detailed planned plot ratio of 1.6, 1.3 and
1.3 respectively.
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On 21 May 2021, the Group acquired the land use
right of seven land parcels (No. ZK2021-22, No.
7K2021-23, No. ZK2021-24, No. ZK2021-25, No. ZK2021-
26, No. ZK2021-27 and No. ZK2021-28) located at
the east of Daguang Expressway and the banks of
the old canal of Dongxin District, Zhoukou City in
online tendering (listing) for sale process held by
Zhoukou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau (&
O BAERIMIREB) for transfer of state-owned
construction land use rights. The purchase price for
the acquisition was RMB588.05 million. No. ZK2021-
22, No. ZK2021-23, No. ZK2021-24, No. ZK2021-25, No.
ZK2021-26, No. ZK2021-27 and No. ZK2021-28 land
parcels have a site area of 70,388 sq.m., 73,326 sg.m.,
57,292 sqg.m., 85,515 sg.m., 61,404 sqg.m., 68,315
sg.m., 64,192 sg.m. respectively with a mandatory
detailed planned plot ratio of 0.7, 0.7, 1.9, 1.5, 1.5, 1.9
and 1.9 respectively.

Equity Cooperation

As at 30 June 2021, the Group acquired 38, in
aggregate, land parcels with a total site area of
1,675,714 sg.m. in Anyang City, Jiaozuo City, Xinxiang
City, Jiyuan City, Zhoukou City, Shanggiu City,
Zhengzhou City, Xinyang City, Luohe City, Zhumadian
City, Luoyang City and Nanyang City by way of equity
cooperation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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3. Distribution of Land Reserves 3. LIEkeE o
(1) Distribution of the company'’s land (1) ZERELHEERZENES
reserves by development status i
As at 30 June 2021, the distribution of the B E2021F6830H, KA E]
Company's land reserves by development status T GE R AR RS o R W
is set out in the table below: T

(2)

42.61% 57.39%

Held for future development Under development
FERIRRIS (e

Distribution of the Company’s land (2) Z52E]L£H #1518 M e
reserves by land use right certificates il
As at 30 June 2021, the distribution of the B E2021F6H30H, KA F
company’s land reserves by land use right o i fRE A MRS HE IR AR R
certificates is set out in the table below: RT&:

45.96% 54.04%

Land use right certificates granted

Land use right DI

certificates not yet granted

SRR L 338
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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(3) Distribution of the Company'’s land (3) BZRELHMFFEYEFE
reserves by property types Vg
As at 30 June 2021, the distribution of the HE2021F68308, KA F]
Company’s land reserves by property types is THIEERRYEEL S
set out in the table below: mRT&R:

8.57%
Commercial

[GES
0.60% 66.48%
Residential
24.35%
(4) Distribution of the Company'’s land (4) FRE LM FFEER TS M
reserves by cities
As at 30 June 2021, the distribution of the B E2021FE6H30H, & A7
Company's land reserves by cities is set out in EWmm L MEER TR
the table below:
© Jiyuan EIR 2.10% @ Zhengzhou ZBy1 22.63%
@ Hebi #88 2.50%
@ Anyang 215 5.61% /
@ Xuchang # & 3.99% /
® Puyang 5 4.53% /
@ Xinxiang ¥4 6.24% @ Hizinan 555 1.00%
© Jiaozuo £ 3.15%
@ Luoyang &2 9.95%
@ Zhoukou B 6.93%
@ Sanmenxia =F31% 1.39%
® Shangqiu 5 7.96% \ / @ Zhumadian B/ 5.81%
/ @ Xinyang 2[% 3.68%
Kaifeng 83T 3.63%
er I @ Nanyang &[5 2.54%
@ Pingdingshan FTELLI 3.16% @ Luohe 3257 3.20%

72  Central China Real Estate Limited Ht 35 AR 47 4 23 ] | Interim Report 2021 HlH %



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

1.

Product Research and Development, Serialisation,
Standardisation and Industrialisation

The Company has always been following the corporate
mission of “providing quality living standards for the
people in Central China”, adhering to the fifth-generation
product philosophy of “creating products that best
understand the people in Central China”, insisting on the
developmental strategy of serialisation, standardisation and
housing industrialisation, always focusing on the customer
experience as the core of product development, and
continuously developing competitive new products.

Backed by the fifth-generation product system, the
Company is typically creating six high-medium end product
lines, namely “National Rituals”, “Chinese School”, “Modern
Health”, “Contemporary Fashion”, “Modern Metropolis”,
and “Oriental Elegance”. Currently, all the new product
lines are applied in 38 projects including Zhumadian
Tianzhong Mansion, Zhumadian Chinoiserie House,
Shanggiu Jiangshan Mansion, and Luohe Jianye Mansion.
The Company continues to optimise the sub-modules of
product lines according to implementation effects and
market feedback, and refine the product design; improve
the full range serialisation and standardisation based on
product suitability. On the basis of continuing exploration
and practice in Central China, the Company has developed
brand new J-Link landscape system, in line with unigue
landform, cultural essence and friendly habitat of great
Central China, proposed the three landscaping features
“public, cultural, natural”, and created the landscaping life
integrity exclusive for Central China, so that every great
Central Chinese people could find its own fun and interest.
Currently, the landscape system is applied in 25 projects
including Blue Ocean zZhengfeng, Zhumadian Chinoiserie
House, Nanyang Central Garden, Shanggiu Art Mansion and
Hebi Flower Creek Town.

JE W IF 3%

1.

FE W E 3 B & L ~ BRAEAL - SR
it

AABT—EHERIBTRARBE LY
EERINEESED RATAERETR
ANERINARERER BFART
E-BELE-EEEFCHERREK
B R UERERSERERZL
THAERATERFE O EM-

ARBMRAEERERNERER &
MTEEFREE  IEBRSN) 1]
R TERKE  EZEHTI K
MRAEREIANEPSHEMRSE BA
HNERKREETHBSEXRTH -BEE
EHMA A IUN - BURERS
St N\EEERMER -ENKEE
EMBRRTHOEBEREFERCE
migREFREEME MIEEMKE
TEUNERBESTONEEXRT
E-BRELCER -AHPRFERR
HERMNERZ L xATMELHE
MARE)-LnkREBE R IEBRAPR
BAME XCEBBRE EMME
B RRHTAH -XE-BARAIZRR
BEEARY AEEBTRANSEE
EERN EESEXRPRAEBEKREB
RECHEE BRIMHSBRERE
FHESEE -HEEHNF -mHEAE
B -BHEME -BETRENESE _+1
BEBEEMER -
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The Company has for long adhered to the strategy of
housing industrialisation which is conducive to increasing
residential project quality, reducing energy consumption
and waste reduction, improving the living environment,
marking a tendency of residential construction
development. During the reporting period, the Company
is actively furthering the housing industrialisation,
and gradually applying the combined technologies of
vertical component prefabrication, horizontal component
prefabrication, and internal partition prefabrication among
others in many projects like Hainan Zhonghe Jiayuan Phase
Il, Luoyang lJianye City, Luoyang lJianye Zhonghong City,
Luoshen Plaza, Luoyang Huayang Fengdu Phase I, Luohe
Changjian Dream City, Luohe Longhushuxiang Mansion.
The Company tries to introduce BIM management platform
into Zhengzhou Beilong Lake Longhu Plum Garden (i§%8)
project, get rid of the “fragmented” management path,
break through the information and communication barriers
among units, and promote the platform, standardisation
and normalisation of project development process
management. The Company introduces external experts
to review the whole process from design, production to
transport and construction.

Customised Design

For the purpose of increasing habitat quality, the Company
launches the Junlin Grand Courtyard product based
on custom development. The core philosophy of this
project is to start from customer demand, backed by
apartment design, architectural style, landscape design,
supporting facilities, elevator configuration, decoration
style, decoration standards, kitchen and electrical parts,
bathroom parts, and property services, for the purpose
of meeting the people’s demand for a better life in the
new era, break the stereotyped design model of property
development, and lead housing products into the epoch
of customisation and individualisation. Based on Plum
Garden, Bamboo Garden (7731) in Beilong Lake Junlin Grand
Courtyard, the Company is innovating the custom models
continuously, and has updated a series of product custom
models, like Pine Garden in Zhengzhou Beilong Lake Junlin
Grand Courtyard, Dengfeng Junlin Grand Courtyard, Yanling
Junlin Grand Courtyard.
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Fully Decorated House

The research of fully decorated house relied on the strong
integrated strength and years of in-depth strategic forward-
looking of the Company. Through survey and analysis of
local culture and customer demand, in-depth research on
the living habits of Central Chinese people, in conjunction
with Zhuyou Group to upgrade the storage system
simultaneously, the Company has achieved “localisation
+ modularisation + refinement”, creating a “JoyCube”
(4417 77) storage for Jianye system, offering high quality
residential solutions for owners, with greatest workmanship
and sincerity. Currently, the Company has completed
the design and implementation of some projects, like
Zhengzhou Beilong Lake Junlin Grand Courtyard, Zhengzhou
Blossom Garden, Zhengzhou Riverside House and Puyang
Tianzhu.

Featured Complex

During the reporting period, the Company had higher
requirements for urban development planning. Based on
Luoshen Plaza project, the Company wanted to explore
new planning models, hoped that through street block-
level developments, it could motivate all advantageous
resources from all business segments to join in urban
development, and along with urban growth, there would
be a full industry chain upgrading from development,
construction to operation, as well as a upgrading of roles
and missions. As the orderly continuum, supplement and
guarantee of block-level developments, this exploration
would help the Company transform its role as urban
operator, planning for mid-long term planning strategies,
aiming to erect a better living platform for owners, giving
an energetic block to the city operation, equipped with
traffic, education, medicare and commercial facilities,
offering the owners with peaceful life and prosperous city.

Energy Saving and Emission Reduction

In active response to the national “carbon neutral” and
“carbon peak” policies, in order to promote environment-
friendly construction business and promote low-carbon
living culture, the Company explores various energy-
saving technologies in accordance with the current
national regulations and standards, and fully improves the
environmental protection and energy-saving efficiency
of residential projects. Meanwhile, the Company actively
promotes the housing industrialisation and the fully
decorated houses development in Henan Province,
researches new technologies or new measures, and
improves the effectiveness of emission reduction and
waste reduction.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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CUSTOMER SERVICE AND CUSTOMER RELATIONS
In 2021, the Company is expanding business coverage in the
Greater Central China with a radius of 500km from Zhengzhou, to
provide many cities with serial product and services with synergy
advantages, and create happy habitat for Central Chinese people
to live a better life, with our own diligence, wisdom, innovation
and responsibility, high quality products and services.

During the reporting period, the Company innovated working
mindset “oriented to customers”, and furthered the “three
improves and one reduce” from four aspects: to improve delivery
service, improve living satisfaction, improve management
efficiency, and reduce complaints, so as to drive the continuing
optimisation and upgrading of product and service quality. The
Company bettered the delivery system, set up the standard
delivery process of 14 service steps in 3 major stages from the
6 months before delivery and the 6 months after delivery —
“There is a happiness called living in Jianye house”; the Company
conducted “Polish Action” (#3#1T78)), to actively inspect
the communities within 2-year warranty period, and provide
professional testing and maintenance among other value-added
services; the Company fully improved the park environment;
improved delivery service by a series of measures, such as
delivery initiation meeting, project site exchange meeting, “6-
4-2-1" three-level early warning system, excellent case sharing,
key and risky projects supporting, customers sorting and liaison;
constructed high quality delivery; promoted the normalisation of
“No delay” (EF&#%E) policy and strengthened the risk control
system, through GM reception day, GM supervision group,
complaint system upgrading, “urgent letter rehearsal” innovation;
and meanwhile delivered simple happiness and created beautiful
experience for customers by warm services, like Jianye City Walk,
Thousands of Families Banquet, owner’s birthday party among
other customer care events.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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COMMENCEMENT PLAN BH &8
In the second half of 2021, the Company plans to commence 202MF FHF > KRB EIHESIEIEED
construction of 81 projects with a GFA of approximately TEHR BREBEBHNR6I2BFER Ko

6,632,000 sg.m..

Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
1 HE%E TEEBHER EEER
(sg.m.)
(7 K)
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Football Town Residential 35,000
BB PN ER N B Bk /BB F=
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Blossom Garden Residential 120,000
ZB N EINTEE E =
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential 100,000
EB N EB N B #B AP T=E
Zhengzhou Dengfeng Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential 122,000
BB PN BHER KT =
Zhengzhou Dengfeng Songyue Mansion Residential 50,000
ZB N RN T Yl =
Zhengzhou Xinzheng Blue Ocean Zhengfeng Residential 80,000
EB N WEEE SE R T=E
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard-Songxuan Residential 120,000
BB PN BB N B #B A Bre- R EF =
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Chengyuan Residential 110,000
ZBN BN 18 E =
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Baisha Project Residential 43,000
EB N BNENIEE T=E
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Riverside House Residential 18,776
BB PN BN B FE 5B F=
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Jianye Tihome - International City Residential 41,683
ZBN BB 322 2 2 7 - B PR 0 =
Kaifeng Lankao CCRE Mall Residential 34,303
E=) EEER=R PN T=E
Kaifeng Kaifeng Taihe Mansion Residential 66,892
EE3) EESEYS) F=
Kaifeng Tongxu Code One City Residential 22,140
EE) TS TR FR =
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
b7 HE%HE FTEEBHER EEER
(sg.m.)
(F7K)
Kaifeng Kaifeng Project Residential 38,265
ES) MEIEE =
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace Residential 88,996
&5 &[5 E KR I F=E
Luoyang Luoyang Huayang Fengdu Residential 93,046
1 BIFEGIEE F=E
Luoyang Yichuan Dragon Mansion Residential 52,100
&b FIBER FE
Luoyang Luoyang Project Residential 80,000
(Luoyang Honour Mansion Phase 1)
&b EFRIEE CRIEE RN ZH) =
Luoyang Mengjin project (Luoyang Long Courtyard) Residential 61,429
&5 @RIEE (&G L) F=E
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Pingxi Honour Mansion Residential 15,392
TIELW TELFAESHN F=E
Pingdingshan Wugang Forest Peninsula Residential 78,972
TIELW BRMAMEE FE
Pingdingshan Baofeng Project Residential 57,143
TIELW BEIEH F=E
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Project 1 Residential 32,467
FIEW FIEWIEET T=
Anyang Anyang Jianye City Residential 19,384
(Anyang Jianye City follow-up Land Lot)
2[5 2GR 2 (2 05 12 25 I 18 & it 3R) F=E
Anyang Anyang Project (Anyang Guangming Mansion) Residential 66,718
205 ZRZIEE (ZIEHEER) =
Anyang Hua County Honour Mansion Residential 81,125
2[5 BREN F=E
Hebi Hebi Longmen No.7 Courtyard Residential 171,369
B EE BEBEREPIZE SR I F=E
Hebi Hebi Project Residential 59,267
BSEE BSEEIEH FE
Xinxiang Xinxiang Dongjing Mansion Residential 110,748
40 37 40 BR AL AT F=E
Xinxiang Xinxiang City Huagong Road Land Lot Residential 189,132
40 H AR T A6 T B& 3R F=E
Xinxiang Xinxiang Project 2 (Xinfei Land Lot) Residential 159,041
H 4 FBIEE2 GhmiR) =
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
W™ HBE 4 FEIEHER BEERE
(sg.m.)
(F7K)
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Jianye Mansion Residential 133,095
E1E EERERN =
Jiaozuo Bo'ai Spring Time Residential 52,265
FE1E HEEXE Es
Jiaozuo Mengzhou Jianye Mansion Residential 70,731
FE1E @MNEERN T=
Jiaozuo Wuzhi Jianye Majestic Mansion Residential 116,520
E1E By EzxXxE =
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Hengshui Taihua Land Lot Residential 116,992
(Jiaozuo Jianye Mansion)
E1E BRI EMIR (BERERN) =
Puyang Puyang Jindi Road (Puyang Sky Mansion) Residential 102,800
ied EIE 2R CEBXE) T=E
Puyang Taigian Jianrun House Residential 76,380
e BRIEBN T=
Puyang Puyang Tonghe House follow-up Land Lot Residential 64,800
ied b B AN T 18 48 1R =
Xuchang Changge Forest Peninsula Residential 47,138
Bl REZRM+*E F=E
Xuchang Yanling Junlin Grand Courtyard Residential 85,000
Eid=] BB & B #B AP T=
Xuchang Xuchang Sunshine Cable Residential 36,371
Eid=] SFEMGILEE =
Xuchang Changge Forest Peninsula follow-up Land Lot Residential 53,017
Ei= EEFMF EREMIR T=E
Luohe Luohe Dream City Residential 84,432
2 R IR AR I T=
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia Honour Mansion Residential 83,968
=PIl =PI E T =
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia Project 2 Residential 57,143
= P9l =PiIRIEE?2 T=E
Shangaiu Shangaiu Future City Residential 98,400
[Z)as & T R AR T=
Shanggiu Yucheng Hill Water Lake City Residential 66,070
[Elas JE2 3% LI 7AA 3k =
Shanggiu Xiayi Jianye City Residential 170,191
[Elas EEREW T=E
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
W™ HE 4 FEIERHER BEEERE
(sg.m.)
(7 K)
Shanggiu Zhecheng Lianmeng Dongwang Residential 127,285
[Elas I R R =
Shangagiu Shangaiu Project (Jiangshan Mansion) Residential 77,551
[Z)as mEEE CIWA) T=
Shanggiu Shanggiu Shangheyuan Residential 73,061
[Elas B E MR =
Shangagiu Minguan Long Mansion (Minquan Project) Residential 11,630
[Z)as RN (REEE) T=
Zhoukou Zhoukou Hill Water Lake City Residential 95,017
A0 B O L 7RG 3k =
Zhoukou Huaiyang Binhe Courtyard Residential 194,824
AN FERZ BRI B F T=
Zhoukou Zhoukou Jianye City Residential 95,187
A0 B OEER =
Zhoukou Zhoukou Green Base follow-up Land Lot Residential 89,000
(Canal Courtyard)
A BO#BRE B E IR GERRF) T=E
Zhoukou Zhoukou Project (Huaiyang Sweet-Scented Residential 32,000
Osmanthus Garden Xingui)
AN BOEE (EEERETE) T=
Zhoukou Zhoukou Chinoiserie House follow-up Land Lot Commercial 61,269
(Canal Ancient Town)
A B O FT % A& 3R GEJnl o $8) (HES
Zhoukou Taikang Jianye Mansion Residential 84,034
A KEBRERN T=E
Zhoukou Fugou Jianye Mansion Residential 65,610
A RBERERN =
Zhumadian Zhumadian Tianzhong Mansion Residential 37,206
HEIE SEEEXFE T=E
Zhumadian Suiping Jianye Mansion Residential 98,413
RIS BT REERN =
Zhumadian Zhumadian Jianye Chinoiserie House follow-up Residential 44,286
Land Lot
HEIE BB EEEENATREMR =
Zhumadian Zhumadain Project 1 Residential 32,951
(Zhumadian Misty Mountain Mansion)
HEIE SEIEEE (B EEEWLAT) T=E
Nanyang Nanyang Jianye Country Garden-Longyue City Residential 61,918
Bl B EEEER-FEIRN F=
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
b7 HE%HE FTEEBHER EEER
(sg.m.)
(FFHK)
Nanyang Nanyang Project 1 (Dengzhou Qingyun Palace) Residential 81,429
Bl MEEEE1 (BMNEEE) =
Nanyang Nanyang Project 2 Residential 62,857
Bl mfEEE?2 F=E
Nanyang Nanyang Project 4 Residential 62,857
Bl mfEEERA F=E
Xinyang Xinyang Jianye City Residential 12,268
&% ErFEZER FE
Xinyang Xinyang Mansion Residential 29,267
5 S5 I F=E
Xinyang Shangcheng Jianye Mansion Residential 23,088
= I R 2 F=E
Xinyang Xinyang Project (Huaibin Yunye Courtyard) Residential 59,295
&% ERIEE CEBEXRT) FE
Xinyang Huangchuan Project Residential 44,206
(Huangchuan Dingcheng Mansion)
&% EINEEB GR)IE W) FE
Xinyang Gushi Project (Xinyang Jianye Mansion) Residential 42,392
5 ERIEE (ERHEER) F=E
Xinyang Xinyang Project 2 (Xinyang Xinsan Road) Residential 67,549
= EFRIEB2 (BlEH=1K) F=E
Jiyuan Jiyuan Chinoiserie Palace Residential 53,342
R B R A AT =
Jiyuan Jiyuan Project 1 (Jiyuan Blossom Garden Xiyue) Residential 83,494
R EIREE (BRTEE R A F=E
Jiyuan Jiyuan Project 2 Residential 82,001
R ERIEE2 F=E
Hainan Chengmai Zhonghe Jiayuan Residential 12,079
sl EEBTRNMRE =
Other Other Residential 700,576
Hith Hith F=E
Total 6,631,643
=5
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

In the second half of 2021, the Company plans to deliver 56
projects in total with a GFA of approximately 5,016,000 sg.m..

2021 F T HF > XA BB HASEEE R

> BREBRLNA501.68FHKe

Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
W HE % TEEEEY BEAER
(sq.m.)
(FAK)
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Chengyuan (Phase 1) Residential 221,231
ZBM 2 78 B — HA £
Zhengzhou Zhengzhou Art Mansion (Phase 1) Residential 260,957
ZB ER M FTE— A F=E
Zhengzhou Gongyi Spring Time (Phase 5) Residential 109,678
B BEREXRERH FE
Zhengzhou Zhengxi U-Town (Phase 5) Residential 94,185
ZBM &0 75 Bk BB oo L AR £
Zhengzhou Gongyi Spring Time (Phase 3) Residential 47,254
ZB EREXRE=H F=E
Zhengzhou Xinmi Code One City (Phase 2) Residential 76,970
B RS 8 FE
Kaifeng Tongxu Code One City (Phase 1) Residential 77,568
ES) BETE S —H £
Luoyang Luanchuan Luanzhou Palace (Phase 1) Residential 81,683
Bz g1 N T — R F=E
Luoyang Luoyang Honour Mansion (Phase 1) Residential 210,380
B BIEEN—E FE
Luoyang Luoyang Technology City (Phase 1) Residential 85,000
B B — £
Luoyang Luoyang Code Two City (Phase 2) Residential 147,700
Bz R E SR AR F=E
Luoyang Luoyang Dingding Palace (Phase 3) Residential 104,165
B REERE=H FE
Pingdingshan Ruzhou Jianye Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 34,660
(Phase 1)
FIEW AMEEEE—H FE
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Eighteen Cities (Phase 3) Residential 57,279
FIEW FEREU+AE=H £
Pingdingshan Pingdingshan Spring Time (Phase 1) Residential 81,843
FIBEW FTBEUEXE—H F=E
Pingdingshan Wugang Forest Peninsula (Phase 4) Residential 23,580
FIEW FWMEMFLETH FE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
] HE R TEEEEY BEER
(sg.m.)
(F753%)
Anyang Anyang Code One City (Phase 1) Residential 175,956
25 255 S — 8 £
Anyang Anyang Jianye City (Phase 2) Residential 23,440
205 ZREEN "B £
Anyang Anyang Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden Residential 57,087
(Phase 3)
205 ZhEEE=H £
Anyang Hua County Code One City (Phase 3) Residential 28,650
2 BRERWAL = £
Xinxiang Xinxiang Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 1) Residential 149,109
48 40t 5 — HR F=E
Xinxiang Changyuan Forest Peninsula Courtyard Residential 145,085
(Phase 1)
Gl REZMEE Lhr—H £
Xinxiang Hui County Spring Time (Phase 1) Residential 22,452
g EBHRERE—D B
Xinxiang Hui County Code One City (Phase 1) Residential 55,662
#a 1ERAS SR B —HA £
Xinxiang Beverly Manor (Phase 3) Residential 195,189
48 LR B = 11 F=E
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 2) Residential 25,794
fEfE FEEE AT 5 FE
Jiaozuo Jiaozuo Spring Time (Phase 2) Residential 8,167
E1E FEEXREZH £
Jiaozuo Wen County Spring Time (Phase 1) Residential 17,945
Az RBRERE—H £
Jiaozuo Wuzhi Star Mall (Phase 1) Residential 97,192
fEfE R 2 X —H FE
Puyang Puyang Tonghe House (Phase 2) Residential 42,143
4o BB 1 £
Puyang Puyang Code One City (Phase 3) Residential 48,400
EF EEERIS= F=E
Puyang Puyang Zhenyuehui (Phase 1) Residential 102,629
& ERRIRE—B FE
Xuchang Xuchang Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 2) Residential 24,542
#FE SrEMFT 5 £
Xuchang Xuchang Chinoiserie Palace (Phase 3) Residential 73,914
FE SrEt MR =5 F=E
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
i) EHE4E TEEEHEY EEER
(sg.m.)
(F75%)
Xuchang Xuchang Pleasure Garden (Phase 1) Residential 34,213
FE FFELa%—H F=E
Xuchang Changge Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden New City Residential 39,009
(Phase 1)
FE REERME—H F=E
Luohe Luohe Xicheng Forest Peninsula (Phase 3) Residential 11,473
B BABEMBMEE = FE
Sanmenxia Sanmenxia New District Forest Peninsula (Phase 3) Residential 110,110
=Pl =PI EFMEE =1 £
Shangaiu Shanggiu Blossom Garden (Phase 1) Residential 105,800
=i BEERE—H F=E
Shangaiu Shanggiu Headquarter Port (Phase 1) Residential 153,300
[l B EREE—R FE
Shanggiu Shanggiu Central Garden (Phase 3) Residential 110,600
[ [EIENEEE £
Zhoukou Taikang Jianye City North Courtyard (Phase 1) Residential 19,053
B KERBEWIR—B F=E
Zhoukou Zhoukou Shiyue Mansion (Phase 1) Residential 35,319
B Aot —H8 FE
Zhoukou Zhoukou Dachengxiaoyuan (Phase 1) Residential 161,924
B B ORIz —H £
Zhoukou Fugou Jianye New City (Phase 1) Residential 14,450
B RERENN—8 F=E
Zhoukou Fugou Jianye New City (Phase 1) Residential 50,871
B WERENN—8 FE
Zhoukou Luyi Mingdao City (Phase 2) Commercial 17,524
B FEEBREN_H [EES
Zhoukou Luyi Jianye City (Phase 90) Residential 45,296
| BEERERNNTH F=E
Zhumadian Zhumadian Spring Time (Phase 1) Residential 252,483
BEE BEEERE—H FE
Zhumadian Xincai CCRE Mall (Phase 2) Residential 66,644
BEE METRKRM 8 £
Zhumadian Runan Jianye City (Phase 2) Residential 137,287
BEE WRREN B F=E
Zhumadian Xincai Sweet-Scented Osmanthus Garden (Phase 1) Residential 81,356
BEE HEER—H FE
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Principal
City Project name use of property GFA
i) HE4 TEEEHEY BEER
(sq.m.)
(F753%)
Zhumadian Zhengyang lianye City (Phase 2) Residential 31,430
BEE ElZEEm 5 F=E
Nanyang Xixia Central Garden (Phase 1) Residential 13,738
L i) NS F=E
Nanyang Xixia Central Garden (Phase 1) Residential 28,661
L NS F=x
Xinyang Xinyang Jianye City (Phase 2) Residential 88,093
= EREER_H F=E
Xinyang Xinyang Jianye City (Phase 2) Residential 37,911
= EHEEN_H FE
Xinyang Gushi Jianye City (Phase 2) Residential 62,622
= [ Y5 2 2 3 — 5 F=x
Jiyuan Jiyuan Blossom Garden (Phase 1) Residential 65,971
R ERIEEE— 1 FE
Jiyuan Jiyuan Jianye City East Residential 128,013
R EREENE FE
Jiyuan Jiyuan lianye City East Residential 71,655
IR EREEWE F=x
Hainan Danzhou Junlin Grand Courtyard (Phase 1) Residential 33,926
B BN E AT —HA F=E
Total 5,016,231
=k
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B B 5 B o B

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
REPORT DURING THE FIRST HALF OF 2021

I.

IL.

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & % f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5

Summary

According to the relevant regulations of The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s revision of the “Corporate Governance
Code” and the “Corporate Governance Report” and the
working requirements of the “Risk Management System of
Central China Real Estate Limited” approved by the Board
Meeting, the Company’s risk management department built
the risk management and internal control in an orderly
manner in accordance with the annual work plan, and
strictly perform risk identification, analysis, evaluation, alert
and responding. In the whole, the Company has completed
the work well in the first half of 2021, and strives to give full
play to the role of risk management and internal control in
effectively promoting operating efficiency and reducing the
uncertainty of achieving business objectives.

Current Situation of the Building of Risk
Management and Internal Control System

(1) Risk Management Principles

The Company’s risk management is based on the
following principles: (i) strategy-oriented principle,
i.e. risk management is aligned to the Company's
development strategy in pursuit of the strategic
objectives; (ii) prevention first principle, i.e. the
Company extends risk management to its business
preparation process by strengthening the prevention
and systematic management of risks; and (iii) principle
of materiality, i.e. risk management focuses on
identifying, assessing and managing risks that have
significant impact on the Company’s development as
well as achieving the best benefit at reasonable costs.

(ll) Risk Management Structure

According to the actual conditions of the Company’s
risk management and internal control, the Company
has clearly defined the responsibilities of the Board,
the audit committee, the management, the internal
audit which are responsible for the establishment,
implementation, evaluation and effective assessment
of the risk management and internal control systems.

20214F | - 4F FE J s 4 P Be P R 4%
il £ o
S ﬂ!}ﬁ
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B B ot 8L o0 B )

(1)

(1v)

In order to improve our risk management and internal
control, the Company has established the Risk
Management and Internal Control leading Group to
organize and conduct such efforts. The Company has
appointed three full-time internal control personnel at
its head office who are responsible for coordinating
the specific implementation. Each company in cities
and each professional company of the large regions
has 1 full-time internal control personnel respectively
(19 internal control personnels in total in the large
regions and 3 internal control personnels in total in
professional companies), who are responsible for the
implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems.

Risk Management Procedure

The risk management and internal control group is
responsible for organizing our regional and urban
companies to identify, evaluate, alert and cope with
the risks associated with our core businesses, and
reporting our performance to the Risk Management
and Internal Control leading Group. According to
its work requirements, the Group shall sort out key
risk control points on a monthly basis and update
the internal control assessment template in a timely
manner. The internal control assessment template in
respect of six segments including customer service,
cost, finance, human resources, marketing and
engineering has been updated and optimized during
the first half of 2021.

Scope and Approaches of Risk Management
Assessment

The core risk focused in the first half of 2021 mainly
include financial risks (risks associated with achieving
profit target and trade receivables), operation risks
(risks associated with realizing operation plan and
investment & development plan), investment risks
(land bank risks), complaint risks (risks associated
with achieving customer satisfaction), engineering
quality risks and specific project plan risks (risks
associated with achieving investment return and
recognition risk). Assessment approaches of risk
management and internal control mainly comprise
urban self-assessment, regional recheck and urban
peer assessment amongst urban companies.

7 BT A o7 B R A P9 BR 4
FITIE AR EFIALILEREE
MBS EHEE/NE FREAES
T REIEHEEIRERANE
AB BEREABRT IR
REREHTRABNEERT S
AREBILERAEAR (KEBH
SH19RREFE - FX QT HE3
LREER) AERREEARN
BRI R MR RAIRNITI(Fe

(=) EEEEED

R EEMAEER NMEREE
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HRBAHR TG BEMNE
HIF ERATEREDRRE
BEREERRE/NEER %
RIEXRSAHERIEHRE
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BB AN TR ITRENE
BEPRIET B AET T B
HMEIE-

() EpEEEFIERE R
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

(&) 2021F L+ F R EELERAEHEZE
I R R

(V) Achievements made in establishing risk
management and internal control systems

88

during the first half of 2021

1. Updating and revising internal control FHRTNEETA LB # AN -
assessment template, and executing all EBEH#ITEEEEGE £
management policies and operation guidelines 1E#55/
During the first half of the year, the Company FHFEABER AR
updated and revised the internal control B AN THEKRIREAE
assessment template in respect of six EXEFIBEHBET T
professional series including customer service, BEA ETRBRAITH
cost, financing, human resources, marketing A3 ST B S A H 5T 18015 1%
and engineering, with an aggregate of 180 # > HEAh108IE RS H] > 72
internal control assessment templates approved B—RES BRREE
for execution after the revision, 108 of which HxEFHA =G b
are key controls and 72 are general controls, REEEEGE - 1R2/EIES]
effectively covering the business control points BRMHITe
of the relevant profession series, so as to ensure
efficient execution of each management policy
and operation guideline.

2. Conducting internal control self-assessment and A EEA BRI E]
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peer assessment of each large region and city FFFEANFHFRIERE
companies for the first half of the year FET(E

Each large region and city companies have FTHFEERERBET A
completed internal control self-assessment BB R TMAZER
for the first half of the year as scheduled, SET 1 M E 4B B AR AR SE AR
while the real estate head office has organised THB B AR

and completed peer assessment on seven
series including financing, funding, cost,
customer service, marketing, procurement
and engineering. Meanwhile, as to the
issues identified during the internal control
assessment, we have taken prompt measures
to rectify the defects in such systems at the
large region level in accordance with the system
process and operation regulations.

TH - RBRIELCERFT
XX BFTAE R #
HAEFERHENBE
AeE@ERRHERRE
MRFRE KRR ERAHR
57 7 TR B ©



Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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III.

Risk
plan
()

(1

management and internal control improvement
for the second half of 2021

According to the requirements of business
development, gradually improve the risk management
and internal control system;

Enhance internal risk prevention and control, and
expand the scope of business related to internal
control;

Constantly revise and improve the internal control
evaluation matrix on the basis of results of the
internal control evaluation work and the update of the
Company'’s policies;

Organize and carry out training on professional
knowledge and skills of internal control to build the
risk prevention awareness among all employees.

Analysis of employees as at 30 June 2021

As at

30 June 2021, the Group had 3,494 employees with

a semi-annual turnover rate of 9.9%. The numbers of
employees by age, education level and function are set out

= 20214F BARAE LRSS BILEL P R

ekt
(=) BEXFEREX

B RER
REREANIERESR

(2 meamEREHENE BAR
ESRNEBEER

(Z) BENEFBILERRRAT
ERBEMIB R TEEST M T
ERNIETEER ;

(M) RN EENM XA
e EEE SRR ER -

1202146 530H ES 15X 77
202168308 » AN EBEEEA3,494% B
B HFEERBEAII% - REH 2
BEREXIDPNEEHEHINWT !

as below:

By Age BERE D

Age FHe

20-30 20-30 1,194
31-40 31-40 1,860
41-50 41-50 351
51-60 51-60 73
61 or above 61K E 16
Total 485t 3,494
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
o B 5 v B2 53 Bt )

By Education Level BEBESE S

Education level B

Master degree or above Btk E 464
Bachelor degree L 2,533
Associate degree = 470
Middle school or below FREZZ LT 27
Total st 3,494
By Function BEZXEAS

Function B

Finance and cost B 75 Ko B A 678
Engineering Ti2 853
Management [=§i 341
Design %3 240
Investment & preliminary work KE AR 162
Sales, marketing and customer service $HE « HIE KR E R 71
Administration 1T 391
Others HAth 118
Total s 3,494
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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/A

Remuneration policy

In order to promote healthy competition among employees
and motivate them to deliver their best performance, the
Company has further optimized its existing remuneration
and incentive system and established a performance-
oriented management concept and pay incentive
mechanism, according to which the remuneration levels,
remuneration adjustment and job transfer of employees
will be determined based on their performance appraisal
results. The overall remuneration system of the Company
will also be adjusted regularly with reference to the
prevailing market remuneration level to ensure the external
competitiveness and internal equity of the remunerations
of our employees and provide guarantees for retaining and
attracting talent.

In addition, the Company has formulated and implemented
human resource policies which are conducive to the
sustainable development of the Company. Adhering to
the talent concept of “professional spirit and professional
quality”, the Company takes professional ethics and
professional ability as important standards for selecting
and employing employees and strengthens employee
training and continuous education to constantly improve
their quality. Meanwhile, the Company also places high
emphasis on the career development of its employees. It
assists employees to plan out their career paths according
to their expertise and capabilities, provides them with
various career channels and development opportunities,
and cultivates and retains talent for key posts to promote
the continuous improvement of its organizing ability.

.

L e

RIREATABRERF AL RARE
HMEE THEE ARE—FBIER
THMHBESR BUNEERER
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Disclosure of Interests

Hil 2k A% 25

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures (the “Debentures”)
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows or as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below:

(a) Long positions in the Shares

Capacity and

R AT BUR By ~ R
Py R A8 25 v A RE RS Be BT

122021568308 ARBEEREETH
ABRFABHERHEZE (EER(BHK
BB (TGEFREERG) 1) EXVE)
BBty (TRefnl) ~BRERGD kEZH (&%)
hoEAXATRARB(RSRAPERG)
BINFERECFENBLMATCHRURE
(BHFMEAERA) EXVERET7 R 87 B
BE LD R WEI0(EMETAEFETT
BEXZHRETA) (REFR)) ENE
RRB RS R XBWMT (KT
XIRE R 5T &) — B ER) !

(a) RGPS

Approximate
percentage of
the interest in

Number of the Company's

Name of Director or nature of share options Number of  issued share

chief executive interest held? Shares held capital*
gl e N

BEg BEITRAN

TETHASHS BN kEZEE FRisREREH B2 FERMEE WA E 7 L

Mr. Wu Po Sum Interest in a controlled corporation - 2,066,431,867" 69.64%

HRARLE REZEEE

Mr. Wang Jun Beneficial owner 10,800,000 16,200,000 0.91%

T BRE BEnEAA

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)® Interest of spouse 44,000 10,000,000 0.34%

T Lt FoiBz

Ms. Chen Ying Beneficial owner 4,990,000 10,000 0.17%

Bomit BEREBA

Mr. Xin Luo Lin Beneficial owner - 400,000 0.01%

EEMITE ERHEA
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Disclosure of Interests (continuea)

REZR P B )

Notes: MIEE -

The 2,066,431,867 Shares were registered in the name of
and were beneficially owned by Joy Bright Investments
Limited (“Joy Bright”), a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu
Po Sum. Accordingly, he is deemed to be interested in the
2,066,431,867 Shares by virtue of the SFO.

2,066,431,867 RN E LI BIEKRE
ERAR ((B1E) A TEHEBGHE
BE-BENABRREEEBEHERD
NE WRBE(BHRBEMRSG) 5
BARFCERIRRYEF2,066,431,867%

Bein

Such interest in the Shares is held pursuant to the share 2. ERERMEmILBEBERESTE (B
options granted under the Share Option Scheme (as defined ER T BENEREMTE  HB
below), the details of which are disclosed on pages 95 to 98 BN AR AR EFISEI8H

of this interim report.

The 44,000 share options and 10,000,000 Shares are 3. FELZLIWERBE@RmHEEL4,00011E
beneficially owned by the spouse of Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Ji% # 5210,000,0008% A& 15 > BUAR % (58
Hua), therefore Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) is deemed to be FREABHO)  TELZIWERER
interested in her spouse’s share options and Shares for the H B ERERRH I #ER -
purposes of the SFO.

The approximate percentage of the interest in the 4, EKRABEBHETRANERBAB DL

Company’s issued share capital is based on a total of
2,967,116,120 Shares of the Company in issue as at 30 June
2021.

B 2021F6H30H AR B BETR
17 #8812,967,116,12008 5t & o
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

WEZS P88 )

(ii) Long position in the shares of the Company’s

associated corporation

(i) JRAS 2% vl B B 3 b 0 & £

Approximate
percentage of
the interest

in the issued

share capital

of the

Capacity and Company'’s

Name of Director Name of associated nature of Number of associated

or chief executive corporation interest shares held corporation

-k /N

1BREE

BRITREH

EEFFETHAEHSE EREEHS B kEREE FrfsiRm & E SRl

Mr. Wu Po Sum CENTRAL CHINA MANAGEMENT Interest in a controlled 2,056,931,867" 62.42%*
COMPANY LIMITED (“CCMGT") corporation

HERTE PREXBRAR (MREE) ZELE#ER

Mr. Wang Jun CCMGT Beneficial owner 16,200,000 0.49%?

FREE hREE BREAA

Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) CCMGT Interest of spouse 7,000,000 0.21%*

THEZ T hREE Bz En

Mr. Xin Luo Lin CCMGT Beneficial owner 400,000 0.01%?

FEEMITE PREE EREAA

Notes: ISt -

1. Such shares are beneficially owned by Joy Bright, a company 1. BRERMNEBRES=mEE MRE
wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Po Sum. Accordingly, he is deemed HARREELZERBNRE R
to be interested in such shares by virtue of the SFO. B(BESRBERG)  PRARTER

RREBRMKRMONER

2. Such shares are beneficially owned by the spouse of Ms. Wu 2. ERRMHAZEZLIERER S SR
Wallis (alias Li Hua). Accordingly, Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua) B(EFRBAEHR)  FREZ AR
is deemed to be interested such shares by virtue of the SFO. REBBRROE R

3. The approximate percentage of the interest in CCMGT's 3. HEEEXBEHTRANESEBMOED

issued share capital is based on a total of 3,295,288,120
shares of CCMGT in issue as at 30 June 2021.
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)
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Save as disclosed above or under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors,
chief executives of the Company or their associates had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which the Directors and chief executives
were deemed or taken to have under the provisions of the SFO),
or which were required to be and are recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The original share option scheme has expired on 13 May
2018. The shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
conditionally adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which has been approved on the extraordinary
general meeting held on 19 April 2018. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide the people and the parties working
for the interests of the Group with an opportunity to obtain an
equity interest in the Company, thus aligning their interest with
the interests of the Group and thereby providing them with an
incentive to work better for the interests of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the employees of the Group
(including the executive Directors) and such other persons as
the Board may consider appropriate may be granted options
which entitle them to subscribe for Shares representing, when
aggregated with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of
the Company, up to a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of
the Company as of 19 April 2018, unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from the Shareholders to renew the said limit or
the Shareholders specifically approve the grant.

The total number of Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time. The
amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the
option is HK$1.00 (or its equivalent in RMB or any other currency
acceptable to the Company).

PREXHMN T TBEREE) —HREE
5h 2 122021568308 IEAARNESF =
ETBABRBREZHMBEANREATHHE
HEOEE (E&ER(EFRAERG)EXVED)
Z R BERD REST  EERE(FS
FRHREIRE ) EXVERE 7R B8N WA E &
RE RN EEI KR (BERE(E
SREERAD R EEREEZTHA
ERBEH/AEFEANERRKR) > HIRE
(BERAERA) BI2HRRELKREE
SRARBDRFENE MR X
B WRBRETRIAN G RAT KB PR
BRmI KA -

N AR it )
RENBEREZESEENR2018FE5813H E
mo A NBIRE (TARER) M20185F4819H
ZERERFHIREPRREBBRMFRANE
PetEstd (TRERRIESTE) - RUBRESTE
EEGRTATERN@EMBOZALRE
BERERABDREZHEG MR REZF
mEAREER S HRRESAEER
ZHEEMmEF

SRIFR AR EMERRMESTH FTHIRER
WAERRGHHOER HERE  RIFERE
A rEERES (BERTES) REFT
BB BENHEMA T ERBRELURE
B EIRB AR AT EREMEBIFTHH
ERRG A FEBBIR2018F4F198 &
NEBEITRINDBEI0%-

RIFEARR B RMBEEREST B IR LM H K
TENEREETERETHRETOR
PR TREBBERIIRKEETRME
BHI30% o AR AR MR BRER A
HHEEER1.008 T (AEENARERE
NERMNEFEMER) o
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

WEZS P88 )

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and to be granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company to each participant in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant of the options
must not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options which would result in the number of the
Shares issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit must be
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting at which such
participant and his or her associates must abstain from voting.

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director,
chief executive, or substantial Shareholder of the Company
or any of their respective associate must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors, excluding any independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee of the share options.

The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by
the Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall
expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of the grant.
As at 30 June 2021, share options to subscribe for 63,684,000
Shares (representing approximately 2.15% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30 June 2021 (i.e. 2,967,116,120
shares)) remained outstanding.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and notified to a participant, provided that such
price shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer of a share option which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five consecutive
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 18 April 2028.
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

REZR P B )

Movement of share options granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme for the six months ended 30 June 2021

was as follows:

HE2021FE6830H ERER » X AT IRE

BRESEIROBEREZESHINT !

Exercise Exercise As at Granted  Exercised Lapsed As at
Name or category price per period  1January during the during the during the 30 June
of participants Date of grant  Share (Notes) 2021 period period period 2021
T1EH 120215 120215
SEEHATER RHBH SkiTEE (Pt zE) 1810  HREH BRTE BHRR™ 6B30H
Directors
3
Mr. Wang Jun 23 August 2018 HK$3.470 6 10,800,000 - - - 10,800,000
T #k& 2018%F8H23H  3.470%TT
Ms. Li Hua’ 27 March 2013 HK$2.560 3 1,500,000 - (1,456,000) = 44,000
F By 201338270 256087
23 May 2017 HK$1.764 4 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) - -
2017%5823H 1.76457T
Ms. Chen Ying 12 June 2018 HK$4.296 5 5,000,000 = (10,000) - 4,990,000
B OBt 2018F6H 120 4.29E7T
Chief Executive
oOfficer
HRERITE
Mr. Wang Jun (ibid.)
T #RE@EL
Senior Management, 25 July 2011 HK$2.160 2 - - - - -
other employees
and consultants
of the Group
AEFSREERE  20METRA2BH 216087
HitfE 8 KB
27 March 2013 HK$2.560 3 9,250,000 - (1,300,000) (500,000) 7,450,000
2013%3827H 25608 7T
23 May 2017 HK$1.764 4 5,500,000 - (5,500,000) - -
2017558230 17648 7T
12 June 2018 HK$4.296 5 59,000,000 - (4,800,000) (3,000,000) 57,200,000
2018565 12H 4.2968 7T
23 August 2018 HK$3.470 6 10,000,000 - (6,000,000) - 4,000,000
20185F8A23H 34707
108,050,000 - (26,066,000) (3,500,000) 78,484,000
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

WEZS P88 )

Notes: B 5E

1. In relation to each grantee of the share options granted under the 1.

Share Option Scheme, no share option is exercisable within the
first year from the respective dates of grant, that is, 25 July 2011,
27 March 2013, 23 May 2017, 12 June 2018 and 23 August 2018
(the "Dates of Grant”), not more than 20% of the share options are
exercisable within the second year from the respective Dates of
Grant and not more than 40% of the share options are exercisable
in each of the third and fourth year from the respective Dates of
Grant.

2. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 2.
25 July 2012, 25 July 2013 and 25 July 2014 respectively to 24 July
2021.

3. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 27 3.
March 2014, 27 March 2015 and 27 March 2016 respectively to 26
March 2023.

4. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 23 4.
May 2018, 23 May 2019 and 23 May 2020 respectively to 22 May
2027.

58 The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 12 5
June 2019, 12 June 2020 and 12 June 2021 respectively to 11 June
2028.

6. The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable from 23 6.
August 2019, 23 August 2020 and 23 August 2021 respectively to
22 August 2028.

7. The 44,000 share options are beneficially owned by the spouse of 7.
Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua), therefore Ms. Wu Wallis (alias Li Hua)
is deemed to be interested in her spouse’s share options for the
purposes of the SFO.

8. The weighted average closing price of the Ordinary Shares of the 8.
Company immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$4.07.

REERESSRENBRENSRKEA
REBNEE R BI2011478250 ~ 2013
fF3H27H 2017458238 ~ 2018568 12H
K2018F8H23H (RHHH) BEERAR
BITERERE, PSREHPRFEFER
TETEBB0%RMWERE , MREFEER
RS E =R FNESE  DRARETER
BA0%RY B BG HE o

BREDAZHITE TEHRS R BE20124F
78250 201378250 %2014E7825H
EE2021FE7H24H LE -

BRED D =HITE TEIDHB2014F
3H27H 20159382780 %2016%3H27H
FLZE2023F3526H Lk o

BRESH=ZHITE TEEDH B2018F
5H23H 2019455 23H K2020F5823H
EZE2027F5822H 1k

ERIED B = HITE THEHD B E20196F
68128 ~ 202068120 K%2021%F6 5 12H
EEZE2028FE6H11H Lk

BRED D =HITE TEID A B2019F
8H23H ~2020%8H23H %202148F23H
FZE2028F8 5220 Lk o

T B E I EAAL4,00017 BB
HIRB GEHFRIBERD)  FHZLWERR
EREHRBBREN B -

ERABEBRRGERZBERETEDH
1B INHE T B 24.078 7T °

Additional information in relation to the Share Option Scheme BRI MIEEINE R A D H 2R
is set out in note 22 to the financial statements of this interim LR FEIR R EE22 o
report.
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Disclosure of Interests (continued)

REZR P B )

UBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN THE
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 30 June 2021, other than the interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares or Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” above, the
following persons had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares:

F R A 2 v A 2

202156 A300 MARBDEETNEETT
BHABFA BN EXTEEREETHA
SRR~ BRI IR0 3N A 55 AV A
BIRTERESS MEBPMREZAATE
ERTBTHRABZE@RRABSIN LLTFA
ITRARFDZROVEERG FHEA AR
B SRS ARG EXVEE 2R FE30 2B 1%
XFPURBEZ m KA > Nk AR T
RIFE S R ERAISEIBFAFEZEEC
P e =

JRIBE G b 4 AT

Approximate
percentage of
the interest in the

Capacity and nature Number of Company’s issued

Name of Shareholder of interest Shares held share capital’

4 g NG

B81TRA

IR B REZHE Fr¥FRR (7 8B RIBE49 F 3 kb

Joy Bright Investments Beneficial owner 2,066,431,8672 69.64%
RIg%E BaEEAA

Zhongyuan Bank Co., Ltd. Security interest in shares 230,000,000 7.75%

PRIRTTRHDBIRAF HRMDFFE R

Notes:

1. The percentage of the interest in the Company’s issued share
capital is based on a total of 2,967,116,120 Shares in issue.

2. Mr. Wu Po Sum holds 100% of the issued share capital of Joy Bright
Investments and is deemed to be interested in the 2,066,431,867
Shares held by Joy Bright Investments for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

1. RAERTIBETRAVEZTHLIZBE %
TR DHBEL2,967,116,120/% 51 & ©

2. HRAKEFARERBZHEETRE
WRIBRBESRERIRRAHERS BE
B FTRE2,066,431,867 8% B0 HE i o

PR £ XAt 9h » 722021468308 » I FEAE
AHEMAL (FRADESFHTETHRAER
5N RARB 2R HARRERG R EBRE
BHRABRGIEXVEFE2KRIDE ZHEX
AAARRNBREZ BmINE » WIREE
KRB IRPIEIBFELNERARNBFEZ
Mz EmeKa e
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

15855 1 b HoAth &k

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always valued the superiority, steadiness and
rationality of having a sound system of corporate governance
and is committed to continuously improving its corporate
governance and disclosure practices. For the six months
ended 30 June 2021, the Company complied with all code
provisions and, where appropriate, adopted the recommended
best practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) with the exception of code provision E.1.2 as
addressed below.

Code provision E.1.2 - This code provision requires the
chairmen of the Board (the “Chairman”) to invite the
chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees to attend the annual general meeting.

Mr. Wu Po Sum, the Executive Director, the Chairman of the
Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company, was unable to attend the 2021 AGM as he was out of
town for other business.

Mr. Xin Luo Lin, an independent non-executive Director and the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company, and
Mr. Cheung Shek Lun, an independent non-executive Director
and the chairman of the audit committee of the Company, were
unable to attend the 2021 AGM as they were out of town for
other business.

In their absence, Mr. Yeung Wai Leung, an alternate director to
Mr. Wu Po Sum, attended the 2021 AGM and answered questions
raised at the meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
the Directors in their dealings in the Company’s securities.
Having made specific enquires with each Director, the Company
confirmed that the Directors had complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the six months ended
30 June 2021.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)

18 5% 8 16 B HLA & R

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of director of the Company are set out below:

Mr. Lim Ming Yan has been appointed as a director of Sembcorp
Industries Ltd (Singapore Stock Code: U96),the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited with effect from 18 January 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements,
there were no significant events subsequent to 30 June 2021
which would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this report.

REVIEW OF INTERIM RESULTS BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has discussed with the
management and external auditors the accounting principles and
policies adopted by the Group, and has reviewed the Group's
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2021.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared an interim dividend (the “Interim Dividend"”)
of HK$14.75 cents per share for the six months ended 30 June
2021 (six months ended 30 June 2020: HK$11.00 cents per share).

The Interim Dividend will be paid on or around Thursday, 23
September 2021 to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 8 September 2021.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information (continued)

TEBR N HMER @

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to the Interim Dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7 September
2021 to Wednesday, 8 September 2021. In order to qualify for
the Interim Dividend, all properly completed share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
6 September 2021, for registration. The Interim Dividend will be
paid on or around Thursday, 23 September 2021.
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Consolidated Income Statement

o e %

for the six months ended 30 June 2021 — unaudited #;Z20214E6H30H 1L/ H —R A H %

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %IAR)

Six months ended 30 June

HHE6H30HLERER
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

M et ARBTT ARBETTT

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue
Other net income
Selling and marketing expenses

General and administrative expenses
Impairment losses on trade and other
receivables and contract assets

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of
associates

Share of profits less losses of
joint ventures

Profit before change in fair
value of investment
property and income tax

Net valuation gains/(losses) on
investment property

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the period

E7

=g iufll &

HAWg A S 58

HERTHEHERERX

—RRITHFAX

85 HtEWRUE K
BNEENRERBIE

RAE A
FEAGEE A BB F R RS 18

BiEaE RGN REBR

RREMEAABEESH R
FRiSIE AT F

REYEMLE
Wz, (B548) /P38

FRIR A E F)

PSR

HA P9 i 7
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3 20,356,906 13,018,858

(16,719,102) (9,930,084)

3,637,804 3,088,774
4 130,800 170,131
4 190,137 522,151
(773,087) (907,309)
(788,693) (822,815)
S (35,110) (95,498)
2,361,851 1,955,434
9 (464,356) (369,524)
817 (2,557)
68,874 (41,259)
1,967,186 1,542,094
9 96,886 (84,789)
J] 2,064,072 1,457,305
6 (1,038,859) (671,148)
1,025,213 786,157
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Consolidated Income Statement (continued)
SE O W R 3 )

for the six months ended 30 June 2021 - unaudited #%20214E6H30H 1E/NMEH — R A F %
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA R ¥F1HR)

Six months ended 30 June

HHE6H30HLENER
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

Hiat ARBTT ARBETTT

Attributable to: FE1L -

Equity shareholders of the Company ZAT#EZZIFA A 729,124 726,982
Non-controlling interests JEE R R 296,089 59,175
Profit for the period Az F 1,025,213 786,157
Earnings per share SREF 7

- Basic (RMB cents) —EX (ANRED) 25.63 26.43
- Diluted (RMB cents) —#8 (ARED) 25.54 25.93
The notes on pages 112 to 154 form part of this interim financial F12BE154B WM 51 48 B 2 A A B 75 3k
report. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the EHN—HD ENARIAERFTEAREN
Company are set out in note 22. SHIEH N MIEE22 0
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

I N Y/

for 1 2 I IR 2 2

for the six months ended 30 June 2021 — unaudited #;Z20214E6H30H 1L/ H —R A H %
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %IAR)

Six months ended 30 June

HZF6H30HLNER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Profit for the period sl 1,025,213 786,157
Other comprehensive income for HrREMZEKE RIER
the period (after tax and ENoEELHRAER)

reclassification adjustments)

Items that will not be reclassified to FEE D EERmIEE :
profit or 10Ss.
Equity investments at fair value through BAnBESAEMEZEWRED

other comprehensive income — REKE - R BEHEFE
net movement in fair value reserve (R mr (o))
(non-recycling) 9,459 456

Items that may be reclassified subsequently H# b] §E E#T 73 FE 18 m AV IEH ©
to profit or 10Ss:

Exchange differences on: PERE%R -
— translation of financial statements to —ITENBREREZIET
the presentation currency 62,029 (120,184)
- arising on a monetary item that forms —ELBHDBINEBLE
part of net investment in foreign FRENERIER
operations 78,868 (99,355)
Other comprehensive income HRHEMZEKRE
for the period 150,356 (219,083)
Total comprehensive income HRzmmEiEsE
for the period 1,175,569 567,074
Attributable to: i
Equity shareholders of the Company KRB HRFBA 879,484 510,927
Non-controlling interests FFIERG 296,085 56,147
Total comprehensive income HRzmi=4a%E
for the period 1,175,569 567,074
The notes on pages 112 to 154 form part of this interim financial F12BE154B WM 55 48 B 2 AR A B 75 3R
report. EN—E Do
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

a5 o MBIk DL R

at 30 June 2021 - unaudited JR20214E6H30H—KA& H %

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R FIHR)

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
120214 120204
6830H 12H31H
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
HiaE AR¥T T AERETFIT
Non-current assets ERHEE

Property, plant and equipment Yz BB R E 8 8,945,966 7,232,353
Investment property KREYE 9 4,388,700 4,080,100
Intangible assets BT EE 74,664 -
Goodwill Ek 1,045,660 1,045,660
Biological assets EYEE 201,907 218,001
Interests in associates B A B fEm 170 184,308 215,648
Interests in joint ventures ETrE#R 11 7,151,758 5,480,835
Other financial assets HEMEmEE 582,307 567,409
Deferred tax assets IR IAE B 311,459 376,490
22,886,729 19,216,496

Current assets RENEE
Trading securities RS MBS 58,437 62,059
Biological assets EYEE 46,300 42,400
Inventories and other contract costs & EREMELMZ 12 94,029,659 89,430,850
Contract assets BHNEE 24,616 242,608
Trade and other receivables 8 5 K B e W=k 18 13 6,837,115 5,160,062
Deposits and prepayments BERFENRIE 14 17,303,152 17,583,158
Tax recoverable B Y Bl I8 3,661,836 2,836,267
Restricted bank deposits ZREERITER 15 5,608,010 6,707,913
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEEY 16 10,872,215 22,618,964
138,441,340 144,684,281

current liabilities REIBE
Bank loans RITHER 17 (2,879,337) (3,612,904)
Other loans HME 18 (1,557,534) (1,443,900)
Trade and other payables B 5 K EMmE[RIE 79 (54,969,853) (50,728,425)
Contract liabilities SR8 E (61,332,607) (63,298,581)
Corporate bonds NEMES 21 (1,500,000) (2,999,970)
Senior notes BEER 20 (2,588,896) (7,201,463)
Lease liabilities HEaE (125,676) (130,096)
Taxation payable &S #3 18 (1,484,108) (1,223,219)
(126,438,011) (130,638,558)
Net current assets RENEBEEFE 12,003,329 14,045,723

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & [ f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

i MBIk I 2% )

at 30 June 2021 - unaudited JR20214E6H30H—KAEH %

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %IAR)

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
6830H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
K&t AR¥T T AERET T
Total assets less current BEERTEERE
liabilities 34,890,058 33,262,219
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Bank loans RITE™R 17 (3,556,850) (1,888,125)
Other loans HEmR 18 (420,000) (1,163,000)
Senior notes BEEE 20 (15,790,604) (12,994,360)
Lease liabilities HEaRE (707,525) (756,882)
Deferred tax liabilities EILRIBEEE (1,663,417) (1,877,817)
(22,138,396) (18,680,184)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 12,751,662 14,582,035
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERKEE
Share capital g s 260,364 258,195
Reserves & 9,434,479 11,118,459
Total equity attributable to EATESEFEA
equity shareholders of FE(L TR 40 %E
the Company 9,694,843 11,376,654
Non-controlling interests JEERR S 3,056,819 3,205,381
TOTAL EQUITY WS 4EEE 12,751,662 14,582,035

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

18 August 2021.

Wu Po Sum
[REES
Executive Director
HITEE

The notes on pages 112 to 154 form part of this interim financial

report.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e ME R SR AR

for the six months ended 30 June 2021 - unaudited #E20214E6H30H 1E/5NMEH — KL H#H %
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R FIHR)

Share-hased Property Fair value Non-
Share Share Statutory  Other capital Exchange  compensation revaluation reserve Retained controlling Total
capital premium — reserve fund reserve feserve feserve reserve  (non-recycling) profits Total interests equity
HRAZHH RARESH
B Ritad ielEE  AfANEE EfkR Helie  NEEHER (RadE) REEH 58 FekEs R4S
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

it \BRTR ABRFR AEBFR \EBFR AEBFR AEBFR AERFR ABRFR \BRTR \BRTR \BRTR \EBFR

Balance at 1 January 2020 R0NEIRIBLER 240,662 2,509,280 3,091,214 3n9m (1,108,725) 127,962 6419 31,035 4,488,146 9,718,025 2,884,296 12,602,321
Changes in equity for the six months HENNF6RALIERL

ended 30 June 2020; fags:
Proftforthe period B - - - - - - - - 726,982 126,982 59175 786,157
Oifier comprehensive income Efh2EkE - - - - (216511) - - 45 - (216,055) (3,028) (219,083)
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - - (216511) - - 45 726,98 510927 56,147 567,004
Dividend approved n respect of previous years ~ BEEEHENRS 29 - - - - - - - - (179,430) (1719,430) - (119.430)
Dividend declared to non-controling ntrests EfJERERRS - - - - - - - - - - (28,854) (28,854)
Aporopriation o statutory resenve fund SATHEHES - - 250869 - - - - - 250,869) - - -
Shares issued under shere aption scheme RERRENIRARG 20 3604 80,405 - - - (19,333) - - - 64,716 - 64,716
Equity setfed share-based payment NEREENRRZATE - - - - - 8576 - - - 2576 - 8,576
Disposalof subsiciries HEHRAT - - - - - - - - - - 6,43) 6,438)
Disposals of partal nerest in subsiciries HEWBAT SRR - - - (3,030) - - - - - (3,030) 128,844 125,814
Aoquisiions of additional interests n subsidieries ~ EEHEATEE - - - 64,467 - - - - - 84,467 (68,769) (4302
Acquisiions of subsidiaries KEHEAR 7 - - - - - - - - - - 523412 53412

364 80405 250,869 61437 - 4283 - - (1,030,299) (629,701) 548,195 (81,506)

Balance at 30 June 2020 and RNNEANER

1 July 2020 NNETF1RZER 244306 2,689,685 3,342,083 391,409 (1,323,236) 132,205 6479 3 4184829 9,699,251 3,488,638 13,087,889

Changes in equity for the six months ended  #%2020512R31AL7ERL

31 December 2020: fiage:

Proft forthe period R - - - - - - - - 1,074,526 1,074,526 20878 1,315,404
Other comprehiensive ncome K2 EkeE - - - - 972,020 - - (20951) - 951,069 2984 954,083
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - - - 972,020 - - (20951) 1,074,526 2,025,595 243,862 2269457
Dividend declared in respect of the curent year — HAEEERKS 24 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Dividend declared nrespect o the current year ~ HAEE BT - - - - - - - - (219,157) (219,157) - (219,157)
Dividend pad to non-controling inerests BiifERRARE - - - - - - - - - - (379,99) (379,99)
Appropriation o statutory reserve fund RTIEHES - - 49 - - - - - (#18.419) - - -
Capital contrbution from non-controling nterests ~ EERE&AE - - - - - - - - - - 397,91 397,91
Restricted Sheres ssued under she award scheme - EERARBHEZAENERHRA 9,089 - - (9.089) - - - - - - - -
Shares issued under share option sceme ERRREHIERA 4800 10376 - - - (34,140) - - - 12,03 - 12,03
Fquity setied share-0ased payment NEREENRAZATE - - - - - 6161 - - - 6,161 - 6,161
Dispasals of subsidiaies HERBAT - - - - - - - - - - (611,072) (611,072)
Dispasals of partal interest i subsidiares HERRARS R - - - (32,575) - - - - - (32,575) 54,035 21,460
Aoquisitions of additiondl interests in subsidiaries ~ EEHEATEE - - - (54,657) - - - - - (54,657) - (54,657)
Aoquisiions of subsidiries WERELE - - - - - - - - - - 12,000 12,000

13,889 11,376 49 (96,321) - (21979) - - (697,576) (248,192) (521,119) (175,31)
Balance 31 December 2020 R00ENANALER 258,195 2,731,081 3760502 295,088 (351,216) 104,226 6479 10,540 4561119 11,376,654 3,205,381 14,582,035
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

Fro REm B Eh % )

for the six months ended 30 June 2021 - unaudited #%2£20214F6H30H 1k /5 H H—R & %

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R %IAR)
Shere-based Property Fairvalue Nor-
Share Share Statutory Other capital Bxchange compensation Tevaluation TESee Retained controling Total
capial premium resenve fund Teserve Teserve Teserve reserve  (non-ecycling) profits Totl interests equity
PUORGL DEEER
2 RfEE HEdEE  AftEsgE EQkE HeliE  NEEfER (F7EE) REEH ] ek RESE
Note RMB000 RMB00 RMB00 RMBO0 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB00 RVBY00
L3 AE#TT AE#TT AE#TT AE#TT AE#TT AEBTT NEBTT NEBTT NEBTT AE#TR AE#TT AE#TRT

Balance at 1 January 2021 RONEIRIBZER 258195 2731061 3760502 295088 (351,216) 104,228 6419 10,540 4561719 11376654 3205381 14562085
Changes in equity for the six months BENNECRNALAERL
ended 30 June 2021: Eags:
Proftforthe period B = = = = = = 1 w1 26089 105213
Oifier comprehensive income £ EkE - - 10901 - 9459 - 150360 (0] 15035
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE = - - 1901 - 9459 % 8948 16085 117559
Dividend approved nrespectof revious years  BEEERENRS 24 = = = = - - - (663039 (663039 - (663,039
Aporopriation o statutory reserves fund SATHEHES - - 70053 - - - - (270053 - - -
Restricted shares lsted under share awrd scheme - RERMERHBETHRRIRE 20 = 18159 = (181950) = = = = = = =
Shares issued under sfere option scheme ERERE RS ) 2169 7407 - (20678) - - 8% - B8%
Fquity setted share-dased peyment NEREENRAZATE - - - - - 251 - - 053 - 0531
Disposalof subsidiries HEHEAR = = = = = = = = = 8412) (8412
Disrouton n specie i 20 = = = = = = - (1316521) (1316521) = (1316521)
Aoquisions of additiondl interests in subsidiaries ~ EEBHEATES = = (663,184) - - - 663,164) (654.901) 1,318065)
Acquistions of subsidaries HEHRAT 7 - - - - - - - - - 218466 218666

2189 bk 0 B5,154) - 185 - ] 036159 ) B3
Balance at 30 June 2021 R021ER30R 248 260364 2990458 403055 (550,066) (210315) 108,079 6419 1999 306,290 9694843 305819 12751662
The notes on pages 112 to 154 form part of this interim financial F1128 £ 1548 B9 Mt 5F 48 Ak 4 -0 23 B 75 3R
report. EN—E Do
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

il I 5 5 Bl i R

for the six months ended 30 June 2021 - unaudited #;Z20214F6H30H 1L/ H —RE& HZ%

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN R FIHR)

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HIEER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
Operating activities R EE
Cash (used in)/generated from & (FrA) FrifRe
operations (1,611,832) 6,403,301
Income tax paid BEIFTEHR (1,727,302) (1,676,185)
Net cash (used in)/generated gEEE (FrA)
from operating activities FrigIRE 248 (3,339,134) 4,727,116
Investing activities KREEE
Payment for purchase of property, BEVE BEMRENR
plant and equipment (185,528) (371,716)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE HRE KRR EFREHIE
plant and equipment 72,440 2,075
Net cash paid upon acquisitions of  WEEHI B R BN B[ IRE/FEE
subsidiaries (484,497) (820,727)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) upon HENBABNIERE
disposals of subsidiaries A CRi) F58 43,111 (133,179)
Investments in joint ventures REEhERE (85,973) (253,397)
Advances to joint ventures BRTEERE (796,067) (433,792)
Repayment from joint ventures BETERM 623,819 878,897
Advances to associates BARFHE AT (8,004) (12,346)
Repayment from associates &R BIER 23,675 9,807
Proceeds from disposals of HEEMESMEEMERE
other financial assets - 333,827
Interest received B UH 2 95,398 150,204
Others Hh 3,900 (14,630)
Net cash used in investing KREGHFFRAREREE
activities (697,726) (664,977)

The notes on pages 112 to 154 form part of this interim financial

report.

HH—ED o
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
WG EBlERa R @

for the six months ended 30 June 2021 - unaudited #E20214E6H30H 1E75MEH — KL #H %

(CCONN 2D

(Expressed in Renminbi)

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HIE/NER
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
HaE ARBETT AR®T T
Financing activities S EE)
Proceeds from new bank loans FIBIRITERTER 2,598,785 875,000
Repayment of bank loans ERIREITTER (2,217,258) (3,062,672)
Cash receipts/(payment) of RITERNBFRENIRE
guarantee deposits of bank loans Wik~ (I 30 395,866 (10,330)
Proceeds from other loans and HMER R EEERIE
borrowings 2,331,896 1,990,667
Repayment of other loans and BEHEMERREES
borrowings (4,200,996) (3,435,887)
Net proceeds from issue of BITEBAEERFTRIE 5
senior notes 3,009,119 6,495,265
Repayment of redemption upon B REEIHELER
maturity senior notes (4,543,185) (2,177,104)
Repayment of corporate bonds NEEFER (1,500,000) =
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from METMTEEEEEW
settlement of derivative B& (R HRA
financial instruments 358 (217,093) 19,275
Net cash distributed in respect of EYNIRZIRED I EEE 22(b)
distribution in specie (1,307,290) -
Proceeds from shares/restricted R 3R B8 I R 51 81 K2 B 17 22 B
shares issued under share option BT IR IR
scheme and share award scheme AR B PR1S R IE 120,692 64,716
Interest paid EHE (1,060,697) (1,274,123)
Dividend paid BNEKRE (663,039) (779,430)
Acquisitions of additional interest BRENEADER
in subsidiaries (347,723) (58,960)
Disposal of partial interest in HERB AT D #ER
subsidiaries - 96,635
Capital element of lease rentals paid BHEEHEEMNERILD (55,304) (5,893)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B SR EMNF] B25 (19,608) (21,750)
Others HAth - (1,212)
Net cash used in from =B EEFF AR S R E
financing activities (7,675,835) (1,285,803)
Net (decrease)/increase in B RIBESZEY
Cash and cash equivalents at 11N B RIESZEY
1 January 22,618,964 22,707,659
Effect of changes in foreign 4 BB BB SR g B 22
exchange rate (34,054) 70,781
cash and cash equivalents at 6H30AMBELSRBESZEY
30 June 10,872,215 25,554,776

The notes on pages 112 to 154 form part of this interim financial

report.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4 55 9% B sk

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Central China Real Estate Limited (“the Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15
November 2007. Its principal place of business is at Room
7701B-7702A, 77th Floor, International Commerce Centre, 1
Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and its registered
office is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. This interim financial report
as at and for the six months ended 30 June 2021 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
“the Group”) and the Group's interests in associates and joint
ventures. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the Group are principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and hotel operations in Henan
Province in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC").

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

This interim financial report has been prepared in
accordance with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, including compliance with
Hong Kong Accounting Standard (HKAS) 34, Interim financial
reporting, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). It was authorised for issue on
18 August 2021.

The interim financial report has been prepared in
accordance with the same accounting policies adopted
in the 2020 annual financial statements, except for
the accounting policy changes that are expected to be
reflected in the 2021 annual financial statements. Details of
any changes in accounting policies are set out in note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 #5HA4N DL R ¥ 51 HR)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The preparation of an interim financial report in conformity
with HKAS 34 requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses on a year to date basis. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

This interim financial report contains condensed
consolidated financial statements and selected explanatory
notes. The notes include an explanation of events and
transactions that are significant to an understanding of the
changes in financial position and performance of the Group
since the 2020 annual financial statements. The condensed
consolidated interim financial statements and notes
thereon do not include all of the information required for a
full set of financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSS.

The interim financial report is unaudited, but has been
reviewed by KPMG in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410, Review of interim financial
information performed by the independent auditor of the
entity, issued by the HKICPA. KPMG's independent review
report to the Board of Directors is included on pages 155 to
156.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in this interim financial report.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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APRAMBREREEZ BEFHA
CEMEBARERESBESMNLT
FRIBM 2 &2 E R TIEERI 5241058
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(a) Revenue

Wt % Be o7 i s

(a) Wi
AREBNETEXHEYERE
MERERBEKE B AE

The principal activities of the Group are property
development, property leasing and hotel operations.

Revenue of the Group for the period is analysed as BEHWESWT

follows:

(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) Wath957 48
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BREZERIRBEDE
customers by major products or service lines is ZEREHWRmAT

as follows:

Six months ended 30 June

114

HZE6H30HLEREAR
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TIT
Revenue from contracts with EAMBHREEL
customers within the scope FI55REE N
of HKFRS15 ER&H W
Disaggregation by major products BIEELIRBEDLE
or service lines
— Sales of properties —HEYE 19,417,567 12,364,883
- Revenue from hotel operations — R EBE &SN E 165,599 92,495
- Revenue from project —REEEEEREN
management service W 566,363 462,048
- Others — =2 115,626 41,954
20,265,155 12,961,380
Revenue from other sources Hth =
- Rental income from investment —KREYENESIWA
properties 70,078 38,317
— Rental income from properties —FEYENESWA
for sale 21,673 19,161
91,751 57,478
20,356,906 13,018,858
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued)

(1)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

3 Wk B gy ik (A9)

(a) Wi (5

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing of revenue recognition is as

follows:

(i)

W&t 4953 48 (48)
RUmEEAREIEZE

FEaMWmENT :

Six months ended 30 June

HHZE6H30HIEER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT
Point in time BF 2k
— Sales of properties — I E Y 17,012,882 7,763,374
- Revenue from hotel operations — R BB G &S IR 165,599 92,495
— Others —Hfth 115,626 41,954
17,294,107 7,897,823
Over time B 1 %

— Sales of properties —SHE Y 2,404,685 4,601,509

- Revenue from project —REBEEEEREN
management service & 566,363 462,048

- Rental income from investment —KEYENHEEUWA
properties 70,078 38,317

— Rental income from properties —HEMENESIWA
for sale 21,673 19,161
3,062,799 5,121,035
20,356,906 13,018,858
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting

(i)

(i)

Products and services from which
reportable segments derive their revenue

Information reported to the Group’'s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is more focused on the Group
as a whole, as all of the Group’s activities
are considered to be primarily dependent on
the performance on property development.
Resources are allocated based on what is
beneficial for the Group in enhancing its
property development activities as a whole
rather than any specific service. Performance
assessment is based on the results of the Group
as a whole. Therefore, management considers
there to be only one operating segment
under the requirements of HKFRS 8, Operating
segments.

Geographic information

No geographical information is shown as the
revenue and profit from operations of the Group
is substantially derived from activities in the
PRC.

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & [ f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

3

Wei B o1 vk v (A

(b) Sk

(i)

(i)

¥ & 7 BB U A W B9
aa K IR %

FRAXEBTIEEERRK
EMBERDE KRD BN
SHEMEHREHE  BAE
KR EEBRRAS—BE R
HARAEBHNMBEXEA
WEBTEEBYERE
WER - EDERERE > )
RiMEHNAEBMARE
RRYEREETEN Mk
RBAE 45 TE AR TS o R ET
HTRERAEENEREX
Bo-MEEEBR R RESE
B HREERFBIREE
DEBRE AEEER—

B D8R

WERE

el 7 7 65 [ B M 3 T A
R E RS PE R
LA 4 2 SR B S o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 #5HA4N DL R ¥ 51 HR)

4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4 AW s By AW A 150

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HIERER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETIT
Other revenue Hithig &
Interest income B A 109,167 154,583
Dividend income from equity securities REZAEHRI R EURA 3,900 6,734
Government grants B 48 B 7,630 3,059
Others Hith 10,103 5,755
130,800 170,131
Other net income Hthk AR %8
Net realised and unrealised loss RZEHFEFEDERK
on trading securities REIRREIEFEE (2,925) (3,782)
Inventory write-down FEMR (251,381) (289,411)
Net loss on disposals of property, HEYE BERKERIEHEE
plant and equipment (12) (2,228)
Net gain on deemed disposals RIEHERBLEGERE
and disposals of joint ventures U & 7R B 36,134 894,029
Net gain on deemed disposals BIEHERHERBRR
and disposals of subsidiaries U 5% B8 380,135 21,439
Net gain on deemed disposals BIEHERHERE AT
and disposals of associates W 505 B8 8,486 8,399
Net exchange gain/(loss) SNEEUW R, (B518) /348 56,305 (23,768)
Others Hith (36,605) (82,527)
190,137 522,151
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

5  BrBi i Al

BRIAER B GEA) UTFRIE:

Six months ended 30 June

HZE6H30HIEER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBT T
(a) Finance costs (a) FLERLAS
Interest on bank loans and RTEAREMEENT 2
other borrowings 1,158,334 1,338,450
Interest on lease liabilities HEAaENHE 19,608 21,752
Total interest expense on NABEEH T ABERN
financial liabilities not at THEBENEFNEME
fair value through profit or loss 1,177,942 1,360,202
Interest accrued on advance BEEBNRESTE
payments from customers 1,214,418 1,398,281
Less: interest expense capitalised B EREEZERYE
into properties under BEARENFERSZ
development (2,057,639) (2,303,675)
334,721 454,808
Net change in fair value of METEN AR BEESFE
derivatives 129,635 (85,284)
464,356 369,524
(b) Other items (b) Hfthimg
Amortisation 55 4,861 -
Depreciation charge TEER
- owned property, plant and —BEEYE BERKE
equipment 108,635 126,601
- right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 41,828 29,836
Impairment losses on trade and 85  HtEWRIBE R
other receivables and ENEENRERRE
contract assets 35,110 95,498
Cost of properties sold BEEMERE 16,371,267 9,755,390
Advertising and promotion EIRERIHES X
expenses to football club HEMRS 2,000 225,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 #5HA4N DL R ¥ 51 HR)

6 INCOME TAX 6 s

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30HIENER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®ETTT

Current tax HEARRIE
PRC Corporate Income Tax R ZEFTER 817,393 515,134
PRC Land Appreciation Tax FRE 4 3 I E AR 292,096 210,950
Withholding tax B 113,562 50,000
1,223,051 776,084

Deferred tax IRIEFRIE
PRC Corporate Income Tax FRE (>R R (131,009) (129,281)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax FR B o i E AR (53,183) 24,345
(184,192) (104,936)
1,038,859 671,148
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & [ f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5

INCOME TAX (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in the Cayman Islands.

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits in
Hong Kong.

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for CIT is based on the respective
applicable rates on the estimated assessable profits
of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC (“PRC
subsidiaries”) as determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

The PRC subsidiaries were subject to the actual
taxation method, charged CIT at a rate of 25% (2020:
25%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
period.

Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

All income from the sale or transfer of state-owned
land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities
in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land
value, with an exemption provided for property sales
of ordinary residential properties (Z@ZEFETE) if
their appreciation of land value do not exceed 20% of
the sum of the total deductible items.

Withholding tax

Withholding taxes are levied on the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong subsidiaries”)
in respect of dividend distributions arising from profit
of PRC subsidiaries earned after 1 January 2008 and
interest on inter-company balance received by Hong
Kong subsidiaries from PRC subsidiaries ranged from
5% to 10%.

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

6

PS8t (4

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

RERS B ESHNRRIKRER &
ANEBREMEAFSEESHE
A o

R AR B S AL AT AME S
FERME A R BA B R
TRIEL B

rp R £ SR S B (TS
B
TEMESRBERRBELALTR
R R BB A B (TR BT 8 A
) At ERREANIZZEEE
ME ERPEAEENOAERR
B R FRGIEE) Mt & o

R B A B AR E IR IE A
o AR R G 5t SR AR A A B9
25% (20204 : 25%) BT K451
EFEH o

LR (TR )
RAEEENEERA L E
BT AW E R 2 I
A AR B T #IZEZE3I0%
F60%H) R ER KB T Ig &
MoMEBEREEEREBBIINRN
THEMER20%I EBIRELETH
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

7

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

EARNINGS PER SHARE 7 R
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) TEREIEAE A
The calculation of basic earnings per share is SEERELABRAMTILEREA
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity AEEEDREE ABMGREAN A
shareholders of the Company of RMB729,124,000 R #729,124,0005% (20204 :
(2020: RMB726,982,000) and the weighted average of AR #726,982,0007%) & s Fh
2,844,797,169 ordinary shares (2020: 2,750,284,882 HEZHTZERNMNEFEIS
shares) in issue during the interim period. $02,844,797,1698% (20204 :
2,750,284,88288) °
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) T A 9 2 )
The calculation of diluted earnings per share was ERAREEBEERITE AREM
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity A AR #729,124,0007% (2020
shareholders of the Company of RMB729,124,000 £ ARKT726,982,0007T) K&
(2020: RMB726,982,000) and the weighted average BAZBINNHE 9 8h2,854,966,974
number of ordinary shares of 2,854,966,974 (2020: B& (20204 : 2,803,809,4038%) 5t
2,803,809,403 shares). BER#BERT
(i)  Profit attributable to ordinary equity (i) ZFZREEZEREZITENE
shareholders of the company (diluted) 1 F (#8)
Six months ended 30 June
HHE6H30HLERER
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBETFT ARET T
Profit attributable to equity @B AELEF]
shareholders (diluted) (%) 729,124 726,982
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

7 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 7 HRREHN GE)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) RPN LA (5H)

(ii) Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted)

(i) BBREIIETISE (#5)

Six months ended 30 June

#ZE6RA30BLLAER
2021 2020
20214 2020%F

Weighted average number of R6B30H M EiER
ordinary shares at 30 June NNHE T8

Effect of deemed issue of ordinary BIEREAA B BB AR
shares under the Company's =18 K B A7 12 Eh 51 2
share option scheme and BOZERNTE

share award scheme

2,844,797,169 2,750,284,882

10,169,805 53,524,521

Weighted average number of R6B30H M EER
ordinary shares at 30 June (diluted) MAEFIEE (88 2,854,966,974 2,803,809,403
8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8 P W bkt
(a) Acquisitions and disposals of owned assets (a) W he 5 B A &

During the six months ended 30 June 2021, the Group
acquired items of property, plant and equipment
with a cost of RMB87,557,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB2,328,432,000). Items of property, plant and
equipment with a net book value of RMB72,428,000
(31 December 2020: RMB2,865,000) were disposed of
during the six months ended 30 June 2021, resulting
in a net loss on disposal of RMB12,000 (2020:
RMB2,228,000).
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REZE2021FE6830H L@
B AEEHEEYE -BKERR
HBHRAA ARKS7,557,000
7t (2020 12H31H : AR
2,328,432,0007T) ° L&, 22021
F6HI0HIEANEAARNEER®E
FEAANRKET72,428,0007TH9Y)
¥ - BERKE (202012831
B : AR#2 865,0007T) » EE
EFFEEAR12,0007T (2020
£ 1 AR#§2,228,0007T) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 9 BEME
The valuations of investment properties were updated at 7~ 55 B 8 1 (B A A B 1720204
30 June 2021 by the Group's independent valuer using the 128 EPMBERNGES EE MK
same valuation techniques as were used by this valuer EYER2021F6H0HNEHEE B
when carrying out the December 2020 valuations. As a MBI EEWE ARE6,886,0007T
result of the update, a net gain of RMB96,886,000 (2020: a (2020%F : FE1#E AR ¥84,789,000
net loss of RMB84,789,000) has been recognised in profit or 7o) EREARIERER -
loss for the period.
10 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 10 MR35 m) il ok
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20215 220204
6H30H 128B31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARFT AREFT
Share of net assets LB EZFE 140,374 156,043
Amounts due from associates FE W Bt & A Bl FRIE 43,934 59,605
184,308 215,648
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

11 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 11 SEEEELR
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20214 720204
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F T ARET T
Share of net assets BEEEFRE 1,958,692 1,821,366
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW & & XERIE 5,193,066 3,659,469
7,151,758 5,480,835

(a)

(b)

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & [ f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5

Deemed disposal of joint ventures in step
acquisitions

During the six months ended 30 June 2021, the
Group entered into equity transfer agreements with
respective joint venturers to acquire additional equity
interests. Upon completion of the above transactions,
these joint ventures became subsidiaries of the
Group.

The net gain of RMB36,134,000 (2020: RMB894,029,000)
on deemed disposals of these joint ventures was
recognised in profit or loss during the period, by
remeasuring the Group’'s previously held equity
interests in these entities at the acquisition date fair
value.

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from joint ventures included
amount of RMB1,107,125,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB1,210,396,000) which are interest-bearing at
10% — 12% per annum, unsecured and have no fixed
terms of payment. The remaining amounts due from
joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of payment. They are expected to be
recovered after more than one year.

(a) BT BBORTT A BB SR
B E2021F6830H IEAER » &
EEREGERRTURBEEER
th 5% LAUS B8 BB 1 AR AE © O ST AR
LR GR ZEFEEEEAS
AEENWBAF -

BRAENSEAERBENRZ
EEECLEFTENRETWRE
HENAABE > R FIESY
EZEERN KRR FEAREK
36,134,0007c (20204 : AR
894,029,0007T) MRi8m MR

(b) REWEE AR
ERaErERBEBARE
1,107,125,0007% (2020£E124831
H : AR#1,210,396,00070) &%
EFRI0%E12%5T B~ ERIB R
EEEERH BUEEDLER
HerARER - 2EREEE
BEUH -ZEREEHRRNBS
—FBY[E o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

12 INVENTORIES AND OTHER CONTRACT COSTS 12 fFE R HAL &R A
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20214 R 20204
6830H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Inventories =5

Properties held for future development FHIERKRELERTEERTEYE
and under development for sale 84,033,918 82,552,774
Completed properties held for sale BERFENBB T Y 9,695,194 6,585,147
Others HAth 22,080 21,240
93,751,192 89,159,161
Other contract costs HM &4 A 278,467 271,689
94,029,659 89,430,850

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’'s inventories of
RMB5,582,919,000 (31 December 2020: RMB5,774,503,000)
were pledged as securities of joint ventures’ loans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 5 B HoAth IRk
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20215 220204
6H30H 128B31H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREFT
Trade debtors and bills receivable, & ST B R e e U 22 4%
net of loss allowance NERIBREER 114,935 216,702
Other debtors H AU IR R 2,018,040 1,684,228
Amounts due from joint ventures B & ERERIE 272,280 222,526
Amounts due from associates FE W Bt & A Bl FRIE 5,217 5,920
Amounts due from entities FE U FR R 4% 122 G B B R 41 BN
controlled by the ultimate B2 HIE
controlling shareholder 101,630 102,563
Amounts due from entities FE W B A& 122 A% B SR 35
jointly controlled by a HEZEFINEE 2 RIB
close family member of the
ultimate controlling shareholder 4,520 2,607
Amounts due from joint venturers BN EERENIEER R TRRIE 530,222 -
Amounts due from non-controlling & Wt I 422 G A 2 R TE
interests 3,754,445 2,890,330
Financial assets measured at HEHERA S ENTMEE
amortised cost 6,801,289 5,124,876
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMITA
- redemption call options embedded — BRI B BB O] SR HA
in senior notes 35,826 35,186
6,837,115 5,160,062




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 #5HA4N DL R ¥ 51 HR)

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Amounts due from joint ventures and non-controlling
interests are unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
terms of repayment.

Amounts due from entities controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder mainly represented amounts
in relation to the lease, hotel and other miscellaneous
services provided by the Group, which are unsecured and
to be settled according to the contract terms.

Amounts due from joint venturers are unsecured, interest-
bearing at 8%-12% per annum and expected to be repaid
within one year.

13§ 5 B AWK (5

B EEEERIFEREGNERE
R BB EEEERHAMR -

FE LT ER B A 1 R AR SR 1 B9 B R AR
EXIZEAEEREHNEE AE K
HMBEERBHNIE ZFERERE
IR KRG RIEES ARG R -

BREECENFERRRERIESE
IR~ R EF) EZ%E12%5T B KR FEH
R—EREE-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 ® 5 B Ho At EW K W (4

(a) Aging analysis (a) W&z i
EWER & E 5 EWIER S %
THE (SRR EHE URE
ELHE) U RIGEREEREED

w

The ageing analysis of bills and trade receivables,
based on the invoice date (or date of revenue
recognition, if earlier) and net of loss allowance, is as

follows: IREC DA T -
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1220214 1220204
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETIT

within 1 month 1MEA A

1to 3 months REVEERIENS 83,735 151,005
3 to 6 months 3ME B E6fE A 11,211 35,557
6 to 12 months 6fE B =128 B 17,393 21,259
Over 1 year 1E E 2,596 8,881
114,935 216,702

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due upon the FEUWRBR TR FE R IR 7E R B 205
invoicing. ESlp-

14 DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 14 & R wfr sk
At 30 June 2021, the balance included deposits and R2021F 68300 » 45 5% & 15 1E B &
prepayments for leasehold land for development ARzHETHERERBEIRARE
purpose of RMB13,493,409,000 (31 December 2020: 13,493,409,0007% (20205128311 :
RMB14,392,292,000), which will be transferred to inventory AR #14,392,292,0007T) » B &5 T ith
upon the registration of the ownership interest in the land. NEEEED BRI EEREETFE.
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WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

15 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 15 SZRURISAT 1£ K
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20214 R 20204
6830H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AERHET T
Guarantee deposits in respect of: BREATHEENRES .
— mortgage loans related to property —WEHENIZIBER
sale 4,480,580 4,512,059
— bills payable —ENEE 1,127,430 1,799,988
— bank loan —IRITER - 395,866
5,608,010 6,707,913
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 BERINEGCHFED
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
120214 120204
6830H 12B31H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREET T
Deposits with banks and other R1T R H BRI EE R
financial institutions 570,782 1,312,322
Cash at bank and in hand IRTRFHEIRE 10,301,433 21,306,642
Cash and cash equivalents in the FHERRRRIBERERTH
statement of financial position and BERIREEEY
cash flow statement 10,872,215 22,618,964

Interim Report 2021 "1 }1$% | Central China Real Estate Limited &% 37 B 67 45 PR 23 )



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

17 BANK LOANS 17 HATIEK
(a) At 30 June 2021, bank loans were repayable as (a) JiR20214E6 H30H » SRETIE =K
follows: R HM P :
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
120214 1220204
6H30H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFT AR®ETTT

Within 1 year or on demand TERNNAREREE 2,879,337 3,612,904

After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEBBE2FER 1,700,870 751,655

After 2 years but within 5 years 2B E5FA 1,630,980 889,375

After 5 years S5&1%& 225,000 247,095

3,556,850 1,888,125

6,436,187 5,501,029

(b) At 30 June 2021, the bank loans were secured as (b) JiR20214E6 H30H @ 175X
follows: RIFEPIBS L ¢

At At

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

120214 1220204

6H30H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFRT AR®ETT

Bank loans BITER
— secured — B EH 5,465,850 4,620,658
- unsecured — HEAE 970,337 880,371

6,436,187 5,501,029
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WA 5 R I AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

17 BANK LOANS (continued)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

(c) As at 30 June 2021, the secured bank loans are
secured over equity interest in subsidiaries of

17

AT (3
(c) JR20214E6 H30H » Fi ik s
ATV AR LA 5 1 B ) 2 v 1

18 OTHER LOANS

the Group and other assets as follows: il B LAt 2 7 P44 > SR
B
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1720214 7120204
6H30H 12831H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBET T
Properties for sale FEME 6,809,260 5,587,034
Property, plant and equipment S IEN Y -] 747,146 777,786
Investment property KEYE - 509,000
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHBIRITIER - 395,866
7,556,406 7,269,686
18 HAf5=K
(a) At 30 June 2021, other loans were repayable as (a) JR20215E6 H30H > HAL {5 3%
follows: MEMH@M T :
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1220214 7220204
6H30H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%FT ARBTT
Within 1 year or on demand 1ERNNAREREE 1,557,534 1,443,900
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2ER 420,000 1,163,000
1,977,534 2,606,900
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

18 OTHER LOANS (continued) 18 HAmfEk 4
(b) At 30 June 2021, the other loans were secured as (b) JiR20214E6 H30H » HARAS =%
follows: PP P -
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
120214 1220204
6H30H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFT AR®ETTT

Other loans HhfE R

- secured —H KR 1,857,000 1,877,901
- unsecured — R R 120,534 728,999
1,977,534 2,606,900

(c) As at 30 June 2021, the secured other loans are (c) JiR20214E6H30H @ £ K H

secured over interests in subsidiaries of the il 435 % LA A £ [0 Bk ) 2 ) e
Group and other assets as follows: i B LA 2 A K410 > SR

B

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
202145 1220204
6H30H 128318
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
Properties for sale FEME 3,554,484 3,990,655
Property, plant and equipment L IEN =Y -] 141,097 =
Loan deposit EiEe 3,600 -

3,699,181 3,990,655
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WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

payment.

W REREEEER-

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 5 B HoAth 8 £+ 5%
At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20215 220204
6H30H 12831H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARFT AEB®TFIT
Trade creditors and bills payable FET AR FE (T 235 33,497,955 29,186,718
Other creditors and accrued charges HtENRRRESTER 7,181,964 5,740,703
Amounts due to joint ventures B & & hERIE 6,483,590 5,713,558
Amounts due to associates B HE A B RIE 124,367 191,441
Amounts due to entities controlled by — FET RS ARIER IR IEHIAY
the ultimate controlling shareholder B IE 697,521 1,074,120
Amounts due to non-controlling FE(T IR e s A0 IE
interests 4,221,254 4,720,541
Financial liabilities measured at BEHEM AT ENETHEE
amortised cost 52,206,651 46,627,081
Other tax payables H R I8 2,376,418 3,622,450
Derivative financial instruments TEESMTA
— foreign exchange rate swap contract —9MNEERIEHEHN 91,514 77,473
— foreign exchange forward contracts  —9MNEERHESAIREIESL
and option contracts 295,270 401,421
2,763,202 4,101,344
54,969,853 50,728,425
Amounts due to joint ventures and associates are T &= b 2 K= A B I A ik
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 19 H=5) R AR W (5

134

Amounts due to entities controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder mainly included amount due to
Central China New Life Limited B X EEFRAT
(“Central China New Life") together with its subsidiaries of
RMB554,884,000 (31 December 2020: RMB763,677,000) and
amount due to DIT Group Limited BR B ERIHEBABREA
& (“Drawin Intelligent Manufacture”) together with its
subsidiaries of RMB130,988,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB112,722,000), for receiving services from these entities
as disclosed in note 26, which are interest free, unsecured
and to be settled according to the contract terms.

Amounts due to non-controlling interests included amount
of RMB122,472,000 (31 December 2020: RMB80,243,000)
which are unsecured, interest bearing at 12% (31 December
2020: 12%) per annum and repayable within 1 year. The
remaining amounts due to non-controlling interests are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
payment.

The amount of financial guarantees issued expected to
be recognised as income after more than one year is
RMB11,123,000 (2020: RMB13,274,000).

(a) Aging analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

analysis of trade creditors and bills payables based on
the invoice date is as follows:

[ 1 AR A% P2 B AR BB 4 1) AN BB BE O X
BHF Z 6 5ERZWARTS (0K sE26PT 1%
B MENBENEEERAE (ME
WMERE) ERENBABDHRBARKE
554,884,0007T (2020512831H | AR
1%763,677,00070) MIENE LS SRR
EEERAR (EAASE) ZEREKSB
ABFEIE AR 1130,988,0007% (20204
128318 : AR#112,722,00070) » B RS
MIEARE BRI RIRERESNERE
ﬁo

ENEEREGZNBCEARRE
122,472,0007T (20204128318 : AR
#£80,243,0007T) > A& I IF B EFE
12% (20205128318 1 12%) st B &
R—FERNEE HREMIFZERER
FEAERBER REREETERR-

FEHERBB —FEBREIABEA
NERHMBERSBEAARK
11,123,0007t (2020&F : AR
13,274,0007T) °

(a) Wkiliz o7 b
REBESHER RELZZAHES
P& BR AR % BB AT R IR BOBR &S 0 A
m

At At

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

20214 R 20204

6H30H 12831H

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARET T

Within 3 month 3EB A 23,520,495 21,406,358
3 - 6 months 388 E61E A 3,994,521 3,347,934
6 — 12 months 6B B E12{8 B 2,845,313 1,348,088
Over 12 months 1288 MLk 3,137,626 3,084,338
33,497,955 29,186,718
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

20 fEEEPE

BARBERED !

20 SENIOR NOTES
Liability component of the Senior Notes:

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
68308 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT ARETIT
US$400 million due in 2021 2021 E fRAE =T - 2,623,292
US$300 million due in 2021 2021 F FIHA3E =TT - 1,969,342
US$400 million due in 2021 2021F E #RAfE =T 2,588,896 2,608,829
US$500 million due in 2022 2022 E #AS R =T 3,195,591 1,942,754
US$300 million due in 2023 2023F F| B3 B =TT 1,927,997 1,945,253
US$200 million due in 2023 2023 F B HA2 (B =TT 1,286,216 1,298,701
US$400 million due in 2023 2023F F fRAE =T 2,577,968 2,603,686
US$200 million due in 2024 2024 F B HA2(E =TT 1,286,676 1,299,765
US$300 million due in 2024 2024 F F #A3fE =t 1,930,023 1,949,725
US$300 million due in 2024 2024F E BA3 B =T 1,934,270 1,954,476
US$260 million due in 2025 2025F FHA2. 62 £ 7T 1,651,863 =
18,379,500 20,195,823

Representing: 5 .
- Current —mE) 2,588,896 7,201,463
- Non-current —IERE 15,790,604 12,994,360
18,379,500 20,195,823

HE2021FE6H30H LE/NAER » &
NE)BHEBERIAREENKR2021F 5]
HE M9 4 & £ %6 4400,000,000%E 7T &
300,000,000t 1B e E4% > BE[OIME
#100% 74 & & ZB N FE S M R EEF]
B U KRBETER2022FE 2 A
% % ¥87/200,000,000% 7t & 7120254
EHA Y A5 & 5 %8 260,000,000 7T 8
Gkt

During six months ended 30 June 2021, the Company
redeemed in full the outstanding senior notes in the
principle amount of US$400,000,000 and US$300,000,000
due in 2021 at a redemption price equal to 100% of
the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest
and issued senior notes in the principal amount of
US$200,000,000 due in 2022, US$260,000,000 due in 2025.
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

21 CORPORATE BONDS 21 Rnhlfi%

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
202145 R 20204
6830H 12831H
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
At the beginning of the period/year H9, ) 2,999,970 2,989,478
Redemption E={ (1,500,000) =

Interest and transaction costs IISYSER 7N TN
amortised 30 10,492
1,500,000 2,999,970

Representing: 5]

— Current —RE 1,500,000 2,999,970
— Non-current —IEmE - =
1,500,000 2,999,970
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 #5HA4N DL R ¥ 51 HR)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

22 EA iR R

(a) Dividends (a) BB
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) AR EmfFE AR
attributable to the interim period RE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFRT AREETT

Interim dividend declared after
the interim period of HK$14.75
cents (equivalent to RMB12.27
cents) (2020 interim: HK$11.0
cents (equivalent to RMB10.1

FHERHEARE 8 B R R HA AR
EEREEK14.75810
(HEERAR®12.279)
(202045 1.0
(FBER AR10.19))

cents)) per ordinary share 364,168 279,157
The interim dividend has not been recognised as RIREEER FEREM R
a liability at the end of the reporting period. R RER
(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i)  FRHEAPYHEE R SE (T R RS
attributable to the previous financial year, BEFEE AN L —MEBE
approved and paid during the interim period: ERE :

Six months ended 30 June

BE6A308LLAEA
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBETTT

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the following
interim period, of HK$26.80 cents
(equivalent to RMB22.65 cents)
(six months ended 30 June 2020:
HK$31.0 cents (equivalent to
RMB28.44 cents)) per ordinary
share

EF—UBREERBRS
FA R R A S A
SRR EAR26.80% 1
(FEER AR 1522.659)
(B =20206830H
LE7NE A 31.081l
(HBER
AR #28.44493))
663,039 779,430
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

22 EA-GE RS 3

(continued)

(b) Distribution in specie
On 31 May 2021 (the “Distribution Date”), in
connection with the listing of Central China
Management Company Limited (the “CCMGT"), the
Company’s then wholly-owned subsidiary, on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the entire issued share capital of CCMGT
was distributed to the then existing shareholders of
the Company. Since then, CCMGT became a fellow
subsidiary of the Company and both the Company
and CCMGT are ultimately controlled by Mr. Wu Po
Sum before and after the distribution. A distribution
in specie to shareholders of RMB1,317 million was
recognised, which represented the carrying value of
net assets of CCMGT attributable to the owners of the
Company as at the Distribution Date.

Details of net assets of CCMC at the Distribution Date
are set out below:

(b) BWIHIR
72021E58318 (T9& B ) »
FREXBRAB (THREX))
(EABERNEZENNERR)
HNEHMEZTRHAUBYERX S
TRABA AT ERNIRE PRE
EEHESEHERZMERL
MoARBRTREEETEND
KBTI B REES A ABRE
TES XA RPREXB MR
BEZRWBAB -ERIBARKRE
DIRKNBENDIRAREL37TEE
B AR IKERRERERBINA
ABHEEANKREFEEEE

RpkB > PREZEEXENEEFE
SIBEHRIAT -

RMB’000

AEREETF T

Total assets MEE 1,927,501

Total liabilities =L (610,980)

Total identifiable net assets AR B EFEARRE 1,316,521
Carrying value of net assets attributable  DIKREFEBRAATHEE A2

to the owners of the Company REFEEEE
distributed 1,316,521
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 5 R I AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FR% A fH5IAAN > LLA R 51 HR)

22

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 HA-GEFRE )
(continued)
(b) Distribution in specie (continued) (b) BEWIHIR 45
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect of the DIKZIBEMEFED N
distribution:
RMB’'000
AR®EF T
Cash proceeds on distribution DIKIRERIE =
Cash and cash equivalents of DIRKEBFPREEZRERIREEEY
CCMGT as at the Distribution Date (1,307,290)
Net cash distributed in respect of BYDIKZREDIKFEEE
distribution in specie (1,307,290)
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 ARG PRER (5
(continued)
(c) Equity Settled Share-Based Transaction (c) VARERR&S TR Dr 23 XL 22 %)
() Share option schemes (i) BER#EZ
The number and the weighted average exercise EREHERNEFEETT
price of share options are as follows: fFEENT .
2021 2020
2021 20205
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mEEH iR S
I#E BRExE THEE  BRExE
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January B1B1B BRI 3.67 108,050,000 290 205,555,360
Issued during the period RERET - - - -
Exercised during R/ ERTE
the period/year 2.71  (26,066,000) 1.77 (39,929,160)
Forfeited/lapsed during PRI,/ K3
the period 4.05 (3,500,000) 1.85 (3,588,200)
Outstanding at 30 June R6B30R H K17 3.97 78,484,000 3.21 162,038,000
Exercisable at 30 June R6A30B A F176E 4.09 63,684,000 2.87 106,838,000
The options outstanding at 30 June 2021 had a FR20215E6H30H # 17 fE
weighted average exercise price of HK$3.97 (30 NEBEREMEFEETEE
June 2020: HK$3.21) and a weighted average #3.97%8 7 (20206830
remaining contractual life of 6.49 years (2020: B :3.21%7m) KNk F 5 E
7.32 years). BRENERA6.494F (2020
F17.325F) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(c) Equity Settled Share-Based Transaction

(continued)

()

(i)

Share option schemes (continued)

During six months ended 30 June 2021, options
were exercised to subscribe for 26,066,000
ordinary shares of the Group at a total
consideration of HK$70,589,000 (equivalent to
RMB58,736,000), RMB2,606,000 of which was
credited to share capital and the remaining
RMB77,246,000 was credited to share premium.
HK$24,851,000 (equivalent to RMB20,678,000)
was transferred from the share-based
compensation reserve to the share premium
account.

Share award scheme

On 21 December 2020, the Company announced
the share award scheme to grant 108,000,000
shares to 216 employees, which was subject to
such employees’ acceptance. The share award
scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
10 years.

During January and February 2021, 201
employees accepted the share award and
subscribed an aggregate of 95,950,000 restricted
shares at total consideration of HK$227,856,000.
The restricted shares are subject to service and
performance vesting conditions, with 20% of the
granted shares vested every year on and after
the first anniversary of the grant date during the
next five years.

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

22

2~ Gl B B8 (B

(c)  LARERE &5 5 B by 25 SEWE) 22 55
(&)
(i) SRS (#)

(ii)

HZE2021F6H30H L/~
B rEREETEURE
N EE26,066,0008% & 38
A& 48X {8 7%70,589,00078 7T
(HHE R AK 58,736,000
7t) » Hff AR 12,606,000
T ARES HEFARE
77,246,0007% 5t A B& 19 &
18 °24,851,00058 ¢ (FEZE R
AR #20,678,0007T) B B
DURG 19 2 11 B9 B <& 1% 15 &5

BERMOZER-

R 17 IZE 512
1220205128218 » &"A F
N IR EN &) 216
% B E#% $108,000,0008%
BR1p EBERZEREEREW
BHAIMER o 1D IZE) 5t 2
BR+ERNER B -

R2021F1A K28 > 2014
BERMR MRS A
DL4B 1 18227,856,0007 JT
RS 3195,950,000/2 % [
Bl AR 17 o 32 BRI B 15 7B 5 AR
BhRETEBKREERE
FEEE  RARRAEFHEH
BEMNE —EBEFARE
BEEFRB20%NERH R

e
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

22 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 22 HA-GEHREE )
(continued)
(c) Equity Settled Share-Based Transaction () BIHELR&S Wty 3L 5

(continued) (€))

(if) Share award scheme (continued) (i) Re1rZEE) 12 (48)
Movements in the number of outstanding share W R 1T AR 1D S B 51 B &
award scheme are as follows: BT :

Number of

restricted

share units

5 R 1 B 15

BAIEA

At 1 January 2021 52202151818 =

Granted during the period HAEY 95,950,000
Vested and transferred during HARNERBKMEEE

the period -

Forfeited during the period HA 2 IR =

At 30 June 2021 112021963 30H 95,950,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 23 <R LRMA B GHR
INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (a) LA se e vttt 1R 4 il o1 38 e
value i
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (i) RAABEER

The following table presents the fair value of TR A EBE R RS
the Group's financial instruments measured at AEREMHEEFENE
the end of the reporting period on a recurring BTEAAEBE BT
basis, categorized into the three-level fair value TERBEADTEBYERS
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value ZREI3FRABESE
measurement. The level into which a fair value FMAEN=BELAAEBERE
measurement is classified is determined with ReonnBESEFMEEN
reference to the observability and significance BT 2RBUTHESE
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as FTRE@ASENBRE
follows: EREEUHERET .

- Level 1 valuations:

B—MRIGME :

- Level 2 valuations:

B MREE

- Level 3 valuations:

B IREHE

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

ERAF—RBARE DRGERMERNEENERINEZERTHEN
REFABRESAELANEE

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available

RRAZ-RIBARE IRETEE—RINAIHERGABBAER
AEE BUAFRAEANTEROAR B FTIRRAABBIERE
BTG EEE

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.
HAEATOHRREBABBSEANEBE
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group has a team headed by the finance
controller performing valuations for the
financial instruments, mainly the unlisted equity
securities. The team reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. A
valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at
each interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial

23

S TR A AR G

(a) BAZ Fufe A it dk 1) <5 i 221 X
£ i (49)
(i) Z2[AEEER )

AEENIBAVBEBRES
BENEBRHERIA (X2
BIE LTSRS BT
B -mEEREEREFEME
EREBEZEZEGRE - &H
BReTHKEERSH
HERBEEONMANEE
STEE2FNMGERS LH
BEMBEBERZRAE-

officer.
Fair value measurements
as at 30 June 2021 categorised into
1#202156 83082 AR EREHEREA
Fair value at
30 June 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
#2021
6A30H2Z
AREE F— B4R B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETR AREFT ARBFTR
Recurring fair value REMHRAEBETE
measurement
Financial assets: PHEE
Trading securities: RAMES
- Listed equity securities in —EELMERES
Hong Kong 58,437 58,437 - -
Other financial assets: HtEpEE .
- Non-trading listed equity —ERFH EHRRES
securities 82,844 82,844 - -
- Unlisted equity securities —FLmREES 499,463 - - 499,463
Derivative financial instruments: 74 £8IE :
— Redemption call options -BOBLEEEIEAE
embedded in senior notes 35,826 - 35,826 -
Financial liabilities: Eaa=L-
Derivative financial instruments; f14 &8I & :
— Foreign exchange rate —NEEXEHEN
Swap contract 91,514 - 91,514 -
- Foreign exchange option —NERERERAH
and forward contracts 295,270 - 295,270 -
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WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FR% A fH5IAAN > LLA R 51 HR)

23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 23
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

S TR A R G

(a) BAZ FufE A it dk 1) <5 il 220 %

value (continued) fafl &)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) RAAREEER (E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2020 categorised into
R2020F12831B 2 AnBEFEREA

Fair value at
31 December
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
1R2020F
1283182
ARERE £ B8 B=H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFT ARETT AR®ETT
Recurring fair value mERAREETNE
measurement
Financial assets: PHEE
Trading securities: RAMES
- Listed equity securities in —EELMERES
Hong Kong 62,059 62,059 - -
Other financial assets: HitepeEE .
- Non-trading listed equity —ERGMH EhRES
securities 89,723 89,723 - -
- Unlisted equity securities —FLmEEES 477,686 = = 477,686
Derivative financial instruments: 74 £8IE :
— Redemption call options -BOBEEEIERE
embedded in senior notes 35,186 - 35,186 -
Financial liabilities: ETHEE
Derivative financial instruments: fT4£ £/ IE
- Foreign exchange rate swap ~ —NEEZXEHAH
contract 77,473 - 77,473 -
- Foreign exchange option —IMERARE 68,348 - 68,348 -
- Foreign exchange forward —HNEBBEH
contracts 333,073 - 333,073 =
During the six months ended 30 June 2021, there REE2021%F6H30H 1k

were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil). The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

BR E—REE _RZHE
WESE TESBAS=
R B E = REE T (2020
FE) - AEBZBERAN
BREEEIREHARESR
BERARBEERZENS
Bo
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 23 ST HMA B R &)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

(a) BAZ Fufe A it dk 1) <5 i 221 X

146

The fair value of redemption call options in Level
2 are determined by assessing the difference
between the fair value of the senior notes by
quoted price and the pure bond value.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts and foreign exchange rate swap
contracts in Level 2 are determined by
discounting the contractual forward price and
deducting the current spot rate. The discount
rate used is derived from the relevant interest
rate swap and cross currency basis swap yield
curve as at the end of the reporting period plus
an adequate credit spread.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the
estimated amount that the Group would receive
or pay to terminate the swap at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account current
interest rates and the current creditworthiness
of the swap counterparties.

For Level 2 financial assets at FVPL, fair values
are generally obtained through the use of
valuation methodologies with observable market
inputs or by reference to recent transaction
prices.
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value (continued) fafl &)
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (i) REZRAILBEFZRE
Level 2 fair value measurements ZIEEREREA 2iF

P55 — A B [0] 5T B B AR Y
AREE HEELERE
REBAENAAEBER
MESBEZEAEZERE

E o

E_MINEERS ORI
EEXISHGONAAE
BDHENERERME
RMOBRRITANEZREE
EeEANMBERAREH
AEBAMNEERAKRER R
AR ZWmE RN LEE
HMEEREMSE

FMRIBHNARBERTS
FEBRBEHAR KER
ERMEXREREF Y
EREENT R’ WAL S
T b= AR BT 88 -

ME_MRMURAEBEFE
BHEHFAEHERHN
EMEEMS  ANEE—
REBEREERE (BE
BEBEETSRARE %2
ERERSERFH-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FR% A fH5IAAN > LLA R 51 HR)

23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 23 ST HMA B R 3

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (a) BAZ sefe i sl i 00 4 b & Be

value (continued)

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The fair value of non-publicly traded
equity investments as of 30 June 2021 of
RMB499,232,000 in Level 3 is determined
by reference to the net asset value of these
investments.

The movement during the period in the balance
of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

fafi i)

(iii) BRIE=RAABETEZZ
BHZE2021F6H30H >
BZHRIELABERZER
RKENRAABEARE
499,232,000t /5 2 %%
CEZEEFEMERE

HARE=ZMAREES
BERNEFHBERNOT -

At At

30 June 30 June
2021 2020
20214 20204
68H30H 6H30H
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBETTT

Unlisted equity securities: JE LTRGBS

At 1 January K1A1H

Additional securities acquired P B KB SN R 2

Net unrealised gains or losses AR EMEmE
recognised in other MeER Y R B3R I 2
comprehensive income HE1ERER

during the period

At 30 June R6HE30H

Total gains or losses for the period SREHKRITENEEN

included in profit or loss for A AR R s S RS 18
assets held at the end of (5t A8zm)

the reporting period

477,686 486,733
21,546 (25,092)
499,232 461,641
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W 5 i 3R B AT )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K& 5% 7 54N » DL R ¥EFIER)

23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 23
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

(iii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)

Any gains or losses arising from the
remeasurement of the Group’s unlisted equity
securities held for strategic purposes are
recognised in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) in other comprehensive income. Upon
disposal of the equity securities, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
transferred directly to retained earnings.

(b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2020 and 30 June 2021.

24 COMMITMENTS 24
Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2021 not
provided for in the interim financial report

S TR A AR G

(a) DA Sufe i Gl iR i 4 g i e

fafi i)

(i) BRE=RAREEHEZ
BH
AEEABRBENZEED
R ETRHEBSEHHE
T 7 45 B9 F {0 34 o0 A5 48
ROE A2 T I 35 P R
ARBEEERE REEE) o
RERBSHER Hh2
ERETF R REEES
AMRGRF o

(b) $& 23 SRl AF LASR S 5 ik TR
Z 2 sufe i
720204128318 %2021465
30H » A< & [ 12 A A B 6 A
SR EM T AZREEHEER
AEBEHEERDH -

R

1220215668308 » I # 5 P EI R B ¥R
EAFLBEENRETHNERAKEN
Lk

At At

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1220215 120205
6H30H 12R31H
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Capital commitment for property Y E S L =T
development

— Authorised but not provided for —BEREEERIEHEE

- Contracted for —BEI4
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57,657,415 49,438,965
36,822,500 37,088,271
94,479,915 86,527,236




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

WA 55 e 2% Bf B E o)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fi%5 7 #5HA4N DL R ¥ 51 HR)

25 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 25 JHBED
(a) Guarantees given to financial institutions (a) BPIALEE - SBEERBR
for mortgage facilities granted to buyers of An) e B R Bt IS E R M)
the Group’s, joint ventures’ and associates’ 0 IR R A S 9 Dt

properties

The Group, joint ventures and associates provide
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks in connection with the mortgage
loans entered into by buyers of properties. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default
of the mortgage payments by these buyers, the
Group, joint ventures and associates are responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together
with any accrued interests and penalties owed
by the defaulted buyers to banks. The Group's,
joint ventures’ and associates’ guarantee periods
commence from the dates of grants of the relevant
mortgage loans and end after the buyers obtain the
individual property ownership certificates of the
properties purchased. The amount of guarantees
given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to
the buyers of the properties at 30 June 2021 are as
follows:

TER GECERBEQTM
ETRITAMEESFIRMA
RIBERELIER - RIFEFRIF
Mo E BRI R/
AAER cEhERBEAT
ARRTEEXIHNZEERA
AR ERERERIEITE
MESE - AEBE - GEEER
BMERATNEFRPABERZREBE
ML ARG RERESEMR
BEMENERERIBRER-
120216830 /MEE R
ERZISERMERITRENE

RERWT -

At At
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
1220214 1220204
6H30H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR FT ARETIT
Guarantees given to banks for U T ERMERIZIBER
mortgage facilities granted to FERITIEH AR -
buyers of:
- the Group's properties —RERYE 47,665,042 43,090,654
- the joint ventures' and associates’ —&EHEKBEANTYE
properties (the Group's shared (REEDHZBD)
portion) 4,134,386 5,131,020
51,799,428 48,221,674
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (continued)

(a)

(b)

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & [ f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5

Guarantees given to financial institutions
for mortgage facilities granted to buyers of
the Group's, joint ventures’ and associates’
properties (continued)

The directors do not consider it is probable that the
Group, joint ventures and associates will sustain
a loss under these guarantees during the periods
under guarantees as the Group, joint ventures and
associates have not applied for individual property
ownership certificates for these buyers and can
take over the ownership of the related properties
and sell the properties to recover any amounts paid
by the Group, joint ventures and associates to the
banks. The Group, joint ventures and associates
have not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered
to be minimal by the directors. The directors also
consider that the fair market value of the underlying
properties is able to cover the outstanding mortgage
loans guaranteed by the Group, joint ventures and
associates in the event that the buyers default
payments to the banks.

Guarantees given to financial institutions for
bank loans and other loans granted to joint
ventures and associates:

The Group provided guarantees to bank loans
and other loans of joint ventures and associates
amounting to RMB6,824,182,000 as at 30 June 2021
(31 December 2020: RMB8,332,487,000). The Group
closely monitors the repayment progress of the
relevant loans by those joint ventures and associates.
At the end of the reporting period, the directors do
not consider it is probable that claims will be made
against the Group under these guarantees.

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

25 WMEOR (42

(a)

(b)

R A S R RO R R
ATIE/ES=E 330380 AT
BRI OR (A

HRAEER sECERBER
Bl AR FE B R PR E R ER
B WA ERERBEYEARER
HEEBYE > DU AER -
GECERBEATMIRITX
NTHEARE RESBREE
E-cEEERBEATNTIKA
EERNREHERERERER
HEERRZERFRNAAEE
R HEEE cEEERB
BRI EES A AR FIERE
EREERA - BEFTRD
BEER BT HENEDN
AFHEEHBBEREENHE
EE SERERBEQATER
AIZIBE R

MR T A BEERIBGE AR
PRAT ik e LA 475 % 1) <6 il
R 5O
KREEN2021F6B830BMEE
rERBEATDNRITER R
HMERAR®6,824,182,000
7t (2020128318 : AR
8,332,487,0007T) IR H &R o A&
ERyERZEa S bERKE
NEVEHBEEMNEEE - IR
EHR EERALTEBLTIKAA
FERZERAMERAER-
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25 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE (continued)
(c) Guarantee given to Henan Hongdao and Jiayao

Global

On 24 December 2019 and 7 May 2020, the Group
entered into two arrangements to provide guarantee
to Henan Hongdao Business Information Consultancy
Co., Ltd. /A EEKESHLHAEBRLR ("Henan
Hongdao”) and Jiayao Global Investments Limited
=18 (ER) KEBMRAE ("Jiayao Global”), the
entities controlled by Mr. Wu Po Sum, in respect
of Henan Hongdao five-year bank loan amounting
to RMB500,000,000, with annual guarantee fee
at 1% of the principal amount outstanding and in
respect of Jiayao Global bonds issued amounting to
US$203,000,000 due in 2021, with annual guarantee
fee at 1.5% of the principal amount of the bond,
respectively.

During the six months ended 30 June 2021, financial
guarantee income of RMB10,103,000 was recognised
(2020: RMB5,755,000).

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

25 WMEOR (42
(c)  Tab il v 5A 36 e 3% MR o B (3L 3

i

220194128248 K202045
B7B XEBEFTuImMBEZH
M mAEEABEELZNAE
RAF (MAmsAE]) AR
500,000,0007c 89 1 FE HASR 1T E =X
(FERERERAXREELAESN
1%) k=& (EF) £#BEBRAR
(TERBEEY) R2021F 2 HH
203,000,000& st B & 17 E 5 (&
EEREAABSAEN1.5%)
DREHBRRLEEH NS
IEEsAE K = R E PRI HIER o

HZE2021F6830H ILE/XER >
B R A AR 10,103,000
7t (20204 : AR #5,755,0007%)
BEHERR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in this interim financial report, other material
related party transactions entered by the Group during the
six months ended 30 June 2021 are as follows:

26

HOK BB 75 22 5

PRAF AR SR S H M EB D P B
R REERIN B E20215F 68308 Lk
FECAEBTUZHMBEAREES
RBUWT -

Six months ended 30 June

Project management service income
from joint ventures or associates
Interest income from joint ventures

Interest expense to an associate

Receiving service from entities
controlled by the ultimate
controlling shareholder

Rental income from entities jointly
controlled by a close family

member of the ultimate controlling

shareholder

REGEEEABME QTN
IHEEERBBA

REAEEENFBHMA

A — B E R 82 JBIF BRI

B&RRERRRERER
RUARES

REHRRERREN—%
FARAREGERIESIRA

Hotel and other miscellaneous income 2 B F &2 AR 42 1% G B 122 1 A9

from entities controlled by the
ultimate controlling shareholder

Directors’ and chief executive's
emoluments

BREBVANE R H AR ERA

EERERITEME
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HZE6H308LEAEA
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Kz AR¥FR ARET T
2,533 56,916
(a) 52,451 43,707
(2,718) (3,863)
b)c) (897,037) (574,963)
(@) 2,331 1,338
(b) 10,384 2,856
(18,424) (26,937)
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26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Notes:

(a

The amounts represent interest income in relation to
advances to joint ventures.

Central China New Life, an entity controlled by Mr. Wu Po
sum, the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries, provides various types
of services for the Group, mainly including, real estate
agency service, consultation and management service,
intelligent technology service, membership maintenance and
management service, gift package procurement service and
other miscellaneous services.

In connection with the gift package procurement service,
Central China New Life also purchased hotel and other
miscellaneous services from the Group.

Drawin Intelligent Manufacture, an entity controlled by
Mr. Wu Po Sum, together with its subsidiaries, provides
engineering services for the Group.

Shanghai Meihua Yuezhang Investment Company_t /g 3= % 4%
ZEREAFRRAF, an entity jointly controlled by a close family
member of the ultimate controlling shareholder, Central
China New Life, CCMGT and Drawin Intelligent Manufacture,
together with their subsidiaries, leases properties from the
Group.

(B 55 A fa W ah > LN RS HR)

26 HKBAW 225 (48)

miat -

(@)

ZERIEAMAAELERRNF S
WA e
BERED (—HBASABDRKER

RERBRERATEZEFNER) ERH
MELE HAEEBERMHESERS
TERFERMEARRRS HBAKRE
ERE SEMERT EEHEK
BEERT Y RBERS U E thE
AR ©

B RIBRBM S > BEHREFT
A 7 5= [ B A S e HLfth B TR AR5

SRR EEZEFNERRAREEE
B E M B A B m A EEHTRER
?%0

RARERIGR REMEF -RRE
FRERBEERZSEATNNER
8) R R EHEIERINERE s
FELSKERRARDBAERAE
ES
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

27 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

Central China Real Estate Limited &% & [ f7 4 A ] | Interim Report 2021 H IR &5

On 23 July 2021, the Group has redeemed outstanding
corporate bonds due in 2021 upon maturity with
principal amount of RMB1,490,000,000 and nominal
interest rate of 7.5% at the predetermined redemption
price.

Following the outbreak of flood in Zhengzhou and
other cities of Henan Province in July 2021, all
cities have consistently carried out rescue and
reconstruction activities and introduced relevant
policies to support enterprises. For example, qualified
enterprises would be allowed to delay the payments
of three social insurance premiums. The negative
impact brought upon by the flood in the short term
affected the business and economic activities of the
Group to a certain extent. Due to the uncertainties
on the future development and relevant government
policies in relation to the flood, the Group is still
accessing the influence in operations and the
financial impact of the abovementioned. Based on
the information currently available, the management
estimated that the flood will not have a significant
impact on the Group's financial position and operation
results for the six months ended 30 June 2021. The
Group will continue to monitor, evaluate and take all
possible effective measures to mitigate the impact on
the Group’s operations.

After the end of the reporting period, the board
of directors of the Company declared an interim
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 22(a).

(B 53 A fa W 4h > AN RS HR)

27 e e JE R

(@)

R2021%E 78238 A&EEE
BRBAEEHNEDLESELDR
2021 FHIBEMN A A AR
1,490,000,000c  Z@EA X%
7. 5% KERBABES ©

2021478 > A & BB N 55 it 3%
R ITHmASHIFTERET
—RINE -BEREERHAEIE
REERFRE IFa%K4N
EEZHM =BT REE G
RO RKBRNEBEFETE T
BEFEETAEENEBNL
EEE c MR KB R KEZEREM
BB B R TEREE
EBRMETGE LM EHEHEEEDN
FENMYBETZ - REBEER
HNER BEEBMGAKTEH
AEEEHE2021F6H30H LE/X
BENHMBERRERRSEXEE
SEARE - AEBRRGRES
B~ B4 IR B — ) A] BE B9 A 3K
B RO EAEBMEBNE
48 o

RESHRE ARARNEEFEE
KPR E - E—DF BN
22(a) iR & °



Review Report
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N

Review report to the board of directors of Central China
Real Estate Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial report set out on pages
103 to 154 which comprises the consolidated statement of
financial position of Central China Real Estate Limited (the
“Company”) as of 30 June 2021 and the related consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity and
condensed consolidated cash flow statement for the six months
period then ended and explanatory notes. The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited require the preparation of an interim financial report to
be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 34, /nterim financial reporting, issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation
of the interim financial report in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 34.

Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on our review,
on the interim financial report and to report our conclusion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

HNEEHERMVARQADEZTEZERR

==
=

(RS SEMELZBIRAE)

5IE
HMEBBIHENFEI103BEEFH154BHF
BRSSP BRSO EREE
RMPABERRE (TEAR) B E20219F6H30
HNG M BRARESEEZH EREBA
HENERGEERER GEa2EERER
REHLMEHRELEPRERERERK
MR - (EBHERZATBRABE
MR REBRE EHHRANFBIERR
EREBGMAFEMNCEB 2]
BUFH G HF RS HEPPIERE &
EEBERB(EA ST ERNEMRREK
HFR P HAR B R 2 o

FANEERRERMNBIRHETHYH
WS FHAS R W R FIL TS Frin € RIS
BFEREREREFTRE RIS
HPNREEFCTREEMBE - HAKS
MEREENAD  HENEMALTETR
AEAREE
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Review Report (continued)

FRI T @

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Review Engagements 2410, Review of interim
financial information performed by the independent auditor of
the entity, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. A review of the interim financial report consists of
making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial
and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that
we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Accordingly we do not express an audit
opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the interim financial report as at 30
June 2021 is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34, /nterim financial
reporting.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

18 August 2021
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